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Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service
Real Estate Co., Ltd was established on August 22, 2000
Marked the beginning of Hoang Quan Corporation2000

2002 - 2006: Expanding the system by establishing companies: Hoang Quan 
Appraisal Company Limited, Hoang Quan Binh Thuan, Hoang Quan Me Kong, 
Bao Linh, Viet Architecture.

Join HoSE stock exchange,
officially list HQC shares2010

Establishment of Hoang Quan Education Investment Company Limited and 
Hoang Quan Scholarship Fund 
2011 - 2012: Research to expand investment in social housing for policy 
beneficiaries and low-income people

Promote commercial real estate,
industry, tourism, high-tech agricultural

real estate,new real estate models 2016
Charter capital: VND 4,766 billion

Expanding the system by establishing and contributing capital to many 
companies: Victoria Real Estate management company, Indochina, Simon,

CPG Real Estate Management Company.

Transformation from Company Limited to
Joint Stock Company with the name of Hoang Quan
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation2007

2008 - 2009: Expanding the system by establishing companies: Nam Quan 
Investment JSC, Hoang Quan Can Tho, Hoang Quan Law Co., Ltd.

Pioneer in the field of social housing investment
and development in the southern region2013

Expanding the system by establishing companies:
Hoang Quan Nha Trang, TANIDECO, Gia Bao.

Handover the first social housing project
in Ho Chi Minh City - HQC Plaza 2015

Recognized by the Ministry of Construction as a group A project 
manager and awarded many awards, certificates of merit and 

titles from the Ministry, professional associations and
organizations.

Complete and handover
many projects 2019

Tra Vinh New Urban Area (phase 1), HOF-HQC Ho Hoc Lam (Block C, D, E, F), HQC Nha 
Trang (Block B2), HQC Phu Tai, Golden King, Long Hoa Shopping Center (Area C, D),...

Realizing the vision of becoming a leading
real estate investor in ietnam and the

ASEAN region (period 2020 - 2030) 2020
Affirming the pioneering position in social housing products.

Investment to diversify products. Promote cooperation towards 
efficiency in investment.
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Message From
CHAIRMAN OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dear Shareholders, Partners, Investors and 
Customers,

First of all, on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation (HQC), I would like to send my 
respectful greetings and best wishes for health, 
happiness and success.

2020 - BREAKTHROUGH ACCELERATION - WIDE VISION 
Entering to 2020, the real estate industry in particular and 
the economic situation in general are facing many difficulties 
due to changes in regulations related to the real estate 
industry of the Government of Vietnam, now it has to cope 
with the complicated developments of the Covid - 19 
epidemic in Vietnam and globally. This negatively affects the 
purchasing power of consumers as well as the stock market 
in general. Although the unexpected disease appeared to 
put more pressure on the economy, the Executive Board 
said that "in danger lies opportunity". 
On April 1, 2020, the Government issued Resolution 
41/NQ-CP requesting the Ministry of Planning and 
Investment to lead and coordinate with relevant ministries 
and agencies of the Ministry of Planning and Investment to 
balance more VND 1,000 billion from Vietnam Bank for 
Social Policies under Resolution No. 71/2018/QH14 and 
additional VND 2,000 billion to subsidize interest rates for 04 
commercial banks designated by the State Bank of Vietnam 
to support loans for social housing to assist businesses and 
people to overcome difficulties, restore production and 
business activities due to Covid-19 epidemic. This is good 
news for the real estate market, especially in the field of 
social housing development and is a timely support policy, 
creating great liquidity for social housing not only for 
investors but also the opportunity to buy houses for 
low-income people.
With the foundation of sustainable development despite the 
challenges of the real estate market, in Quarter 2/2020, 
Hoang Quan successfully delivered Block A and B of 
HOF-HQC Ho Hoc Lam project and the first phase of HQC 
Nha Trang project. And following that success in 2020, 
Hoang Quan will hand over the first phase of the Tra Vinh 
new urban area project in June 2020, hand over the HQC 
My Tho project before for December 30, 2020. This can be 
affirmed, Hoang Quan's determination in forming social 
housing products to serve the needs of the low-income 
people in Ho Chi Minh City and the provinces of the Central 
- the South.
Besides social housing, houses for workers, Hoang Quan 
also invests and cooperates in investment of other types of 
commercial real estate such as resort real estate (sea villas, 
condotels), and real estate properties (shophouse, officetel), 
apartments with diverse customer segments from high-end, 
mid-range to low-cost apartments, real estate industrial 
parks such as land, factories and port services, 
warehouses, entertainment services... Besides the 
implementation of renewable purchasing, new exploitation 
of uninvestment land funds, Hoang Quan Company has 
been promoting the application of 4.0 platform in operation 
and sales to make the most of opportunities to bring about 
revenues and profits, improve business efficiency, 
especially towards the goal of ensuring the interests of 
shareholders and partners, customers.
To mark in the next 5-year journey and conquer challenging 
objectives, spread throughout Hoang Quan spirit to rise to 
new heights, affirm the "Enduring value - Effective 
cooperation". With the heart of being one of the pioneers, 
Hoang Quan continues to orient the development of social 
housing, housing for workers is a key investment segment, 
a focus in business and production plans to continue 
contributing to the Government's implementation of the 
mission of developing social housing and housing for 
workers in Vietnam. Hoang Quan accelerates the realization 
of vision so that business growth and profit after tax of 03 
years (2020-2022) are much higher than 2019.

In parallel with real estate investment and business 
activities, Hoang Quan also invests in the field of Education 
and Finance through investing in Tay Nam A Technical 
Economic Vocational Training School, Hoang Lam Nursery 
School,... and stepping up the search for M&A opportunities 
to accumulate projects with valuable locations and complete 
premises to prepare for medium and long-term investment 
strategies, international cooperation to enhance the 
competitive advantage, growing stronger in Vietnam and 
reaching out to the world.
Dear shareholders,
At Hoang Quan Company, human resources are an 
extremely important and integral part of the Company's 
overall picture. Twenty years of establishment and 
development with 25 member companies, Hoang Quan 
formed a chain of investment, legal, design, construction, 
and valuation to marketing, distribution and management. 
Hoang Quan Company firmly asserts its position in 
Vietnam's real estate market, aiming to become the best 
real estate development company in Southeast Asia. 
In order to write that success story, in addition to the right 
business strategy, the continuous efforts of the experienced 
management team and the team of dedicated, professional 
employees, we must mention the companion trust of 
Shareholders, investors, customers... Hoang Quan 
Company is aware that the performance of an enterprise is 
not only measured by its business results but also from the 
value of that enterprise's positive contributions to society. In 
2019, Hoang Quan spent over VND 4 billion on social 
security, supporting the community for Hoang Quan's 
development is always associated with sustainable values 
with the community.
Dear shareholders, up to now, Hoang Quan Company has a 
history of development with 20 years of operation and 10 
years listed on the Ho Chi Minh Stock Exchange (HoSE) 
with stock code HQC, this is a long history of solidity that few 
companies in the same industry have. With these 
foundations and internal resources, with the consent and 
sharing of our shareholders, I believe that the problem of 
Covid - 19 disease as well as the stock price of the 
Company go down is only a short "low note" and on the 
long-term road ahead, our company will be steadfast and 
constantly rising, reaching further with the motto: "Enduring 
value - Effective cooperation".
And finally, I would like to express my sincere thanks to the 
shareholders, investors, strategic partners and customers 
who have always placed their trust and support for the 
Company's development during the past time. We have 
been and will always need the support of our shareholders 
to accumulate the strongest motivation for the upcoming 
growth period, bringing the best values to society, 
community and shareholders.

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Ph.D. TRUONG ANH TUAN

Wishing you health and success.

Dear Shareholders,
The real estate market in 2019 sees a different "deep 
bass" picture. In the beginning months of the year, real 
estate achieved hot growth, however, in the second half 
of the year, the market adjusted adjustments with more 
cautious steps, especially on legal issues. In the context 
of ups and downs of the market, with the capacity, 
bravery and 20-years experience of establishment and 
development, Hoang Quan Company still maintains a 
pioneering position and continues to be consistent with 
the values of social housing development, despite facing 
many difficulties and challenges. However, with the right 
and flexible decisions, efforts and solidarity, the
determination of the Board of Directors and the
Executive Board, moreover is the process of supporting 
the trust of shareholders, investors and customers, 
Hoang Quan has achieved significant achievements 
from an effective perspective, and has continuously 
affirmed its position, brand reputation and sustainable 
development as a stepping stone to prepare for
acceleration and breakthrough for new development 
steps.

With achievements from investment and project 
development, Hoang Quan Company has just finished 
2019 with many good results. The key business areas 
have a breakthrough in business results and in 
operational strategies. Accompany with the 
Government to carry out the mission of developing social 
housing, workers' houses, Hoang Quan has overcome 
the difficulties in investment in developing social housing 
projects and the trend of escalating construction costs. 
With 22 licensed projects, many of which have been 
handed over to customers, such as: hand over HQC Hoc 
Mon Quarter 1/2017, hand over Phase 1 HQC Tra Vinh 
in September 2018, hand over HQC Phu Tai in Septem-
ber 2019; handed over and inaugurated HQC Plaza in 
November 2019, handed over Block C, D, E, F 
HOF-HQC Ho Hoc Lam in December 2019, handed over 
the first phase of HQC Nha Trang project. Particularly in 
2019, HQC has handed over 4,300 apartments, bringing 
the total number of 
apartments handed over and put into use to 7,000 
apartments in Ho Chi Minh City and the central-southern 
provinces have the opportunity to be own private shelters 
in apartment buildings with full utilities, ensure 
synchronous investment in technical infrastructure and 
transportation connecting with surrounding urban areas, 
improving the quality of life of people.
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OVERVIEW OF HOANG QUAN
Established in 2000, with nearly 20 years of operation and maturity, Hoang Quan 
Group has affirmed its pioneering role, create new products, new types of real estate 
and creating a trademark, sustainable growth and ready to integrate into the world 
economy. With the diversified development orientation of product types, Hoang Quan 
Group are investing in commercial real estate and high-tech agricultural real estate 
areas besides social housing and worker housing to bring stable income. One of 
leading Real Estate - Education - Finance Groups in Vietnam and honored to be one 
of the 500 largest enterprises in Vietnam in 2018.

Considered "Efficiency - Cooperation - Innovation - Discipline” as the core value 
throughout the operation process, in parallel with Real estate investment and business 
activities, Hoang Quan Group also expand investment in the field of Finance through 
work investing in subsidiaries, member companies, affiliates and some other 
investment channels in order to use and effectively exploit the capital and capacity of 
the units and shareholders cautiously in order to open expand opportunities for high 
profits and limit risks in business. In addition, the investment in Education is through 
investment and cooperation of Tay Nam A Technical Economic Vocational Training 
School, Ho Chi Minh City University of Architecture, Hoang Lam Nursery School 
System.... In addition, focusing on accelerating the search for M&A opportunities, 
cooperation and international cooperation to enhance competitive advantages, 
growing stronger in Vietnam and reaching out to the world.  

40++ projects throughout the Group
30 Subsidiaries and Affiliates
17 Branches and transaction centers

Company name:
HOANG QUAN CONSULTING - TRADING - SERVICE REAL ESTATE JOINT STOCK COMPANY  
Abbreviated company name: HOANG QUAN COMPANY
Stock code: HQC     -     Listing time: October 20, 2010
Business registration certificate number: 0302087938
Charter capital: VND 4,766,000,000,000
Phone: +84 28 62928617     -     Fax: +84 28 62928486
Email: info@hoangquan.com.vn     -     Website: www.hoangquan.com.vn

Real Estate Education Finance
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CORE VALUES

CORE
VALUES

EFFECTIVE

CO-OPERATION

INNOVATION

DI
SC

IP
LI

N
E

Ensuring efficiency
at work is a top priority

Innovating processes,
product development,...

thereby promoting Investment -
Production - Business activities...,

ensuring the completion of
the common goal

Effective
cooperation in 
  the internal
   operations of
    the company,
    cooperation with
    partners and
   cooperation with
  customers.

Take discipline
  as a guideline in 

training and  
working   

activities    
to achieve   

optimal   
efficiency 

at work.

MISSION
Becoming a leading interdisciplinary and multi-sector corporation 

in Vietnam, in which Real Estate, Education and Finance are the key 
sectors, creating the strength of sustainable development and 

reaching out to the world

VISION 
Constantly innovating, striving to create high quality products and 

services at reasonable prices. 
Pioneer in each business product or service; bring different 

values to customers and shareholders.

REAL ESTATE - EDUCATION - FINANCE
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19-YEAR ANNIVERSARY OF 
ESTABLISHMENT OF HOANG QUAN 
GROUP - CONVERGENCE OF BELIEF, 
SUBSTAINABLE FUTURE

23
/0

8/
20

19

On the morning of August 22, 2019, at the 
headquarters of Hoang Quan Group, the 
ceremony of the "19-year Hoang Quan 
Anniversary Ceremony - Convergence of 
beliefs, sustainable steps for the future", 
representatives of the Board of Directors and 
the Board of Management of the Company, Dr. 
Truong Anh Tuan - Chairman of the Board of 
Directors made a speech to review the 19 
years of construction and development of the 
Group. On the occasion of the anniversary, 
Hoang Quan Company would like to send our 
gratitude, awarded medals to honor the 
encouragement of the individuals who have 
devoted and contributed positively for the 
development of the Company.

4

Highlights
IN 2019

OPENING THE LARGEST SOCIAL 
HOUSING APARTMENT IN HCMC

25
/1

1/
20

19

On November 23, 2019, HQC Plaza Social 
Housing Project was inaugurated with 1,735 
high-quality apartments and utilities such as 
shopping centers, schools, kindergartens, 
clinics, supermarkets, children's play area, 
parking area. This is one of the largest social 
housing projects in Ho Chi Minh City, 
contributing to meeting the needs of housing 
for low-income people, and convenient 
transport links with the downtown areas and 
Phu My Hung urban area. 

5

OFFICIAL HANDOVER OF 4 SOCIAL 
HOUSING BLOCKS PROJECT HOF - HQC 
HO HOC LAM  FOR RESIDENTS

15
/1

2/
20

19 HOF - HQC Ho Hoc Lam is the first project 
implemented in the form of cooperation 
between businesses and the government to 
address housing needs for low-income people 
in Ho Chi Minh City. Overcoming objective 
obstacles and obstacles, HCMC Housing 
Development Fund  and Hoang Quan 
Company have continuously worked with the 
construction units, supervision consultants, 
project managers and related departments in 
order to find the best solutions to urgently 
accelerate the construction work. After many 
efforts and determination, in December 2019, 
the project was officially completed and 
recognized to meet the standards of putting 
into use 4 blocks of C, D, E and F.

6
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At the meeting, Hoang Quan Company 
reported the results of investment and 
business in 2018 and operation directions and 
plans in 2019. At the same time, submit to the 
Shareholders for approval the reports and 
content related to the Group's activities. In the 
business strategy in 2019, the Company 
increased the proportion of commercial real 
estate, office real estate, tourism, resort and 
developed the medium and mid-end real 
estate segment. Especially in 2019, Hoang 
Quan Company will promote the high-tech 
agricultural real estate segment.

HOANG QUAN GROUP SUCCESSFULLY 
ORGANIZED  ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS IN 2019

OFFICIALLY TOPPING OUT THE PROJECT 
AND COMPLETING THE CIVIL WORK OF 
BLUE SKY TOWER PROJECT

HOANG QUAN GROUP ACCOMPANIES 
THE VIETNAM REAL ESTATE 
ASSOCIATION TO PAY TRIBUTE TO THE 
COMMUNITY OF REAL ESTATE 
BROKERERS "VIETNAM REAL ESTATE 
BROKERAGE DAY 2019” 

25
/0

4
/2

0
19

On April 5, 2019, Blue Sky Tower Project 
officially topped out to ensure the set 
progress. This project is located in the key 
area of synchronous infrastructure and 
convenient transportation. At the same time, 
the project is also located in the enlarged Thu 
Thiem urban planning complex and short 
connected to the eastern urban center with 
new and synchronous infrastructure. After 
building the roof, the works and utilities will 
soon be completed to hand over the apartment 
to customers.

0
2/

0
7/

20
19

After 3 years being held in Da Nang and Khanh 
Hoa respectively, the Vietnam Real Estate 
Brokerage Day 2019 took place for the first 
time in Ho Chi Minh City organized by the 
Vietnam Real Estate Association (VNREA), 
Vietnam Real Estate Brokers Association and 
Batdongsan.com.vn, Hoang Quan Group was 
pleased to be the sponsor of the program. The 
event attracted many domestic and 
international real estate organizations, 
research organizations, real estate training 
schools, prestigious real estate development 
enterprises in Vietnam... and the presence of 
hundreds of real estate exchanges and 
thousands of elite real estate brokers.

1 2 3

HOANG QUAN GROUP SIGNED A 
COMPREHENSIVE STRATEGIC 
COOPERATION WITH HCMC 
ARCHITECTURE UNIVERSITY 

18
/1

2/
20

19

On the morning of December 18, 2019, at Ho 
Chi Minh City University of Architecture, 
Hoang Quan Group signed a strategic 
cooperation agreement with Ho Chi Minh City 
University of Architecture. Accordingly, the two 
parties agreed to coordinate and organize the 
implementation of applied research projects in 
production and construction practice at Hoang 
Quan Group. In addition, Hoang Quan Group 
will provide full facilities for Ho Chi Minh City 
University of Architecture with full rights to use 
construction works at the Urban and Mekong 
University project as a training facility for the 
HCMC University of Architecture in Can Tho in 
the next 5 years (from 2020 to 2025).

7
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“TOP 30 REAL ESTATE INVESTORS AND DEVELOPERS 2019”
AND “EXCELLENT REAL ESTATE LEADER 2019”

"TOP 10 TYPICAL BRANDS FOR INTEGRATION IN ASIA - PACIFIC 2019"
AND "TYPICAL BUSINESS ENTREPRENEURS IN ASIA PACIFIC 2019"

Attending the honoring ceremony "Excellent Real Estate Brand of 
Vietnam in 2019, Hoang Quan Group was honored to receive the 
award "Top 30 Real Estate Investors and Developers 2019", this is 
a prestigious award that is highly appreciated for quality as well as 
making great contributions to Vietnam's real estate market in the 
period of industrialization - modernization and integration. At the 
same time, Dr. Truong Anh Tuan - Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of Hoang Quan Real Estate Company also received the 
certificate of "Excellent Real Estate Leader 2019".

15 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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TITLES AND AWARDS
IN

0
5/

7/
20

19

In the framework of the media program and honoring "Typical brand 
and integration of Asia - Pacific 2019", Hoang Quan Real Estate 
was honored to receive the award "Top 10 Typical Brands for 
Integration in Asia - Pacific 2019". Receiving this title has 
acknowledged the efforts that Hoang Quan's Executive Board, 
officers and employees have been striving continuously in the past. 
Besides, the founder of Hoang Quan Group is Dr. Truong Anh Tuan 
was honored with the award of "Typical Entrepreneurs in 
Asia - Pacific 2019".

22
/6

/2
0

19

RECEIVED THE CERTIFICATE OF MERIT OF
PEOPLE'S COMMITTEE OF PHU NHAN DISTRICT

Hoang Quan Real Estate Company has made many positive 
contributions in District Business Association activities on the 
occasion of the 15th anniversary of Vietnam Entrepreneurs' Day 
(October 13, 2004 - October 13, 2019). 0

4
/1

0
/2

0
19

Best Real Estate Exchange
of 2018

TOP 10 Typical brands
of Vietnam's Construction Industry

the Second time

TOP 10  Prestigious brands - products
of Vietnam Construction industry

TOP 500 Best profitable private
enterprises in Vietnam

TOP 50 Best Annual Reports

TOP 500 Largest private
enterprises in Vietnam

OUTSTANDING TITLES AND AWARDS FOR HOANG QUAN COMPANY IN 2015 - 2019
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CORPORATE
MANAGEMENT2

HQC Plaza - Social Housing Project in An Phu Tay, Binh Chanh, Ho Chi Minh City

Nguyen Van Linh Boulevard

Nguyen Van Linh Boulevard
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General Meeting of Shareholders

Board of Directors
(Chairman of the BOD)

Information Technology Department

Legal Department

Shareholder Relations Department

Business Department

Customer Care Department

Project Management
Department 

Internal Control Department

Supervisory Board

General Director

Hoang Quan Nha Trang Consulting-Trading-Service Real Estate Co., Ltd. - 40%

Secretariat - Assistant Department

Hoang Quan Me Kong Consulting-Trading-Service Joint Stock Company - 12%

Hoang Quan Agriculture One Member Company Limited  -  100%

South West Asia Economic - Technical College - 20%

Deputy General Director
Finance - Accounting department

Deputy General Director
Project Investment - Management
Department 

Deputy General Director
Administration - HR Management
Department

Marketing &
Communications Department

Accounting Department

Finance Department

Human Resources
Management Department

Administration
Department

Project Investment
Department 

Deputy General Director
of Legal - Shareholder
Relations Department 

Deputy General Director
Sales - Marketing
Department

Organizational
CHART
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First appointment date: March 23, 2007
Date of reappointment: March 28, 2015
Year of birth: 1964
Native place: Ninh Thuan

Qualification:
Doctor of Business Administration

Work experience:
Dr. Truong Anh Tuan is the founder of Hoang Quan 
Group. He has over 20 years of experience in the real 
estate field, has held several important positions in the 
Executive board of companies of real estate, education 
and taught at the National Economics University.

Position undertook:
Sales Manager - General Director Assistant - Nghi Gia 
Company (Singapore)

Sales Manager - General Manager Assistant - Vinh 
Phuoc Company (Indonesia)

Sales Manager - General Manager Assistant - Thanh 
Danh Company

Position holding at other listed companies: none

First appointment date: March 23, 2007
Date of reappointment: March 28, 2015
Year of birth: 1967
Native place: Ninh Thuan

Qualification:
Doctor of Business Administration

Work experience:
Dr. Truong Thai Son is the co-founder of Hoang Quan 
Group. He has many years of experience in Marketing, 
Appraisal. He currently manages and runs Hoang Quan 
Appraisal Co., Ltd., one of the leading companies in the 
field of valuation in Vietnam. 

Position undertook:
General Director of Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate JSC

Assistant Director and Sales Director of Vinapackink 
Co., Ltd

Sales Director of Long Su Co., Ltd

Sales Director of DX Trading Company

Marketing Manager of Ben Nghe Stationary Company

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies:
Chairman of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan 
Appraisal Company Limited

Mr. Truong Anh Tuan
  Chairman of the BOD
Executive member

Mr. Truong Thai Son
Member of the BOD 
Non-executive member
of the Board of Directors

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Dieu Phuong
Vice Chairwoman of the BOD
Non-executive member of
the Board of Directors

First appointment date: March 23, 2007
Date of reappointment: March 28, 2015
Year of birth: 1965
Native place: Thua Thien Hue

Qualification:
Doctor of Business Administration

Work experience:
Dr. Nguyen Thi Dieu Phuong has many years of 
experience in management and administration of 
accounting and finance. She is a co-founder and has 
made many contributions to the success of Hoang Quan 
Group.

Position undertook: none

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies:
Vice Chairwoman of the Board of Directors of Hoang 
Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
JSC

Vice Chairwoman of the Board of Directors of Hoang 
Quan Can Tho Investment Real Estate Joint Stock 
Company

Member of BOD of Binh Thuan Construction and Trading 
House Joint Stock Company

Chairwoman of the BOD of Southwest Asia Technical 
and Economic College

Member of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan 
Education Investment Company Limited

Member of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan 
Appraisal Company Limited

Member of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan Group 
Co., Ltd.

Position holding in other companies:
Chairman of Indochina Real Estate Development 
Investment Corporation

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hoang Quan 
Mekong Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate JSC

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hoang Quan Can 
Tho Investment Real Estate Joint Stock Company

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Binh Minh Port 
Joint Stock Company

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hoang Quan Binh 
Thuan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Joint 
Stock Company

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Tay Ninh Urban 
Development Joint Stock Company

Chairman of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan 
Investment Education Co.,Ltd.

Chairman of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan 
Group Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan 
Agriculture One Member Company Limited

Introduction To THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS



Introduction To THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont.)

Mr. Le Thanh Nam
  Independent member of
 the Board of Directors 
Non-executive

Mr. Tran Thai Son
    Member of the BOD 
  Non-executive member of
the Board of Directors

Mr. Le Dinh Vien
Independent member of
the Board of Directors 
Non-executive
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First appointment date: May 20, 2017
Year of birth: 1977
Native place: Da Nang

Qualification:
Architect
Work experience:
Mr. Tran Thai Son has many years of experience 
working as an architect. He started joining Hoang Quan 
Group in 2002 with a professional job in designing, 
assisting the Board of Management in creating ideas and 
designing the Company's projects.
Position undertook:
Architect of Architect Construction Of Southern Architect 
Co. Ltd
Assistant to General Director of Hoang Quan Consulting 
- Trading - Service Real Estate Co., Ltd.
Design Director, Assistant to General Director of Hoang 
Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Co., 
Ltd.
Director of Viet Kien Truc Joint Stock Company
Head of Project Management Board of Hoang Quan 
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Company 
Limited
General Director of Asia Architecture Construction Co., 
Ltd.
Position holding at other listed companies: none
Position holding in other companies:
Chairman of the BOD of Viet Kien Truc Joint Stock 
Company
Vice Chairman of the Members’ Council of Gia Bao 
Construction Design Investment Co., Ltd
General Director of Indochina Real Estate Development 
Investment Corporation

First appointment date: April 29, 2011
Date of reappointment: March 28, 2015
Year of birth: 1978
Native place: Hanoi

Qualification:
Technology engineer, Bachelor of Business 
Administration, CFO, Fund Management Certificate
Work experience:
Mr. Le Thanh Nam is currently an Independent 
Non-executive Member of the Board of Directors of 
Hoang Quan Company. Mr. Nam graduated from Hanoi 
University of Science and Technology majoring in 
Business Administration and has many years of 
experience in corporate governance and management. 
At the same time, he is currently the Deputy General 
Director of MB Securities Joint Stock Company - one of 
the leading reputable securities companies and has 
contributed much to the development of Vietnam's stock 
market.
Position undertook:
Project Management Specialist in Tan Mai Group
Deputy General Director of Sales of Viet Paper Trading 
and Service Joint Stock Company
General Director of Viet Paper Trading and Service Joint 
Stock Company
Southern Regional Director of MB Securities Joint Stock 
Company
Position holding at other listed companies: 
Deputy General Director of MB Securities Joint Stock 
Company
Member of BOD of DIC Joint Stock Company No. 4
Member of BOD of Cai Lay Veterinary Pharmaceutical 
Joint Stock Company
Position holding in other companies: 
Vice Chairman of BOD of Viet Paper Trading and 
Service Joint Stock Company

First appointment date: July 13, 2007
Date of reappointment: March 28, 2015
Year of birth: 1951
Native place: Binh Dinh

Qualification:
Doctor of Science

Work experience:
Professor-Dr. Le Dinh Vien has held management 
positions in the executive board at state-owned 
companies such as Saigon 3 Garment Company, Mien 
Nam Construction - Traffic - Service - Trading Joint 
Stock Company, etc.  At the same time, he also has 
nearly 10 years of position as Manager and Principal of 
Long An University of Economics and Industry. 
Currently, Mr. Le Dinh Vien is an Independent 
Non-executive Member of the Board of Directors of 
Hoang Quan Company

Position undertook:
Officer of Ho Chi Minh City Department of Industry

Director of Saigon 3 Garment Company - HCMC 
Department of Industry

Chairman of Truong Thinh Company under HCMC Labor 
Federation

Chairman of Mien Nam Construction - Traffic - Service - 
Trading Joint Stock Company

Chairman of the BOD of Nam Quan Investment Joint 
Stock Company

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies:
Chairman of the Board of Directors cum Principal of 
Long An University of Economics and Industry

First appointment date: March 23, 2007
Date of reappointment: March 28, 2015
Year of birth: 1972
Native place: Ninh Thuan

Qualification:
Master of Business Administration

Work experience:
Master Truong Duc Hieu has many years of experience 
in the field of business and real estate market 
development. He is also the founding shareholder of 
Hoang Quan Group. He is also currently the General 
Director of Hoang Quan Group Co., Ltd. - one of the 
main exclusive units distributing products of Hoang 
Quan Group.

Position undertook:
Head of Market Development Department of Nam Thai 
Son Import Export Company

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies:
Member of the Board of Directors of Hoang Quan Can 
Tho Investment Real Estate Joint Stock Company

Member of the Board of Directors of Hoang Quan Binh 
Thuan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Joint 
Stock Company

Member of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan 
Appraisal Company Limited

Member of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan Group 
Co., Ltd.

Member of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan Nha 
Trang Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
Company Limited

Mr. Truong Duc Hieu
Member of the BOD 
Non-executive member of
the Board of Directors



25 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
CORPORATE MANAGEMENT

26 www.hoangquan.com.vn

Operation Report
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

II. EVALUATION OF COMPANY GOVERNANCEIn 2019, the Board of Directors assessed that the 
Company and the Board of Directors made efforts to 
ensure that the Company's activities comply with the 
provisions of law, the Company's Charter, resolutions 
of the General Meeting of Shareholders and 
Resolutions of the Board of Directors. With the result of 
VND 788.5 billion of revenue, fulfilling 52% of the plan, 
the profit after tax is VND 41.5 billion, the Company has 
completed 29% of the plan set by the General Meeting 
of Shareholders. Although not completing the profit 
plan of the 2019 Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholders, this is considered a great effort of the 
Board of Directors and all employees in the context of 
the real estate market in Vietnam in 2019 have many 
changes: there is a situation of widespread subdivision 
and sale of ground, virtual fever in land prices in some 
localities, raging "ghost projects", etc. Therefore, there 
are many new policies on administrative procedures to 
control more strictly the licensing of new projects, 
leading to a decrease in supply, leading to a sharp 
decrease in real estate transactions. In addition, 
restrictions on supporting policies on social housing 
products, capital... also have a great impact on the 
completion of the 2019 plan. However, before the real 
estate market still faces many fluctuations, the Board of 
Management has proposed programs, solutions and 
decisions suitable to the actual situation of the market, 
ensuring efficiency in operating business activities, 
successfully completing the assigned tasks. 
In order to promote the implementation of the contents 
and plans approved by the General Meeting of 
Shareholders, and to continue following the 5-year plan 
for 2015-2019, the Board of Directors approved the 
supervision mechanism from the Internal Control 
Department under the BOD to review, identify, prevent 
and manage risk. At the same time, the Board of 
Directors has associated with the Supervisory Board to 
closely follow the activities of the Board of 
Management, timely guide the implementation of 
production and business strategies and plans, flexibly 
deploy appropriate actions and policies in each period, 
fluctuations of real estate market:  
• The Board of Directors has conducted key 

management activities related to the organizational 
structure of the Company and the Group, reviewed 
and approved a number of decisions related to 
investment, cooperation of projects, and 
implementation of divestments in associates, 
especially the direction of management, 
supervision of the Company in compliance with the 

provisions of the Company's Charter, the 
Regulation on corporate governance and the 
provisions of current law. The Board of Directors of 
the Company has always been with the Board of 
Management in each activity, following the market 
closely, giving timely instructions. The activities of 
the Board of Management comply with the 
provisions of law, the Company's Charter, 
Resolutions of the General Meeting of 
Shareholders and Resolutions of the Board of 
Directors. The company has made divestments in 
subsidiaries, continuing to review the financial 
investment efficiency. 

• Depending on the changes of macro factors, the 
Company's policies have been adjusted 
accordingly, depending on the time, the proportion 
of investment between segments and product lines 
will be restructured: focusing on investment in 
commercial real estate, focusing on middle and 
mid-end housing segment, office real estate, 
tourism, resort, and at the same time, researching 
and gradually shifting investment into new types of 
hi-tech agricultural real estate, or continue to focus 
on investing in social housing - an area where the 
Company is a pioneer in implementing 
humanitarian values, contributing to the 
Government in providing housing solutions suitable 
for low income people and workers.

• In parallel with the effort to implement the goal of 
improving profitability targets, improving business 
performance, the Company has always actively 
built and strengthened the corporate governance 
model towards gradually approaching the 
international rules. Business information is 
provided fully and transparently, at the same time 
strengthening communication channels, updating 
information timely and continuously for 
stakeholders. Efforts to improve corporate 
governance not only from the Leadership, but also 
to be thoroughly understood by each managerial 
staff, employees of the Company and its affiliates.

• Performing environmental responsibility, the 
company always tries to limit its negative impact on 
the environment, ensuring full compliance with 
technical regulations and standards as prescribed 
by law. The company has approached, applied and 
required contractors to apply advanced 
construction technologies to improve the quality of 
works, save energy, materials, build safe and 
secure... limit negative impact on the environment. 

At the same time, the Company actively 
participates in social activities such as the program 
of accompanying social security, promoting local 
economic development, cultivating talents, 
awarding scholarships to students who have 
difficult conditions and have high academic 
achievements. In 2019, the Company contributed 
over VND 4 billion  to community and society 
activities.

According to the assessment of the Board of Directors, 
the Board of Management has met the requirements, 

1. General Meeting of Shareholders
The General Meeting of Shareholders is the highest 
authority of the Company including all shareholders 
with voting rights.
2. Board of Directors  
The Board of Directors is the governing body of the 
Company, authorized to act on behalf of the Company, 
to decide and perform the rights and obligations of the 
Company that are not under the authority of the 
General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board of 
Directors is responsible for formulating development 
strategies and orientations of the company; at the 
same time overseeing the management of the Board of 
Management.
Activities of the Board of Directors are implemented 
according to the following principles:
• Ensuring an effective governance structure;
• Ensuring the rights of shareholders;
• Fair treatment among shareholders;
• Ensuring the role of people with interests related to 

the Company;
• Transparency in activities of the Company;
• The Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board 

lead and control the Company effectively.
a. Composition and structure of the Board of 
Directors
The Board of Directors of the Company has 7 
members, including 02 independent non-executive 
members, including Mr. Le Thanh Nam and Mr. Le 
Dinh Vien.
b. Activities of the Board of Directors
Following the plan set out at the Annual General 
Meeting of Shareholders in 2019, the Board of 
Directors continued to direct with the orientation to 
continue investing in social housing products in parallel 
with promoting investment in other types of 
commercial real estate such as villas, townhouses, 
offices, retail space for rent, industrial parks, tourism, 
resorts, agricultural real estate... in order to comply 
with current housing policies as well as market 
demand. At the same time, the Board of Directors 
continued to review and reduce/divest capital of 
associates including Hoang Quan Appraisal, Hoang 
Quan Mekong to recover capital and restructure 
corporate governance model.  
Following the functions and powers prescribed by the 

relevant laws and the Charter, the Board of Directors 
has seriously carried out the supervision and direction 
in the business activities, the management and 
administration of the Board of Management. 
The Board of Directors has actively operated, 
promoted the role of directing and closely supervising 
the activities of the Board of Directors, ensuring the 
important risks were identified, controlled and 
proposed solutions to limit the impact. 
In 2019, the Board of Directors held 11 meetings to 
discuss and unify the issues under the authority of the 
Board of Directors, issued 11 Resolutions through 
guidelines and decisions related to the Company's 
business operations and development strategy. From 
there, it gave timely guidance to the Board of 
Management in production and business activities in 
accordance with the Resolution of the General Meeting 
of Shareholders.
All meetings of the Board of Directors are attended by 
the Head of Supervisory Board and/or Supervisory 
Board members as observers performing the function 
of monitoring, supervising and contributing ideas to the 
Board of Directors. In principle, all resolutions and 
decisions of the Board of Directors are only approved 
when there are approvals of 2/3 of the Board members 
present and members absent sending valid votes at 
the meeting. In case the number of agreed and 
disagreed votes are equal, the vote of the Chairman of 
the Board of Directors is the deciding vote, the member 
with opposing opinion has the right to reserve his or 
her opinion.
The member of the Board of Directors are not entitled 
to vote in the contracts, the transactions or proposals 
that such member or person related to such member 
has benefits and such interests which conflict or could 
conflict with interests of the Company. A member of the 
Board of Directors shall not be counted in the minimum 
number of participants required to be present to be 
able to organize a meeting of the Board of Directors 
about decisions that such member does not have 
voting rights.

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON 
ACTIVITIES IN 2019

complied with the current laws and regulations of the 
Company. However, with the business results achieved 
in 2019 that have not completed the plan set by the 
General Meeting, the Board of Management needs to 
focus on improving the efficiency of capital use, further 
enhancing the effectiveness of control and risk 
management. At the same time, building and 
maintaining a fair and competitive remuneration 
framework to attract and retain talents. 
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Specifically, the meetings of the BOD are as follows:

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

08

09

10

11

001/2019/NQ-HĐQT

01/2019/NQ-HĐQT

01A/2019/NQ-HĐQT

02/2019/NQ-HĐQT

02A/2019/NQ-HĐQT

02B/2019/NQ-HĐQT

03/2019/NQ-HĐQT

04/2019/NQ-HĐQT

05/2019/NQ-HĐQT

06/2019/NQ-HĐQT

07/2019/NQ-HĐQT

30/01/2019

31/01/2019

31/01/2019

27/02/2019

19/4/2019

23/4/2019

14/5/2019

29/6/2019

28/8/2019

31/12/2019

31/12/2019

No. Resolution Number Date Content

Approving the Resignation letter of Deputy General 
Directors Dang Thanh Thao, Le Duy Quang and Nguyen 
Hoang Ha
Approving the transfer of all shares currently owned at 
Hoang Quan Appraisal Company Limited
Approving the appointment of Deputy General Directors 
Nguyen Van Toan, Truong Nguyen Song Van and 
Nguyen Thanh Phong
Organizing the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders 
in 2019
Approving the dismissal of General Director and 
Appointment of Deputy General Director position for Mr. 
Pham Minh
Approving the appointment of General Director to Mr. 
Truong Anh Tuan
Approving the policy of selecting AFC Vietnam Auditing 
Co., Ltd to independently audit the financial statements 
of 2019
Approving the appointment of Deputy General Director in 
charge of Legal - Shareholder Relations for Mr. Nguyen 
Thanh Hoai
Approving the adjustment of the interest payment period 
of individual bond packages issued in 2018
Approving the Resignation letter of Deputy General 
Director Pham Minh
Approving the meeting to evaluate the entire construc-
tion work to put the project into use.

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

Mr. Truong Anh Tuan 

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Dieu Phuong

Mr. Truong Thai Son

Mr. Le Dinh Vien

Mr. Truong Duc Hieu

Mr. Le Thanh Nam 

Mr. Tran Thai Son

Chairman

Vice Chairwoman

Member

Member

Member

Member

Member

23/03/2007

23/03/2007

23/03/2007

13/07/2007

23/03/2007

29/04/2011

20/05/2017

11

11

11

11

11

11

11

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

No. Member of the BOD Position Start date/no
longer a

member of
the BOD

Number
of BOD

meetings
attended

Attendance
rate

Reason
for

absent

1

2

3

4

5

Mr. Truong Anh Tuan

Mr. Pham Minh

Mr. Nguyen Van Toan

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phong

Mr. Le Duy Quang

General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director of Administration-HR

Deputy General Director of Project Management

Deputy General Director of Human Resources

Appointed on April 23, 2019

Resigned on December 31, 2019

Appointed on January 31, 2019

Appointed on January 31, 2019

Resigned on January 30, 2019

No. Full name Position Remarks

c. Participation rate of members of the Board of Directors

d. Independent, non-executive members of the BOD
Currently, the Board of Directors member structure of 
the Company ensures a balance between executive 
members and non-executive members, of which one 
third (1/3) of the Board members are independent 
members. 
Independent members of the Board play a role in 
balancing interests, ensuring decisions of the Board 
are made on an objective and independent basis.
e. Activities of subcommittees under Board of 
Directors
The company has not established sub-committees 
assigned by the Board of Directors to the Board of 
Directors' Office, the Division of Shareholders 
Relations, and the Internal Control Board to perform 
specialized functions.
f. Office of the Board of Directors: 
Monitor and organize meetings of the Board of 
Directors, provide necessary information and 
documents for members of the Board of Directors and 
Supervisory Board.
Advise and propose to the Board of Directors and the 
Chairman of the Board of Directors on making 
guidelines, policies, decisions of the Board of Directors 
on issues under the duties and powers of the Board of 
Directors and the Chairman BOD.

Coordinate with the functional departments, the Board 
of Directors of the Company to assist the Board of 
Directors to check the performance of assigned duties 
and duties to the units and individuals, strictly observe 
the labor discipline, ensure that the company activities 
are transparent.
g. Person in charge of corporate governance
On July 9, 2019, the Board of Directors approved the 
decision to appoint the Person in charge of corporate 
governance for Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hoai. Mr. Hoai is 
currently concurrently holding the position of Deputy 
General Director cum Authorized Information 
Discloser. With nearly 17 years of working closely with 
Hoang Quan Group and operating in a professional 
legal environment, Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hoai has 
extensive experience and expertise in the legal fields, 
especially in real estate legislation. 

3. Participation in Training courses on corporate 
governance

Training courses on corporate governance that 
members of the Board of Directors, members of the 
Supervisory Board, CEO, and other managers 
participated in the corporate governance regulations 
in 2019 are as follows:

- Training on Corporate Governance Score Card of 
Vietnam DNYY Company and information 
disclosure issues on Annual Report/Sustainable 
Development Report within the framework of 
VLCA 2019 organized by Ho Chi Minh Stock 
Exchange.

- Workshop "The role of Company Secretary in 
Modern Corporate Governance" held by Ho Chi 
Minh Stock Exchange, Hanoi Stock Exchange, in 
collaboration with the Association of Certified 
Public Accountants of Australia, Institute of Board 
Members Vietnam.

- Training on effective and transparent corporate 
governance: the role of the Sustainable Enterprise 
Index.

- Attend the training course "Acceptance of 
settlement in construction".

4. The Board of Management

The Board of Management is appointed by the Board of Directors, whose main responsibility is to organize the 
implementation of resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of Directors, to decide all 
issues that do not need resolutions of the Board of Directors, including on behalf of the Company, enter into 
financial and commercial contracts, organize and direct the daily business and production activities of the 
Company in accordance with the best management practices.

In 2019, the Board of Management has a number of changes shown in the following table:
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6

7

8

9

Mr. Nguyen Hoang Ha

Mr. Dang Thanh Thao

Mrs. Truong Nguyen Song Van

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hoai

Deputy General Director  

Deputy General Director of Legal
and Information Discloser

Deputy General Director of Finance

Deputy General Director
and Information Discloser

Resigned on January 30, 2019

Resigned on January 30, 2019

Appointed on January 31, 2019

Appointed on January 10, 2019

No. Full name Position Remarks

In 2019, the Board of Management has a number of changes shown in the following table (cont.):

In 2019, the Company incurred the transactions of internal shareholders and related persons as follows:

There has been no change in Owners' invested equity during 2019
The Owners' invested equity as of December 31, 2019 is VND 4,766,000,000,000

III. LIST OF RELATED PERSON OF LISTED COMPANY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF CLAUSE 34,
    ARTICLE 6 SECURITIES LAW

IV. TRANSACTIONS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PERSON

V. SITUATION OF CHANGE OF OWNER’S EQUITY

List of related persons of the company (cont.)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Truong Anh Tuan

Nguyen Thi Dieu Phuong

Truong Thai Son

Truong Duc Hieu

Le Dinh Vien

Le Thanh Nam

Tran Thai Son

Pham Minh

Nguyen Van Toan

Nguyen Thanh Phong

Le Tuyen Cu

Le Duy Quang

Tran Tien Danh

Nguyen Long Trieu

Nguyen Hoang Ha

Tran Anh Tuan

Dang Thanh Thao

Truong Nguyen Song Van

Chairman of the Board
cum General Director

Vice Chairwoman of the BOD  

Member of the BOD

Member of the BOD 

Non-executive member
of the Board of Directors

Non-executive member
of the Board of Directors

Member of the BOD

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director
cum Information Discloser

Deputy General Director

23/03/2007

23/03/2007

23/03/2007

23/03/2007

13/07/2007

29/04/2011

18/03/2015

22/6/2018

31/01/2019

31/01/2019

22/6/2018

22/6/2018

22/6/2018

22/6/2018

22/6/2018

15/03/2016

02/01/2016

31/01/2019

Resigned

Appointed

Appointed

Resigned

Resigned

Resigned

Appointed

No. Name of organization
/individual

Position in
the company
(if any)

Starting
time as

the related
person

No longer
a related
person

Reason

31/12/2019

30/01/2019

30/01/2019

30/01/2019

1

2

Truong Anh Tuan

Nguyen Thanh Van

20,350,240

1,774,444

No. The person who
made the
transaction

Number of
shares

4.27%

0.37%

Ratio

40,350,240

2,774,444

Number of
shares

8.47%

0.58%

Buy shares

Buy shares

Ratio

Number of shares
at the beginning
of the period

Number of shares
at the end of the
period

Reasons for
increase or
decrease
(purchase, sale,
conversion,
bonus ...)

Relationship
with the
insiders

19

20

21

22

23

24

Nguyen Thanh Hoai

Nguyen Thanh Van

Le Phung Nha Phuong

Nguyen Thi Diem

Nguyen Hong Phuong

Nguyen Lam

Deputy General Director
cum Information Discloser

Head of Supervisory Board

Member of the Supervisory Board

Member of the Supervisory Board

Chief accountant

Chief Financial Officer

10/01/2019

01/11/2011

28/03/2016

20/5/2017

22/10/2015

04/04/2018

Appointed

No. Name of organization
/individual

Position in
the company
(if any)

Starting
time as

the related
person

No longer
a related
person

Reason

List of related persons of the company
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VI. REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
1. Remuneration and benefits of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board

Based on the approved remuneration of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the remuneration paid to the Board 
of Directors is 0.7% of profit after tax equivalent to VND 290,491,603; the remuneration paid to the Supervisory 
Board is 0.3% of profit after tax equivalent to VND 124,496,401. Remuneration details for the Board of Directors 
and the Supervisory Board are allocated as follows:

VII. ORIENTATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1. Regarding the production and business plan for 2020

The Board of Directors proposes some basic targets for the year 2020 as follows:

2. Bonus regime for members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board
In addition to the remuneration regime for members of the BOD and the Supervisory Board mentioned above, the 
independent, non-executive and Supervisory Board members do not receive any bonuses from the Company's 
Bonus & Welfare Fund.

3. Other regime for members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board
At present, only members of the Board of Directors who hold concurrently positions are entitled to allowances (the 
car use regime of the company; the regime of actual telephone expenses incurred; the social insurance regime, 
health insurance and other types of insurance; periodic health check...) and other benefits are stipulated in the 
internal regulations of the Company.

2. Operation orientations in 2020
On the basis of internal factors combined with the macroeconomic prospects, the Board of Directors set the 
development direction for 2019 as follows:  
• Business activities: 
2020 is the year the global economy is expected to be greatly affected by the outbreak of the Covid-19 epidemic. 
Although 2020 is determined to be the first year to implement the plan for the development strategy period 
2020-2025 and vision to 2030, 2020 is also a year that brings many difficulties and challenges, especially, the 
great effects of the Covid - 19 epidemic on the global economy, therefore, based on the macro context and the 
actual situation of investment at the Company, the Board of Management has submitted to the BOD a number of 
basic business orientations, in line with the general situation of the economy today, which focuses on a number 
of rapid investment activities and rapid capital recovery. 
Regarding the orientation, the Company continues to base on the real estate base, but there is still a flexible 
adjustment of the proportion between segments and product lines in each appropriate period. Specifically:

- Continuing the development orientation of social houses and houses for workers in the production and 
business plan in 2020 and the period of 2020-2025 but need to focus on completing the projects of social 
housing which have been and are still in progress. At the same time, it is necessary to make the most of the 
product lines and utilities of the invested projects as well as promote the acquisition of renewable.  

- Promote comprehensive cooperation inside and outside the Group, aiming to optimize the efficiency of 
investment 

- Develop and invest in diversifying types of products in order to balance revenue sources, create firmness to 
ensure revenue and profit sources.

- Strongly apply information technology in administration, investment and business activities to improve 
operational efficiency in business activities.

- Focus on the training and development of human resources.
• Bonus over the plan:  
In order to encourage and encourage the Executive Board, the Board of Directors to propose to the General 
Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval of the plan to reward the Executive Board, key officers of 
the Company 10% of the plan exceeding the targets of consolidated profit after tax of 2020. 
• Corporate governance:   

- Continuing to improve the transparency and streamlining the governance apparatus in the operations of the 
business, enhancing the role of the Board members, strengthening and facilitating the corporate governance 
training for members of the Board of Directors, Board of Management and Supervisory Board. 

- Enhancing corporate governance according to international standards, at the same time strengthening the 
role of governance and risk control in financial management, accounting and auditing, risk management, cost 
control, improving the quality of governance, transparency of information about the Company and its 
stakeholders. 

- Promoting the implementation of the plan to develop inherited human resources at the leadership level for 
both the management apparatus at the Board of Directors and the Executive Board of the enterprise.

• Sustainable development
- Continue to monitor the implementation of personnel restructuring, review and evaluate salaries, bonuses, 

benefits... for all employees.
- Expand search, select projects with high economic efficiency in accordance with the capacity and experience 

of the Company in the domestic and regional markets.
- Apply new technologies and standards in management, management processes, investment, construction, 

sales, finance - accounting... in order to improve the quality and progress of construction, increase labor 
productivity, improve business results, at the same time contribute to the orientation of sustainable 
development, preserve and protect the environment during the operation, maximize the rights of 
shareholders and ensure the sustainable development of the Company.

- Continue to improve competitiveness for sustainable growth, while contribute positively to the country's 
economic development.

SUPERVISORY BOARD

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

Mr. Truong Anh Tuan 

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Dieu Phuong

Mr. Le Dinh Vien

Mr. Truong Thai Son

Mr. Truong Duc Hieu

Mr. Le Thanh Nam 

Mr. Tran Thai Son

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member 

Member

 

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

x

08

09

10

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Van

Mrs. Le Phung Nha Phuong

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Diem

Head

Member 

Member 

x

x

x

x

x

x

No. Full name

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Title Non-
exe-
cutive

Exe-
cutive

Salary Remune-
ration

Effective
rewards

Unit: VND Billion

1

2

3

4

Gross sale

Collective revenue

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

1,019

200

79

63

No. Items 2020

In addition to the 2020 plan, the Board of Management has set a plan for the Company's after-tax profit to orient 
the plan for the period of 2020-2025 each year from VND 100 billion with expected revenue from projects 
currently invested by the Company and potential revenue from cooperation, M&A projects,...

CHAIRMAN OF BOD

Dr. TRUONG ANH TUAN

Recipients: 
- Annual General Meeting
  of Shareholders 2020;
- BOD, BOM, SB;
- Archives.



Mr. Nguyen Thanh Van
Head of Supervisory Board

Mrs. Le Phung Nha Phuong
Member of the Supervisory Board

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Diem
Member of the Supervisory
Board 

Qualification:
Bachelor of Economics

Work experience:
Mr. Nguyen Thanh Van has extensive experience 
in economics, finance and accounting. He has 
many years of experience as Chief Accountant of 
some big companies such as Ba Ria Vung Tau 
Seafood Logistics Service Company (Baseaserco)  
HCMC branch, Hoang Quan Mekong 
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Joint 
Stock Company
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First appointment date: January 11, 2011
Date of reappointment: March 28, 2015
Year of birth: 1964
Native place: Ho Chi Minh City

Qualification:
Bachelor of Finance - Auditing
Work experience:
Mrs. Le Phung Nha Phuong is a Bachelor of 
Finance - Auditing and has extensive experience 
working in Finance - Auditing. She has worked at 
prestigious organizations such as Military Bank - 
MB, South East Asia Bank - Seabank,... 
Position undertook:
Credit Officer, Social Policy Bank of Chau Thanh A 
district, Hau Giang province
Senior Internal Control Officer of Military 
Commercial Joint Stock Bank - MB Bank 
Head of Internal Control Team in Southern Region 
of Southeast Asia Bank - Seabank
Position holding at other listed companies: none
Position holding in other companies:
none

Qualification:
Bachelor of Economics, Chief Accountant
Work experience:
Mrs. Nguyen Thi Diem is a Bachelor of 
Economics, and she also has extensive experience 
in Finance and Accounting. Especially, she used to 
hold the position of Chief Accountant at many 
companies before starting to work at Hoang Quan 
Group since 2016.
Position undertook: 
Chief Accountant of Thanh Dat Import and Export 
Company Limited
Chief Accountant of Thanh Hung Group Joint 
Stock Company
Chief Accountant of Kien Xay Construction 
Architecture Design Consulting Company Limited
Assistant to Deputy General Director of Hoang 
Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
Corporation
Position holding at other listed companies: none
Position holding in other companies: none

First appointment date: March 28, 2015
Year of birth: 1980
Native place: Can Tho

Appointment date: May 20, 2017
Year of birth: 1982
Native place: Tien Giang

Position undertook:
Specialist of Planning Division of Long An 
Department of Transport

Deputy Head of Finance - Accounting Department 
cum Chief Accountant of Ba Ria Vung Tau Seafood 
Logistics Service Company - HCMC branch 

Chief Accountant of Hoang Quan Mekong 
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Joint 
Stock Company

Deputy Director, Chief Accountant of Tay Ninh 
Urban Development and Investment Joint Stock 
Company

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies
Deputy Director, Chief Accountant of Tay Ninh 
Urban Development and Investment Joint Stock 
Company
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Operation Report Of
THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Performing the functions of the Supervisory Board in accordance with the Enterprise Law and the Charter on 
Organization and Operation, the Regulation on Internal Management of Hoang Quan Consulting-Trading-
Service Real Estate Corporation, the Supervisory Board reports before the General Meeting Shareholders 
about its operations in 2019, the content of the report includes:

- Activities of the Supervisory Board in 2019;
- Results of monitoring all respects of the Supervisory Board;
- Operation plan in 2020, orientation for the period 2020-2025.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for supervising the Company's financial situation, business and 
production plans, ensuring compliance with the Company's laws, the Company's Charter and internal 
governance regulations in the activities of the members of the Board of Directors, Board of Management, 
managers of the Company. The coordination of activities between the Supervisory Board with the Board of 
Directors, the Management Board and shareholders, and other duties as prescribed by law and the Company's 
Charter to protect the legal rights of the Company and shareholders.

1. Member Structure of Supervisory Board (SB)
The Supervisory Board of the Company consists of 03 members, including Mr. Nguyen Thanh Van (Head of the 
Board), Mrs. Le Phung Nha Phuong (Member), Mrs. Nguyen Thi Diem (Member) who have expertise in 
accounting and auditing. There is no member of the Supervisory Board who is in the accounting and finance 
department of the Company. At the same time, all members of the Supervisory Board are not members or 
employees of the independent auditing company who are performing the audit of the Company's financial 
statements, nor are they related to the Board of Directors, the Board of Management of the Company so it 
ensures the objectivity in the evaluation and control process.

2. Supervisory activities of the Supervisory Board to the Board of Directors, the Board of Management 
and the shareholders
 • For the BOD: 

- The Supervisory Board has regularly supervised the Board of Directors and the Board of Management to 
check the compliance with the provisions of the Enterprise Law, the Company's Charter of Organization and 
Operation, including the implementation of resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, resolutions 
of the Board of Directors.

- Attend meetings of the Board of Directors, recognize the results of investment and business and consider 
the suitability of the decisions of the Board of Directors, give suggestions in the management and 
administration of the Board of Management.

- The Board of Directors always follows the activities of the Executive Board, provides timely directions to 
improve the Company's performance.

- Supervise the implementation of periodic reports and regular and extraordinary information disclosure in 
accordance with the Law on Securities and other relevant legal documents.

- Supervise the dismissal and appointment of the Board of Management of the Board of Directors.

I. ACTIVITIES OF SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2019

II. SUPERVISION RESULTS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

01

02

03

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Van

Mrs. Le Phung Nha Phuong

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Diem

Head

Member

Member

01/11/2011

28/3/2015

20/5/2017

02

02

02

100%

100%

100%

No. Member of
Supervisory 
Board

Position Start date/no
longer a
member of the
Supervisory 

Number of
Supervisory
Board
meetings 

Attendance
rate

 Reason
for
absent

Revenue

Net revenue

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

532.9

468.5

55.1

42.5

788.5

656.3

59.9

41.5

48%

40%

9%

-2%

Items 2018 2019 Rate of change

Unit: VND Million

- The Board of Directors has coordinated with functional departments/units in the Company, including 
requiring the Internal Control Department to inspect the operations of affiliated units such as branches, 
member companies,... in order to enhance the management and administration for these units throughout 
the Group.

 • For the Board of Management:  
- The Board of Management has operated promptly and flexibly in implementing the Resolutions of the Board 

of Directors.
- The Board of Management has held regular and extraordinary briefings to promptly resolve and give 

appropriate instructions in the process of management and administration.
- The Supervisory Board maintains its independence during the monitoring process according to the 

prescribed functions and tasks.
- Supervise investment and capital contribution activities, major investments in other companies.

 • Coordination of activities between the Supervisory Board and the activities of the Board of Directors, 
the Board of Management and other management officials:

- The Supervisory Board collaborated with the Board of Directors and the Board of Management in monitoring 
and supervising business investment activities, regularly exchanging information, assessing performance 
data, proposing measures to improve results while limiting risks.

- Work closely with the Internal Control Department to supervise internal control and audit in 2019.
- In supervisory activities, the Supervisory Board was created favorable conditions by the Board of Directors 

and the Executive Board to complete the task.
 • Other activities of the Supervisory Board:

- Propose the selection of an independent auditor to review 2019 financial statements.
- Track the performance of corporate bond issuance. 

Based on the authority, assigned tasks and the operation plan of the Supervisory Board which was approved by 
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2019, the activities of the Supervisory Board achieved some 
results as follows:
1. Monitoring the implementation of Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders 2019

- Business results in 2019 reached VND 788.5 billion in revenue, VND 41.5 billion in after-tax profit, equivalent 
to 52% of the revenue plan and 29% of the profit plan approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders in 
2019. Although the Company has not yet achieved its goals, this is also a relatively positive result in the context 
that the Company faces many great difficulties from policies related to the real estate market.   

- Payment of remuneration to members of the Board of Directors and members of the Supervisory Board at the 
rate approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Based on the business results in 2019 not achieved as planned by the General Meeting of Shareholders, 
however, the Board of Management needs to analyze more deeply the subjective reasons, in addition to objective 
reasons, leading to the situation that basic financial targets have not been reached, especially the profit ratios 
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders in 2019. From there, work out appropriate solutions for each 
cause.

• Some items of business results in 2019
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2. Monitoring the operational and financial situation of the Company
- The 2019 financial statements have been audited in accordance with the Company's Charter and relevant laws. 
AFC Auditing Co., Ltd, an auditing unit approved by the State Securities Commission to audit listed and issuing 
organizations, has been selected to perform the auditing of the annual financial statements. 2019.
- The Supervisory Board has reviewed and agreed with the financial contents and figures of the Accounting 
Department of the Company and has been audited by AFC Auditing Co., Ltd. and no exceptions. Financial 
statements are made on the basis of fully complying with the provisions of accounting standards and accounting 
regimes in organizing accounting work, performing accounting and making financial statements to ensure 
accuracy, honesty and reasonableness. In addition, transactions with related parties arising in 2019 under the 
Resolution approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders in 2019 are also fully reflected in the financial 
statements.
- Regarding the issuance of non-convertible corporate bonds: The Company has made adjustments to the Bond 
Interest Payment term for the bond codes HQC.BOND.2018.PARADISE and HQC.BOND.2018.TRAVINH of 
individual issues in 2018 from “from each term of 03 (three) consecutive months in the Bond Term” to “Bond with 
Interest Payment Term is one time and the whole bond principal on the Due Date or other due date, whichever 
comes first”. At the same time the Company has disclosed information in accordance with the relevant 
regulations. 

Supervising members of the Board of Directors, 
members of the Executive Board and managers
Through the inspection and supervision, the Supervisory 
Board found that the Board of Directors and the Board of 
Management have complied with the current law, the 
company's charter, the internal governance regulations 
and the resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of 
Shareholder 2019.
• Board of Directors
- The Board of Directors has closely supervised and 

timely directed the Board of Management in the 

operation of production and business, supervising the implementation of the Resolution passed by the 
General Meeting of Shareholders.

 Resolutions of the Board of Directors were issued in accordance with the functions, powers and in 
accordance with the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, compliance with the Enterprise 
Law, the Company Charter, the Internal Management Regulation and other regulations of laws.

- The Board of Directors has held regular and irregular meetings in accordance with regulations to implement 
the business supervision and orientation of the Company.

• The Board of Management
- The Board of Management has correctly implemented its functions and powers, complied with the 

provisions of the Enterprise Law, the Company's Charter, the Internal Management Regulation and other 
law provisions.

- In 2019, the Board of Management faced many challenges in management, but with a high sense of 
responsibility, the Board of Management still endeavored to set and implement appropriate policies to bring 
positive business results.

4. Comment
- In general, the direction and administration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management have 

complied with the current law, the company's charter and the internal governance regulations.
In the course of control in 2019, the Supervisory Board did not receive a letter of request or 
recommendation, reflecting from the shareholder or group of shareholders about the management and 
operation of the Board of Directors and the Executive Board.

- However, the Board of Directors and Board of Management still need to strengthen risk management, 
control and limit critical risks, create conditions for the Company to develop stably and achieve strategic 
vision goals 2020-2025, ensuring the maximum legal interests of shareholders of the Company and its 
stakeholders, and at the same time performing social responsibilities well.

- The company needs to improve the system of regulations and fully decentralized mechanisms to improve 
productivity and promote internal resources effectively.

5. Recommendation
Through the inspection and supervision, and on the basis of financial indicators, the Supervisory Board made 
a number of recommendations to ensure the good implementation of the production and business plan in 2020 
and the completion of the strategic objective 2020-2025, and at the same time, limit errors and risks in the 
process of operating the Company's production and business activities:
- Improve supervision and evaluation of investment efficiency, risk management in the use of capital, assets 

and resources: The Board of Management should focus on directing and evaluating the effectiveness of key 
products, closely monitoring production costs to balance, select and allocate appropriate capital and 
resources to focus on developing projects with high profit rate, high percentage of revenue and profit 
contribution, bringing efficiency to the Company. In particular, the Supervisory Board proposed that the 
Board of Management should speed up the progress of the project being invested to facilitate the sale of 
products quickly, increasing the efficiency of capital turnover. At the same time, consider divesting, 
transferring, cooperating for large-scale investment projects or projects that are no longer suitable to the 
business strategy to minimize capital costs, avoid liquidity risks, seeking solutions to maximize the 
efficiency of capital use in case the Company's financial resources have not been able to meet the demand, 
creating a large number of unfinished products affecting liquidity, increasing capital costs.

- Continue to review and drastically implement the personnel restructuring: Strengthening the review and 
evaluation of salaries, bonuses, benefits,... for all employees. At the same time, it is necessary to record the 
comments of staff before and after the application. Further improve the quality of personnel, focus on 
recruiting personnel in a timely manner to meet professional qualifications and working skills.

- Effective application of 4.0 technology: It is necessary to standardize and apply new technologies and 
standards in management, management processes, investment, construction, sales,... in order to improve 
the quality, construction schedule, increase labor productivity, improve business results. At the same time, 
contribute to the orientation of sustainable development, preserve and protect the environment in the 
company's activities. 

- Improve the personnel and operation regulations of the internal control department on the principle of 
preventing and limiting errors in activities, especially financial activities.

III. ORIENTATIONS FOR OPERATIONS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD 
To ensure the successful implementation of the production and business plan in 2020 and to fulfill the strategic 
objectives 2020-2025. At the same time limiting errors and risks in the process of operating the production and 
business activities of the Company as well as fulfilling the role and duties of the Supervisory Board; enhancing 
the transparency to bring maximum benefits to the Company and shareholders, the Supervisory Board will 
focus on the following:
- Actively carry out in-depth research, proposals and assessments in production and business activities as 

well as investment activities based on the main changes of the Company in the past 2019: evaluate the 
effectiveness of business investment related to diversifying investment in product lines (commercial real 
estate, high-tech agricultural real estate,...) to achieve effective business results, helping the Company 
increasingly sustainable development.

- Evaluate the change of personnel restructuring, reviewing and evaluating salaries, bonuses, benefits,... for 
all employees, actively create a professional working environment, create long-term engagement with 
officials and employees through appropriate policies, incentives and benefits.

- Evaluate and make appropriate recommendations to adjust and complete the working processes to suit 
each stage, each period of operation of the Company.

- Actively implement the functions and duties stipulated by the Law, the Company's Charter and the 
Regulation on Organization and Operation of the Supervisory Board. 

- Monitor and promptly detect acts that are likely to harm the interests of the Company and its shareholders 
in order to achieve the goals and plans approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Select and propose an independent auditing company with the capability, experience and reputation to 
provide audit and review of the Company's financial statements.   

- Study and promptly update newly promulgated mechanisms and policies, supervise and propose 
amendments to matters not yet appropriate to ensure full and timely compliance with the provisions of law.

HEAD OF SUPERVISORY BOARD

                 NGUYEN THANH VAN

Recipients:     
- General Meeting of Shareholders 2020;
- BOD, BOM.
- Archives.

- 

- 
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I. INVESTMENT NOTICE OF THE OWNERS
Information about shareholder's capital contribution as of December 31, 2019, as follows:

Charter capital

Volume of listed shares

Freely transferable shares

Restricted transferable shares

Treasury shares

Outstanding voting shares

Market capitalization

4,766,000,000,000

476,600,000

476,600,000

0

726

476,599,274

~495,660,000,000

VND

Stock

Stock

Stock

Stock

Stock

VND

Stock information Value Unit

1

2

3

 

 

4

5

6

 

 

TOTAL

In which:

State Shareholder

Founding shareholder

Major shareholders

-  Domestic

-  Foreign

Company Union

Treasury shares

Other shareholders

-  Domestic

-  Foreign

-  Domestic

-  Foreign

-

-

78,594,898

 78,594,898

-

-

726

 

379,917,614

18,087,488

  
476,600,000

458,512,512

18,087,488

0.00%

0.00%

16.50%

16.50%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

 

79.70%

3.80%

100%

96.20%

3.80%

-

-

2

2

-

-

1

 

9,462

76

9,464

76

-

-

1

1

-

-

1

 

42

19

44

19

-

-

1

1

-

-

-

 

  9,420

57

  
9,420

57

No. Items Number of
shares

Ownership
ratio %

Number of
shareholders

Shareholder structure
(people)

Organization Individual

Treasury share transactions: In 2019, Hoang Quan Company did not generate any transactions.

Note: Major shareholders and internal shareholders overlap

Domestic individual

Domestic Organization

Foreign individual

Foreign OrganizationII. HQC SHARE INFORMATION IN 2019
Information about shareholder's capital contribution as of December 31, 2019, as follows:

1

2

3

4

5

6

Total number of sessions

Total trading volume

Total transaction value

Most traded volume (October 3, 2019)

Highest price (March 6, 2019)

Lowest price (December 11, 2019)

250 sessions

667,299,854 shares

VND 869,221,000,000

12,765,574 shares

VND 1,570

VND 970

No. Items Quantity

III. SHARE OWNERSHIP RATIO
1. Shareholder structure classified by Nationality

2. Shareholder structure classified by relevance

3. Shareholder structure by ownership type

Domestic
Individual

Organization

Foreign
Individual

Organization

96.20%

86.51%

9.69%

3.80%

0.96%

2.84%

458,512,512 

412,322,281    

 46,190,231     

18,087,488

4,552,550

13,534,938

Type Number of shares Ratio

Major shareholders

Internal shareholders

Other shareholders

78,594,898

65,630,465

393,724,877

16.50%

13.79%

82.61%

Type Number of shares Ratio

Shareholder Structure
classified by Nationality

Shareholder structure
classified by relevance

2.84%

9.69%
16.50%

13.79%

86.51% 82.61%

0.96%

Other shareholders

Major shareholders Internal shareholders
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IV. TRANSACTIONS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PERSON
In 2019, Hoang Quan Company incurred the transactions of internal shareholders and related persons as follows:

Board of

Directors 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of

 

 

 

 

 

Supervirsory

Board

Chief Financial
Officer

Chief
Accountant

Total

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1

2

3

1

1

Truong Anh Tuan

Nguyen Thi Dieu Phuong

Truong Duc Hieu

Truong Thai Son

Tran Thai Son

Le Dinh Vien

Le Thanh Nam 

Pham Minh

Le Tuyen Cu

Tran Tien Danh

Nguyen Hoang Ha

Dang Thanh Thao

Tran Anh Tuan

Nguyen Long Trieu

Nguyen Thanh Phong

Nguyen Thanh Hoai

Truong Nguyen Song Van

Nguyen Thanh Van

Le Phung Nha Phuong

Nguyen Thi Diem

Nguyen Lam

Nguyen Hong Phuong

Chairman of the BOD 

Vice Chairwoman of the BOD

Member of the BOD

Member of the BOD 

Member of the BOD

Independent Member of the BOD

Independent Member of the BOD

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director

Deputy General Director
Deputy General Director cum 
Information Discloser and

Person in charge of corporate
governance

Deputy General Director

Head of Supervisory Board

Member of Supervisory Board

Member of Supervisory Board

Chief Financial Officer

Chief accountant

 40,350,240

  18,189,840

   3,743,660

     572,281

             -

         -

          -

         -

           -

           -

         -

              -

              -

          -

      -

           

-

   2,774,444

               -

            -

             -

             
-

65,630,465

8.48%

3.82%

0.79%

0.12%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.58%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

13.79%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

-

-

-

-

    -

       -

       -

-

  -

         -

-

-

         -

        -

-

-

-

        -

    -

-

  
-

Type
of
shareholder

Full name Position Direct
ownership

Indirect
ownership

RatioRatioNo.

1

2

3

Major shareholders owning 5% or

more of the stock are not PSI

- Domestic

- Foreign

PSI is a major shareholder owning
5% or more of the stock

- Domestic

- Foreign

PSI is a shareholder owning <5%

of the stock
- Domestic

- Foreign

TOTAL 

 
78,594,898

  78,594,898

-

-

-

-

13,535,745

807

13,534,938

92,130,643

16.50%

16.50%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

2.84%

0.00%

2.84%

19.34%

2

  2

 -

-

 -

 -

43

  24

19

45

     
1

1

    -

 
 -

 -

     -

 
43

24

19

44

   
1

1

   -

-

 -

   -

-

-

1

No. Items Number
of

shares

Ownership
ratio

%

Number
of

shareholders

Shareholder
structure (people)

Organization Individual

1

2

Hoang Quan Group
Company Limited

Truong Anh Tuan

Total

0313763585

024257249

20/04/2016

20/07/2006

38,244,658

40,350,240

78,594,898

8.02%

8.48%

16.50%

286-288

Huynh Van Banh Street,

Ward 11, Phu Nhuan Dist.,

HCMC

No. Name of
organization/

individual

ID card/Passport/
Business

registration number

Date
of

issue

Address Number
of

shares

Ownership
ratio
(%)

1

2

Truong Anh Tuan

Nguyen Thanh Van

20,350,240

1,774,444

4.27%

0.37%

40,350,240

2,774,444

8.47%

0.58%

Buy shares

Buy shares

No. Teller Number of shares
at the beginning

of the period

Number of
shares

Ratio Number of
shares

Ratio

Number of shares
at the end of
the period

Reasons for increase
or decrease

(purchase, sale,
conversion, bonus ...)

5. List of major shareholders (owning 5% or more of the stock)

6. List of internal shareholders, authorized persons to disclose information

4. Shareholder structure is major shareholder and professional stock investor (PSI)

0.00%- 0.00%-

Managements
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At 15 Nguyen Luong Bang Street, Tan Phu Ward, District 7, Ho Chi Minh City  
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Mr. Le Tuyen Cu
  Deputy General Director of
Project Investment -  Management

Mr. Pham Minh
Deputy General Director

Mr. Truong Anh Tuan
General Director

Mr. Tran Anh Tuan
  Deputy General Director in
charge of projects in Binh Thuan
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Appointment date: March 23, 2007
Date of reappointment: April 23, 2019

Appointment date: June 22, 2018
Year of birth: 1964
Native place: Quang Nam
Qualification: Construction engineer

Work experience:

Mr. Le Tuyen Cu is a mechanical engineer, a doctorate in 
economics with many years of experience as a technical 
officer, Deputy Director of the company, Deputy Director 
General of the 125 Navy Brigade of the People's Army of 
Vietnam, TB-PT Corporation (Ministry of Trade), 
Government Office (Vietnam Industrial Park 
Management Board), Ministry of Planning and 
Investment. Currently, he is in charge of Deputy General 
Director of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service 
Real Estate Corporation.

Position undertook:
Technical officer of the 125 Navy Brigade, VPA

Deputy Director of Equipment - Spare Parts Corporation, 
Ministry of Trade

Deputy Director General of Government Office (Vietnam 
Industrial Park Management Board)

Deputy Director General of Ministry of Planning and 
Investment

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies: none

Work experience:
Mr. Tran Anh Tuan is a construction engineer with more 
than 40 years of experience in the construction field. Mr. 
Tuan has held important positions at the Department of 
Construction of Binh Thuan province. He joined the 
Hoang Quan Group in 2016.

Position undertook:
Director of Thuy Nong Enterprise, Ham Thuan Bac 
District.

Deputy Director of Binh Thuan Department of Water 
Resources  

Deputy Director of Binh Thuan Department of 
Construction 

irector of Binh Thuan Construction and Trading House 
Joint Stock Company

Director of Binh Thuan Department of Construction

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies:
Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Binh Thuan 
Construction and Trading House Joint Stock Company

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Hoang Quan 
Binh Thuan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
Joint Stock Company

Background information has been presented in the 
introduction of the Board of Directors.

Work experience:

Mr. Pham Minh has many years of experience with role 
as Site Commander, Head of Project Management 
Department,... in construction companies such as 
Investco, Quang Nam Danang Housing Business. 
Currently, he is in charge of General Director of Hoang 
Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
Corporation.

Position undertook:
Site Commander of Investco Construction Investment 
And Development Joint Stock Company

Head of Project Management Department of Hoang 
Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corpo-
ration

Deputy General Director in charge of project manage-
ment of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies:
Chairman of the Members’ Council of Victoria Real 
Estate Management Company Limited

Appointment date: June 22, 2018
Year of birth: 1956
Native place: Hanoi 
Qualification: Doctor of economics, mechanical engineer

Appointment date: March 15, 2016
Year of birth: 1955
Native place: Binh Thuan
Qualification: Hydraulic Construction Engineer



Mrs. Truong Nguyen Song Van
 Deputy General Director of
Finance - Accounting 

Mr. Nguyen Long Trieu
   Deputy Chief Customer Officer 

Mr. Tran Tien Danh
   Deputy General Director in
  charge of Project
 Investment - Management

Mr. Nguyen Van Toan
  Deputy General Director of
Administration - Human Resources
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Appointment date: June 22, 2018
Year of birth: 1976
Native place: Nghe An
Qualification: Master - Architect

Appointment date: June 22, 2018
Year of birth: 1984
Native place: Kien Giang
Qualification: Finance - Banking

Work experience:

Mrs. Truong Nguyen Song Van has extensive 
experience in business administration. She began to 
take on the role of Deputy General Director of Finance - 
Accounting of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation. In addition, she is 
currently the Chairman of Nam Quan Investment Joint 
Stock Company, one of the companies that supplies 
materials, construction materials and retail systems 
throughout the Group and outside.

Position undertook:
Chairman of the BOD of Nam Quan Investment Joint 
Stock Company

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies:
Chairman of the BOD of Nam Quan Investment Joint 
Stock Company

Work experience:

Dr. Nguyen Van Toan has extensive experience in 
business administration and education. He has many 
years of holding business management positions at big 
companies such as Ajinomoto, Gillette,... At the same 
time, Mr. Toan is currently the Principal of the Tay Nam A 
Economic and Technical Vocational Training School and 
the Director of the Institute for Development of Talents & 
Human Resources.

Position undertook:
Business Supervisor of Ajinomoto Vietnam Company

Sales Manager of Gillette Vietnam  

Deputy Sales Director of Saigon Ve Wong Co., Ltd. 

Sales and Marketing Director of Kellogg Vietnam

Lecturer, visiting lecturer at Universities

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies:
Principal of Tay Nam A Economic and Technical Voca-
tional Training School

Director of the Institute for Development of Talents & 
Human Resources

Work experience:
Mr. Tran Tien Danh is an architect with many years of 
experience as the Head of planning design team, project 
manager, Deputy Director cum Head of Planning - 
Infrastructure Department, Head of Project Management 
Board,... in many companies such as SACA 
Construction Consultants Company, Viet Architecture 
Company, Hoang Quan Can Tho Real Estate 
Company... Currently, he is in charge of Deputy 
General Director of Project Investment - Management of 
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
Corporation.

Position undertook:
Head of planning design team, manager of SACA 
Construction Consultants Company

Project design - management specialist of Hoang Quan 
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Co., Ltd_ 
Branch design - construction - home business

Deputy Director cum Head of Planning - Infrastructure 
Viet Architecture Joint Stock Company

Director of Branch of Viet Architecture Joint Stock Com-
pany _ Can Tho Branch

Deputy General Director of Hoang Quan Can Tho Real 
Estate Investment JSC

Head of Project Management II Hoang Quan Consulting 
- Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies: none

Work experience:

Mr. Nguyen Long Trieu has many years of experience as 
a business manager, Sales Director at Dai Phuc Co., 
Ltd., Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation. Currently, he is in charge of Deputy 
General Director of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation.

Position undertook:
Business specialist, Director of Dai Phuc Company 
Limited.

Director of branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation.

Deputy General Director of Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation.

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies: none

Appointment date: January 31, 2019
Year of birth: 1990
Native place: Ninh Thuan
Qualification: Finance - Accounting 

First appointment date: August 1, 2016
Date of reappointment: January 31, 2019
Year of birth: 1971
Native place: Long An 
Qualification: Doctor of Business Administration



Mrs. Nguyen Hong Phuong
Chief Accountant 

Nguyen Thanh Hoai
Deputy General Director in charge
of Legal - Shareholder Relations

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phong
Deputy General Director in
charge of project management

Mr. Nguyen Lam 
Chief Financial Officer 
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Date of reappointment: January 31, 2019
Year of birth: 1964
Native place: An Giang
Qualification: Construction engineer

Appointment date: June 29, 2019
Year of birth: 1979
Native place: Binh Dinh
Qualification: Bachelor of Laws

Work experience:

Mrs. Nguyen Hong Phuong has professional 
qualifications in accounting. She joined Hoang Quan 
Group for nearly 7 years and officially held the position of 
Chief Accountant from October 22, 2015. 

Position undertook:
Deputy Head of Accounting Department of Hoang Quan 
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies: none

Work experience:

Mr. Nguyen Lam has extensive experience in banking 
and finance. He used to hold the position of appraisal at 
Saigon Commercial Joint Stock Bank, Director of 
Corporate Customers at Southeast Asia Commercial 
Joint Stock Bank - Ho Chi Minh City  Branch. He started 
working with Hoang Quan Group from the beginning of 
2013 until now and was officially appointed Chief 
Financial Officer in April 2018. 

Position undertook:
Appraisal Leader of Saigon Commercial Joint Stock 
Bank

Director of Corporate Banking for Southeast Asia 
Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Ho Chi Minh City  Branch

Deputy Chief Financial Officer of Hoang Quan 
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies: 
Deputy Chief Financial Officer of Bao Linh Housing 
Investment - Construction - Development Joint Stock 
Company

Work experience:

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Phong is a construction engineer with 
more than 35 years of experience working at major 
construction companies such as Mien Dong Building 
Company, Construction Company No. 8.1, etc. He 
started working at Hoang Quan Group from 2014 to the 
present

Position undertook: 
Captain of Construction Team 3 Built-in Factory

Site Commander of Mien Dong Building Company

Director of Mien Dong Building Enterprise 4 - Mien Dong 
Building Company

Deputy General Director of Construction Company No. 
8.1

Deputy General Director of Binh Thuan Construction and 
Trading House Joint Stock Company

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies: none

Work experience:

Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hoai is a lawyer with many years of 
experience working in the legal environment, especially 
the law specializing in real estate, M&A projects as a 
legal expert; Deputy Head of Legal Department; Head of 
Shareholder Relations Department; Chairman of the 
Members’ Council of Hoang Quan Law Company 
Limited. Currently, Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hoai holds the 
position of Deputy General Director in charge of Legal - 
Shareholder relations of Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation.

Position undertook:
Head of Legal Department of Bao Linh Investment - 
Construction - Development Joint Stock Company

Head of Legal Department of Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation

Deputy Head of Legal Department of Hoang Quan 
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation

Head of Shareholder Relations Department of Hoang 
Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
Corporation

Chairman of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan Law 
Company Limited

Position holding at other listed companies: none

Position holding in other companies: 
Chairman of the Members’ Council of Hoang Quan Law 
Company Limited

Appointment date: October 22, 2015
Year of birth: 1981
Native place: Tay Ninh 
Qualification: Bachelor of Economics, Chief Accountant

Appointment date: April 4, 2018
Year of birth: 1982
Native place: Gia Lai
Qualification: Bachelor of Economics, CFO
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I. EVALUATION OF MACROECONOMIC SITUATION IN 2019 AND IMPACTS ON THE COMPANY

1. Macroeconomic context 2019
In 2019, the trade instability between the US and 
China and the political issue will significantly increase 
the instability of the global trading system, causing 
significant impacts on business confidence, global 
investment and trade decisions, slowing down the 
world economy.
According to data of the General Statistics Office on 
December 27, 2019, the Gross Domestic Product 
(GDP) in 2019 achieved impressive results with an 
increase of 7.02% exceeding the goal set by the 
National Assembly (from 6, 6% -6.8%). This is the 
second consecutive year that Vietnam's economic 
growth has reached over 7% since 2011. 
Accordingly, GDP growth initially shifted the model 
from mainly relying on capital increase, increasing 
the number of employees, to a model based on 

increasing investment efficiency, increasing labor 
productivity, increasing the productivity of aggregate 
factors (TFP). Growth exceeded the target, but did not 
cause side effects on inflation, bad debt, public debt, 
government debt, foreign debt/GDP. Consumer price 
index (CPI) in 2019 increased by 2.79%. This is the 
lowest increase in the past 3 years, a successful year 
when macroeconomic stability, inflation control under 
the National Assembly target (about 4%). 
In addition, the total foreign investment in Vietnam 
(FDI) in 2019 reached a record high ever with $ 20.38 
billion, up 6.7% compared to 2018. The most 
concentrated investment capital is in the field of 
processing and manufacturing industries, accounting 
for 64.6% of the total registered investment capital; 
Real estate business ranked second, accounting for 
10.2% of total registered investment capital.

2. Impacts on production and business activities of 
the Company.
a) Advantage
Increasing FDI capital into the real estate business 
contributes to boosting the development of the resort 
real estate and industrial real estate segments in 2019. 
This contributes to diversifying investment types of the 
company, expanding new areas towards large-scale 
and high-class products to serve domestic and 
international tourists in big cities as well as tourist 
areas in the country. In addition, a number of housing 
policies of Vietnam prescribed in the Housing Law 
have been more open, allowing foreigners to own 
houses in Vietnam, creating a reassuring mood for 
foreign investors and stimulating them to invest more 
in Vietnam's real estate market.
In parallel, the process of urbanization takes place with 
high speed, the number of population in Ho Chi Minh 
City is increasing (in which the proportion of young 
people and middle-class people tends to increase 
rapidly) along with stable development and a strong 
increase in per capita income have a positive impact 
on output of the company's products on social housing 
in particular and other products in general.

b) Challenge
Along with these advantages, the macro economy has 
created many challenges for the real estate market of 
the Company.
The bank's credit activities in real estate business are 
tightening, specifically, mobilizing and lending interest 
rates are rising, short-term capital sources, medium 
and long-term loans are constantly falling, making 
banks more cautious in lending to real estate 
business. Limited capital flows also make investors 
cautious when investing in real estate.
In 2019, the real estate market in Vietnam has many 
fluctuations due to the widespread situation of land lot 
subdivision and virtual land price fevers in some 
localities, the fraud situation of selling "ghost projects".  
Consequently, many new policies on administrative 
procedures have been strictly controlled on the 
licensing of new projects, leading to a decrease in 
supply, leading to a reduction in real estate 
transactions. On the other hand, a segment of 
customers cheated in conducting transactions related 
to "ghost projects" has negatively affected customers' 
confidence in urban transport planning and 
management.

3. Business results in 2019

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Revenue

Net revenue

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Financial income

Profit from operation

Other profits

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

Basic earnings per share (VND/share) 

788.5

656.3

427.5

228.76

5.6

75.1

-15.2

59.9

41.5

86

532.9

468.5

285.8

182.7

91.6

73.7

-18.6

55.1

42.5

89

255.6

187.8

141.7

46.06

-86

1.4

3.4

4.8

-1

-3

48%

40%

50%

25%

-94%

2%

-18%

9%

-2%

-3%

No. Items 20182019 Change Ratio

Total assets

Short-term assets

Long-term assets

Total liabilities

Current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Equity

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

6,379.5

4,315.3

2,064.2

2,378.3

1,845.4

532.9

4,001.1

720.1

641.4

6,313.8

3,754.8

2,559.0

2,631.3

1,795.3

836.0

3,682.5

31.3

21.6

6,293.6

3,770.3

2,523.3

2,050.2

1,815.2

235.0

4,243.3

85.3

65.4

6,594.4

4,177,5

2,416.8

2,308.8

2,063.1

245.6

4,285.6

55.1

42.5

6,713.4

4,511.4

2,202

2,386.4

2,161.8

224.8

4,327

59.9

41.5

Items 2018201720162015 2019

In 2019, the revenue was VND 788.5 billion reaching 52% of the plan. Profit after tax was VND 41.5 billion,
reaching 29% of the plan. Compared to 2018, revenue increased by 48%, profit after tax decreased by 2%.

a) Property situation: Unit: billion dong

As of December 31, 2019, the total 
value of assets was VND 6,713.4 
billion, of which short-term assets 
accounted for 67.2%, long-term assets 
accounted for 32.8%. The company is 
investing in many projects at the same 
time so the cash amount is low. In 
2019, the company divested at Hoang 
Quan Appraisal Company Limited.
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Profitability ratios of shares
Number of outstanding
shares (share)
Earnings per share (EPS-dong)
Book value per share
(Book Value-dong)
Market value per share at the end
of the period (VND)
Price-to-earnings ratio (P/E)

5
a

b
c

d

e

395,000,000
1,623

10,102

5,300
3.27

426,600,000
47

9,487

2,280
49

476,600,000
137

8,903

2,610
19

476,600,000
89.17

8,992

1,460
16.4

476,600,000
87.07

9,079

1,080
12.4

Indicators of operational capacity
Inventory turnover (cost of goods sold/
average inventory)
Net revenue/Total assets

3
a

b
1.20 
0.22

0,20 
0.15 

0.18
0.06

0.35
0.07

0.58
0.1

Indicator of profitability    
Net income/Net revenue
Net income/Equity ratio
Net income/Total assets
Coefficient of Profit from operating
activities/Net revenue

4
a
b
c
d

46%
16%
10%

30.2

2%
0.5%
0.3%

3%

18%
1.5%
1.0%

27%

9%
0.99%
0.64%

16%

6%
0,96%
0,62%

11%

Indicators of capital structure
Debt ratio/Total assets
Debt Ratio/Equity

2
a
b

0.37
0.59

0.41
0.69

0.33
0.48

0.35
0.54

0.36
0.55

Solvency
Short-term solvency ratio
(Current assets/Short-term debt)
Quick ratio ([Current assets - Inventory]
/Current liabilities)

1
a

b
2.34

1.84

2.43

2.03

2.08

1.59

2.02

1.65

2.09

1.76

No. 2018201720162015Financial indicators 2019

b) The main financial indicators:

II. OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS IN 2019

II. SITUATION OF INVESTMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF BUSINESS PRODUCTION ACTIVITIES

In order to optimally exploit resources, the Company 
has been deploying and participating in each activity 
according to its operation fields, continuing to seek 
and select partners in accordance with development 
strategies in each period.
In the field of real estate, at the "Vietnam - Romania 
Business Forum" on April 15, 2019, representing 
Hoang Quan Group, Hoang Quan Valuation Company 
(HQA) one of the associates in Hoang Quan Group 
signed a cooperation agreement with ONE UP S.R.L. 
Under this agreement, the two parties will promote 
investment opportunities for cooperation in the two 
countries in the field of valuation (assets, businesses, 
investment projects, real estate, resources...), invest-

ment advice. investment (real estate, M&A...), market 
research and some other cooperation portfolios. In 
addition, on May 22, 2019, Dr. Truong Thai Son - 
Member of the Board of Directors of Hoang Quan 
Company is honored to be one of the representative 
businesses to participate in exchanges with business-
es in the Russian Federation to promote the situation 
of business and economic development in the country, 
as well such as contact and relationship building. 
In the field of Design - Construction, on December 18, 
2019 at Ho Chi Minh City University of Architecture, 
Hoang Quan Group signed a strategic cooperation 
agreement with Ho Chi Minh City University of Archi-
tecture. Accordingly, the two parties agreed to coordi-

nate to organize the implementation of scientific 
research applications in practical production and 
construction at Hoang Quan Group, in which the Ho 
Chi Minh City University of Architecture is responsible 
for introducing experts, scientists who meet the 
requirements of professional competence to 
participate in the implementation of the projects. In 
addition, Hoang Quan Group will provide full facilities 
for Ho Chi Minh City University of Architecture with full 

rights to construction works at the Urban Area and 
Mekong University project as a training base for Ho 
Chi Minh City University of Architecture in Can Tho in 
the next 5 years (from 2020 to 2025). 
In 2019, the Board of Management continued to 
implement personnel related activities in the direction 
of streamlining and streamlining the personnel 
apparatus to meet the requirements of an optimal and 
sustainable development strategy.

Hoang Quan Company and associates have been 
promoting investment and trading in commercial real 
estate. This includes a wide range of products such as 
commercial houses, offices for rent, officetel, 
commercial centers and types of industrial park land, 
warehouses, factories ...
In addition, in all social housing projects invested by 
the Company, 20% of the apartments are commercial 
houses and trading-service trading floors of 
commercial real estate. These products are not 
restricted in profit limits and selling prices like social 
housing products.

Not only is a pioneer in social housing development, 
Hoang Quan Company also invests and cooperates in 
other types of commercial real estate such as resort 
real estate (sea villas, condotels); real estate and busi-
ness (shophouse, officetel); apartments with diverse 
customer segments from high-end, mid-end to 
low-priced apartments; industrial park real estate such 
as land, factories and port services, warehouses, 
entertainment services ...

1. PROJECTS INVESTED BY HOANG QUAN 
COMPANY
1.1 Social housing projects:
Tra Vinh New Urban Area Project located in the admin-
istrative center of Tra Vinh province with an area of 18 
ha, invested in synchronous superior facilities. Up to 
now, Hoang Quan Company has delivered over 300 
products, many residents have moved in, creating a 
busy space for the urban area. The company contin-
ues to accelerate the construction progress with the 
expectation of early handover to customers. Besides, 
Tra Vinh Trade Center located right in the center of Tra 
Vinh New Urban Area project, which was started in late 
2018 under the traditional market model with a total 
investment of VND 42 billion built on a construction 
area of over 4,000 m2. The project is under construc-
tion as scheduled.

HQC Binh Trung Dong Project in Binh Trung Dong 
ward, district 2,  HCMC invested by Hoang Quan 
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation 
has officially been topped off and completed the entire 
rough part of the project on April 5, 2019. After taking 
off the roof, service - utility works are soon being 
completed, expected to complete the project by the 
end of the third quarter of 2020 to hand over the 
apartment to customers soon.
HQC Nha Trang project located in Bac Vinh Hai 
Residential Area, Nha Trang City with favorable 
geographical location and rich natural environment. 
The project is designed with more than 1,000 apart-
ments including 4 blocks. Currently, the project has 
completed Block A2, B2 and put into use, Block A1 
and B1 are expected to be completed in the second 
quarter of 2020.

Actual image of Tra Vinh New Urban Area Project
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Victoria Premium Project (HQC My Tho) located in My 
Tho city, Tien Giang province has completed the civil 
work of the project. The project is expected to be com-
pleted in the fourth quarter of 2020, soon handing over 
the apartment on schedule so that customers have a 
place to settle down.
Project (HQC Tan Huong) has now completed 
construction and completion of some basic infrastruc-
ture items/works have been carried out such as project 
operator, electricity and water system, transportation 
system, transformer station, etc. CN3- Block C is 
constructing reinforced concrete frame to the 5th floor; 
CN3- Block D has completed construction of ground 
beam and technical system, preparing to pour 
concrete on the first floor. In addition, the project is 

1.2 Commercial projects
Project of Ham Tien - Mui Ne - Binh Thuan Service - 
Tourism Center with the scale of 198ha, a decision has 
been made to adjust the policy of the joint venture of 
02 investors, namely Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation and Hai 
Phat Investment Joint Stock Company. Currently, the 
project is carrying out the necessary works in each 
stage and schedule as committed (implementing 

applying to adjust the planning into a part of high-rise 
apartments to low-rise apartments and adjacent 
houses.
Golden City Project (HQC Tay Ninh) in 2019, some 
procedures related to adjusting project scale planning 
have been implemented to suit the actual needs of 
social housing products in Tay Ninh province.
HQC Plaza project was officially inaugurated on 
November 23, 2019. The project is located at Nguyen 
Van Linh Street, An Phu Tay Ward,  Ho Chi Minh City, 
known as one of the largest social projects in  HCMC 
with a total investment of nearly VND 1,800 billion with 
1,735 high-quality apartments and full utility services 
for people to have a good home and peace of mind to 
work. 

Complex Apartment HQC Plaza was officially established on 23rd of November, 2019

procedures related to the area of Titan and land 
acquisition mechanism).
Mekong University Project has completed construction 
of Zone B1 (5 floors), total floor area of 6,449.8 m2 with 
20 classrooms in Thuong Thanh ward, Cai Rang 
district,  Can Tho city as a training facility for Ho Chi 
Minh City University of Architecture in Can Tho in the 
next 5 years (from 2020 to 2025).

HOF - HQC Ho Hoc Lam social housing project located 
at Ho Hoc Lam Street, An Lac Ward, Binh Tan District,  
HCMC, is the first project implemented in the form of 
public - private cooperation between the investor, 
HCMC Housing Development Fund and Hoang Quan 
Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
Corporation, a cooperation - business unit. After a 
period of effort and implementation, the project with a 
total investment of VND 608 billion has been 
inaugurated and ready to go into operation, serving the 
housing needs for social housing objects in  Ho Chi 
Minh City.

Blue Sea Tower project located on the front of Nguyen 
Hoi street, located in the center of Phan Thiet city is 
invested by Binh Thuan Construction and Trading 
House Joint Stock Company, Hoang Quan Consulting 
- Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation 
cooperates to develop the project. On September 20, 
2019, the first social housing project in Binh Thuan 
province was inaugurated in the joy of residents, 
nearly 100% of apartments were handed over to 
people and put into use.

2. PROJECTS WITH CO-OPERATION FOR INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT OF HOANG QUAN COMPANY 

IV. REPORT RELATING TO ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

Nam Phan Thiet New Urban Area located at the edge 
of the Industrial Park, easy to move to industrial parks 
and adjacent residential areas. Currently, the project 
has completed 132 apartments, 319 have built the 
foundation and ground beam. This will definitely be an 
ideal stop for people in Binh Thuan to settle and invest 
as well.
Golden King Project invested by Indochina Real Estate 
Development Investment Corporation, Hoang Quan 
Company is the cooperation and development unit of 
the project including international standard 
commercial center and apartment complexes 
combined with officetel, outstanding with luxurious and 
modern style, was officially inaugurated on October 

19, 2019. The building has an advantage of a golden 
front three position, located in the most vibrant 
economic and financial center of District 7,  Ho Chi 
Minh City.
Long Hoa Trade Center Project invested by Hoang 
Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
Corporation in investment and business cooperation 
with Tay Ninh Urban Development & Construction 
Joint Stock Company, started construction on April 26, 
2017, officially completed and put into use Zone C - D 
on January 21, 2019, has handed over to customers 
40%. Currently, the investor is continuing to implement 
phase II of Zone A - B, awaiting the State clearance 
decision to hand over the ground.

Hoang Quan Company is always aware that the 
performance of an enterprise is not only measured by 
its business results but also from the value of its 
contributions to the community and society. 
The company is always aware of corporate 
responsibility to society, respecting and ensuring the 
interests of stakeholders with the desire to associate 
the development of the business with customers, 
society and the community to join hands to build a 
better life.
In 2019, the Company spent more than VND 4 billion 
on social security, supporting the community for the 
development of the company, which is always 

associated with sustainable values for the community.
In the construction process, the Company always 
complies with the current standards and regulations on 
environmental impact assessment and requires the 
contractors and suppliers to comply. At the same time, 
they are solutions to help save and limit wastefulness 
of energy and raw materials to fulfill environmental 
responsibility, and at the same time apply advanced, 
environmentally friendly and creating green spaces in 
the design and implementation of projects. 
Details are presented in the content of "Sustainable 
Development Report".

V. OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES FOR BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 2020
1. Opportunity
Housing demand and FDI
Demand for housing in Vietnam is still very large. 
Because the current urbanization process is taking 
place at a faster pace, the urban population will also 
increase, especially in large cities; The population 
structure is mostly of working age people, the income 
per capita also increases gradually with the rate of 
urbanization. Therefore, this is considered a main and 
sustainable source of housing market due to the 
people having real needs in buying to live. Besides, 
the demand for offices, apartments for rent, hotels and 
commercial buildings has also increased rapidly, 
especially the demand for apartments.
At the same time, the segment of tourism real estate, 
resort real estate and industrial real estate has a huge 
development potential. In the short, medium and long 
term, this will become a segment with very good 
development momentum, if investors know the 
opportunities and the State has policies to encourage, 
support and create favorable conditions for the market 
to develop commensurate with the available potential.
FDI capital inflows into the real estate business have 
increased sharply and increasingly substantially, the 
attention of the state and the private sector in investing 
in new infrastructure is also expected to create 
momentum for the development of the market. stability.

Regarding preferential credit sources for social 
housing and policies and regulations related to 
social housing  
Regarding preferential credit sources, in order to 
promote the development of social houses, in the 
content of Resolution 41/NQ-CP the Prime Minister 
requests the Ministry of Planning and Investment to 
assume the prime responsibility and coordinate with 
the ministries and agencies related to the Ministry of 
Planning and Investment, the Company shall balance 
VND 1,000 billion with Vietnam Bank for Social 
Policies under Resolution No. 71/2018/QH14 and 
supplement VND 2,000 billion to subsidize interest 
rates for 04 commercial banks appointed by the State 
Bank of Vietnam to provide support for social housing 
loans. Since the time of the VND 30,000 billion credit 
package ended in June 2016, a series of social 
housing projects lacked capital, so the schedule was 
delayed, people borrowed to buy social houses but 
had not received houses in 2016 also no longer 
allowed to borrow preferentially, but had to switch to 
commercial loans, so both project investors and social 
housing borrowers face many difficulties, this is good 
news for the real estate market, especially in the field 
of social housing development and a timely support 
policy, creating a great liquidity for social housing not 
only for investors but also for buying houses for 
low-income people. 

In addition, the Government also assigned the Ministry 
of Construction to study and propose amendments 
and supplements to a number of inadequacies in 
Decree No. 100/2015/ND-CP for submission to the 
Government for consideration and issuance in the 
fourth quarter of 2020 in the order of shortened 

procedures. At the same time, it proposes to renovate 
methods and mechanisms to solve housing issues for 
low-income groups. Coordinate with localities, 
especially  Hanoi City and Ho Chi Minh City to focus on 
directing and implementing well the tasks and 
solutions to promote the development of social 
housing, meeting the needs of low-income people, 
especially workers.
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1. Opportunity
Housing demand and FDI
Demand for housing in Vietnam is still very large. 
Because the current urbanization process is taking 
place at a faster pace, the urban population will also 
increase, especially in large cities; The population 
structure is mostly of working age people, the income 
per capita also increases gradually with the rate of 
urbanization. Therefore, this is considered a main and 
sustainable source of housing market due to the 
people having real needs in buying to live. Besides, 
the demand for offices, apartments for rent, hotels and 
commercial buildings has also increased rapidly, 
especially the demand for apartments.
At the same time, the segment of tourism real estate, 
resort real estate and industrial real estate has a huge 
development potential. In the short, medium and long 
term, this will become a segment with very good 
development momentum, if investors know the 
opportunities and the State has policies to encourage, 
support and create favorable conditions for the market 
to develop commensurate with the available potential.
FDI capital inflows into the real estate business have 
increased sharply and increasingly substantially, the 
attention of the state and the private sector in investing 
in new infrastructure is also expected to create 
momentum for the development of the market. stability.

Regarding preferential credit sources for social 
housing and policies and regulations related to 
social housing  
Regarding preferential credit sources, in order to 
promote the development of social houses, in the 
content of Resolution 41/NQ-CP the Prime Minister 
requests the Ministry of Planning and Investment to 
assume the prime responsibility and coordinate with 
the ministries and agencies related to the Ministry of 
Planning and Investment, the Company shall balance 
VND 1,000 billion with Vietnam Bank for Social 
Policies under Resolution No. 71/2018/QH14 and 
supplement VND 2,000 billion to subsidize interest 
rates for 04 commercial banks appointed by the State 
Bank of Vietnam to provide support for social housing 
loans. Since the time of the VND 30,000 billion credit 
package ended in June 2016, a series of social 
housing projects lacked capital, so the schedule was 
delayed, people borrowed to buy social houses but 
had not received houses in 2016 also no longer 
allowed to borrow preferentially, but had to switch to 
commercial loans, so both project investors and social 
housing borrowers face many difficulties, this is good 
news for the real estate market, especially in the field 
of social housing development and a timely support 
policy, creating a great liquidity for social housing not 
only for investors but also for buying houses for 
low-income people. 

In addition, the Government also assigned the Ministry 
of Construction to study and propose amendments 
and supplements to a number of inadequacies in 
Decree No. 100/2015/ND-CP for submission to the 
Government for consideration and issuance in the 
fourth quarter of 2020 in the order of shortened 

2. Challenge
Difficulties in regulations and legal procedures
The legal document system is incomplete and 
incomplete, especially the regulations related to new 
types such as condotel, officetel have not had a 
complete legal framework. This is considered a huge 
challenge for the real estate market in 2020 if this 
bottleneck has not been removed. 
In addition, some new legal documents related to the 
field of land have stricter regulations than the old ones. 
Specifically: 
• Decree 91/2019/ND-CP handling of administrative 

violations in the field of land has tightened the 
sanctions on land sale and purchase without red 
books. In addition, the transfer, gift, lease, 
mortgage of land use rights when not eligible are 
also subject to a fine, the level of fine depending on 
the violation, area (rural, urban). This regulation will 
limit the widespread sale of plots and "abandoned 
projects".

• Decree 96/2019/ND-CP regulations on land price 
bracket, increase in land price bracket. The 
increase in the land price bracket will cause the 
land use levy calculation of real estate projects to 
increase immediately. At the same time, it will 
impact the new project supply. Because, it is 
difficult for enterprises to manage the land use fee 
and the investors will definitely charge the land 
price into the selling price for people. On the other 
hand, the adjustment of the local land price frame 
will most clearly affect the business costs of 
businesses because they are paying annual rent. 
Increasing land prices mean that the cost of renting 
land is likely to be recalculated, increasing 
depending on the locality. This will affect the price 
of products, creating pressure to increase prices 

and localities to consider. 
• Circular No. 07/2019/TT-BTP guide a number of 

contents on registering mortgage of land use rights 
and assets attached to land. To add cases of 
mortgage registration of housing construction 
investment projects, construction investment 
projects on construction of houses other than 
houses and other construction investment projects 
according to the provisions of law.

Outbreak of pandemic pneumonia caused by a new 
strain of Corona virus (Covid-19)
In a time when the world is having trade tensions and 
a lot of social instability, the pandemic pneumonia 
caused by a new strain of Corona virus (Covid-19) has 
suddenly appeared to put more pressure on the 
domestic economy and weaken prospects for the real 
estate market, causing great impacts on the global 
economy in Q1 and even Q2/2020. The disease has 
the potential to significantly affect segments such as 
retail, office and industrial real estate. Most businesses 
are facing unprecedented challenges, the impact of 
the disease will likely continue to affect the market for 
many years to come, and it will take some time to 
achieve the full recovery.
However, from March 2020 until now, the Government 
has issued timely regulations and policies to support 
businesses and people to overcome difficulties, 
restore production and business activities due to the 
impact of Covid-19 as capital support packages 
according to Directive 11/CT-TTg dated March 4, 2020 
of the Prime Minister, tax support according to Official 
Letter 897/TCT-QLN dated March 3, 2020 of the 
General Department of Taxation,...

VI. BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND ORIENTATIONS REVENUE, PROFIT PLAN 

1

2

3

4

Gross sale

Collective revenue

Profit before tax

Profit after tax

1,019

200

79

63

No. Items 2020

Unit: billions dong

Based on the macro context and the actual situation of investment in the Company, the Board of Management sets 
a 2020 plan with total revenue VND 1,219 billion and profit after tax VND 63 billion. 
In addition, the plan orientation for the period 2020-2025, the Board of Management has set a plan for after-tax 
profit of the Company each year from VND 100 billion. This revenue is expected to come from projects invested by 
the Company and projects of the Company cooperating, M&A, ... with units inside and outside the Group.

Entering 2020, Hoang Quan will start to implement the first stage of development strategy 
with the goal: Becoming a leading real estate investor in Vietnam and Asean region.

BUSINESS ORIENTATIONS FOR 2020 AND THE PERIOD 2020-2025

In order to implement the 2020 plan, which is also a 
premise for the period of 2020-2025, especially in the 
context that the global economy is affected by the 
Covid - 19 epidemic, the Board of Management has 
submitted to the BOD a number of basic business 
orientations of the Company. Specifically:
1. Focus on a number of quick investments and 
quick payback

• Make the most of the product lines and utilities of 
the invested projects;
• Promote the purchasing, re-creating and exploiting 
newly un-invested land funds in operating projects;
• Concentrate on developing adjacent land funds 
belonging to invested projects.

2. Continuing the development orientation of social 
housing, worker accommodation as the focus of the 
production and business plan in 2020 and the 
period 2020-2025.
Although there are still many challenges and challeng-
es, Hoang Quan Group is always aware that social 
housing and worker housing projects are specific 
projects as part of the Government's social security 
housing development target program. Especially, with 
the premise that the achievement achieved through 
the implementation of social housing projects, worker 
housing and mindset is one of the pioneering units. 
Therefore, Hoang Quan Group continues to orient the 
development of social housing, worker accommoda-
tion as the focus of the production and business plan in 
2020 and the period 2020-2025 to continue contribut-
ing to the Government to carry out the mission of 
developing social houses and houses for workers. In 
addition, in the period 2020-2025, the Company will 
need to focus on speeding up the progress of invest-
ment projects to ensure the completion of the schedule 
and increase the efficiency of capital turnover. 
3. Promoting comprehensive cooperation with each 
type of product and service towards the goal of 
optimal efficiency in investment.
In addition to the projects invested by Hoang Quan 
Company, the Company will promote comprehensive 
cooperation, especially giving priority to cooperation 
with associated units in the Group to optimize the 
power of the entire system to create into an effective 
link chain, bringing high and stable profits to ensure 
revenue and profit.
At the same time, the market research and search for 
potential projects to seize timely investment opportuni-
ties should be focused by the Company to create new 
land funds, new projects to create continuity, timely 
investment. In addition, it is necessary to promote 
cooperation with domestic and foreign investors, M&A 
of potential projects, high efficiency to increase capital 
in the process of investing projects in Ho Chi Minh City 
and other neighboring provinces. At the same time, 
consider divesting, transferring, cooperating for 

procedures. At the same time, it proposes to renovate 
methods and mechanisms to solve housing issues for 
low-income groups. Coordinate with localities, 
especially  Hanoi City and Ho Chi Minh City to focus on 
directing and implementing well the tasks and 
solutions to promote the development of social 
housing, meeting the needs of low-income people, 
especially workers.

large-scale investment projects or projects that are no 
longer suitable to the business strategy to minimize 
capital costs, avoid liquidity risks, seeking solutions to 
maximize the efficiency of capital use in case the Com-
pany's financial resources have not been able to meet 
the demand, creating a large number of unfinished 
products affecting liquidity, increasing capital costs.
4.Investing in diversifying products to balance 
revenue sources
Besides the main product line is social housing, the 
Company needs to promote investment, investment 
cooperation and business in other types of commercial 
real estate to create a variety of product types, ensure 
revenue, improve profits for the Company. In particu-
lar, it is possible to consider the commercial real estate 
product lines including commercial housing products, 
resort real estate in areas with tourism potential (sea 
villas and condotels), office real estate, tourism, 
convalescence (high-end, land plots, real estate and 
business (shophouse and officetel), industrial park 
(workshop, warehouse), high-tech agricultural real 
estate.
5. Strongly apply information technology in 
administration, investment and business activities
The company will also focus on promoting the 
application of information technology throughout its 
operations from management, office to design, 
construction, sales, etc. in order to improve operational 
efficiency and save money, limit environmental 
impacts, increase the uniformity of the system to 
create a faster, more dynamic development platform 
and ensure a more stable and stable development in 
the 2020-2025 strategy. 
6. Focus on human resource development
In parallel with production and business activities, 
more attention should be paid to the development of 
human resources through specific objectives: 
Strengthening training, especially in-depth training, 
improving the quality of human resources in parallel 
with the management and efficient use of human 
resources; apply and operate the application of infor-
mation technology to meet timely advanced technolo-
gy trends as well as the Group's development speed in 
the period of 2020-2025.

GENERAL DIRECTOR

Dr. TRUONG ANH TUAN
Recipients: 
- Annual General Meeting 
  of Shareholders 2020;
- Board of Management;
- BOD, SB;
- Archives.
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Social housing - Pioneer in the lead

Although there are still many difficulties and 
challenges, but with the awareness of social housing 
projects and housing for workers are specific 
projects that are part of the Government's social 
security housing development target program. In 
particular, with the premise that the achievement 
achieved through the implementation of social 
housing projects, worker housing and mentality is 
one of the pioneers; Hoang Quan Group continues to 
orient the development of social houses, houses for 
workers as a key investment segment, a focus in 
business and production plans in the period of 
2020-2025 to continue contributing to the 
Government to carry out the mission of developing 
social houses and houses for workers.

Up to now (more than 7 years of implementing social 
housing projects since 2013), Hoang Quan Group 
has distributed more than 5,000 social houses to 
social housing objects, at the same time, many 
typical projects are speeding up the construction 
progress and in the process of completion and 
handover and use. Currently, Hoang Quan Company 
has transferred 3,846 apartments at HQC Plaza 
project, HQC Hoc Mon project, Thuong Thanh 
residential project, HQC Phu Tai project, HOF-HQC 
Ho Hoc Lam project and is handing over apartments 
in HQC Nha Trang project; Tra Vinh HQC project in 
stages. Next in 2020, Hoang Quan Company will 
hand over 9,000 apartments and is expected to hand 
over more than 14,000 apartments in 2021 to 
promptly meet the urgent housing needs of policy 
beneficiaries and low-income people in Ho Chi Minh 
City and southern provinces. 

Enhance cooperation - Reach to the highest level

In addition to the projects invested by Hoang Quan 
Company, the Company will promote comprehensive 
cooperation to ensure revenue and profit. In 
particular, the priority to cooperate with businesses in 
the Group will help the Company to maximize the 
benefits from the power of the whole system to form 
an effective operation chain, to bring high and solid 
profits.

Search and cooperate for projects with clean land 
fund, clear and transparent project legal documents, 
good potential position to seize timely investment 
opportunities, ensure maximum benefits of 
customers and investors... At the same time, review 
and divest projects with low efficiency, promote 
investment, joint venture, partnership with domestic 

and foreign investors, M&A of potential and projects 
with high efficiency to increase strengthening capital 
in the process of investing in projects in Ho Chi Minh 
City and other neighboring provinces.

Diverse products - Optimize revenue

Although defining the main product line as social 
housing, the cash flow from customers buying social 
housing is relatively slow due to the fact that the 
preferential capital of social housing has not been 
disbursed. Therefore, the Company besides the 
main product line is social housing, the Company 
also promotes investment, cooperation in investment 
and business in other types of commercial real 
estate to create diversity in "shopping carts" in order 
to meet the needs, tastes of customers and the real 
estate market in accordance with each stage. In 
addition, the diversification of products is also to 
ensure revenue, improve profits for the Company to 
create optimal efficiency in investment and business. 
Typical products such as: resort real estate (sea 
villas, condotels); real estate for accommodation and 
business (shophouse, officetel); apartments with 
diverse customer segments from high-end, mid-end 
to low-priced apartments; The real estate of 
industrial parks such as bottom land, workshops and 
port services, warehouses, entertainment services, 
high-tech agricultural real estate... has been invested 
and supplemented by the Company, gradually 
increasing the proportion in product structure, in 
order to effectively exploit the currently owned land 
fund. 

Industrial parks including Binh Minh Industrial Park 
and Ham Kiem I Industrial Park with modern 
synchronous infrastructure, complete transportation 
system and many preferential policies for 
businesses,... have been attracting many investors 
interested in and negotiated cooperation. 

In addition, the focus on maximizing the product lines 
and utilities of the invested projects, especially the 
social housing project. Besides, the Company has 
strongly implemented the acquisition, regeneration 
and new exploitation of unused land funds in its 
active projects in order to maximize the revenue 
sources, contribute to improving business results 
and aiming to ensure the interests of shareholders 
and partners, customers.

Technological innovation - Intellect reaches out
In addition to the training programs, intensive 
assessments for each specialty, the Company also 
promotes the search for additional good staff, 
especially leading personnel. Besides, the Company 
is also interested in applying, deploying the applica-

tion of information technology programs and 
software in investment, design, project management, 
production, business, sales, customer care,... with 
the aim of promptly responding to new technology 
trends and promoting the investment in real estate 
business with optimal efficiency.
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Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation

Loation: Xuan Thoi Dong Commune, Hoc Mon 
District, Ho Chi Minh City

Land area: 11,899.3 m2

Status quo: 
Completed and handed over to use.

Utilities:
Located in the heart of Hoc Mon district, possessing a 
prime location, right in the crowded residential center 
and near the administrative center of Hoc Mon 
district, only 200m from Highway 22, the arterial road 
connecting the center of HCMC and Cu Chi, Moc Bai 
- Tay Ninh. Infrastructure has been invested 
completely and modernly. No need to go far, just at 
HQC Hoc Mon complex, you have all the fun with 
family and friends, through the chain of coffee shops 
and luxury restaurants, always ready to meet all the 
needs of life.

Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation

Loation: An Phu Tay Commune, Binh Chanh District, 
Ho Chi Minh City

Land area: 35,290 m2

Status quo: 
Completed and handed over to use.

Utilities:
As one of the largest social housing projects in  Ho 
Chi Minh City, with convenient transportation system, 
convenient to move to Vo Van Kiet Boulevard and 
busy urban area of Phu My Hung. Besides, the health 
of the residents is always ensured by the green space 
of trees, the life and activities of the residents are 
always convenient by the surrounding service - 
commercial - utility areas such as: markets, 
supermarkets, expanded university villages, bus 
stations,...

SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

HQC PLAZA

1,751
BILLION

TOTAL
INVESTMENT 1,735

APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTS

SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

HQC HOC MON

579
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 560

APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTSVND



Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation

Loation: Ward 4, Tra Vinh city, Tra Vinh province

Land area: 176,908.9 m2

Status quo:
Completed phase 1, completed 300/1,233 
townhouses

Utilities:
As the first townhouse project in Tra Vinh city, it is 
designed in European style, living life with full utilities 
around such as schools, parks, markets, food streets, 
medical stations, eco-tourism... The project is located 
in the administrative center of Tra Vinh province, with 
adjacent sides to Tiem Tuong Canal and Long Binh 
River, this is considered the golden area of Tra Vinh 
city.

Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation

Loation: Zone E - Bac Vinh Hai residential area, 
Vinh Hoa ward, Nha Trang city

Land area: 10,842.8 m2

Status quo:
Handover of blocks A2 and B2 has been completed, 
and handover of other blocks are being completed in 
2020

Utilities:
Located in the Bac Vinh Hai urban area - the city 
center with 4 bustling facades, convenient to move to 
the central, administrative and tourist locations. HQC 
Nha Trang apartment is an ideal residence for young 
couples as well as those who are working and living in 
Nha Trang city with average income. Here, residents 
will enjoy fresh living space, beautiful scenery and 
outstanding facilities such as: trading center, park, 
swimming pool,...
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SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

HQC NHA TRANG
SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

TRA VINH NEW URBAN AREA

  

 1,002
APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTS  1,233
TOWNHOUSE

PRODUCTS779
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 800

BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT



Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation

Loation: Binh Trung Dong Ward, District 2, Ho Chi 
Minh City

Land area: 4,299.8 m2

Status quo:
Under construction, expected to be completed in 
2020

Utilities:
Located on the arterial road of District 2 - the intersec-
tion of Do Xuan Hop and Nguyen Duy Trinh streets, 
residents living here will be convenient to move to the 
central districts of the city. This is the place with the 
highest density of world-class service systems such 
as: trade centers, chains of international hospitals and 
schools. In addition, the project is also located in the 
expanded Thu Thiem urban planning complex and 
short connected to the Eastern urban center with new 
and synchronous infrastructure. 

Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation
Loation: Tan Huong commune, Chau Thanh district, 
Tien Giang province
Land area: 60,049 m2

Status quo:
Zone CN3-Block C is constructing reinforced 
concrete frame to the 5th floor, completed in the 
fourth quarter of 2020; Zone CN3- Block D has 
completed the construction of the ground beam and 
the technical system, preparing to pour concrete on 
the first floor, completed in the fourth quarter of 2020; 
CN3- Blocks A and B completed in the fourth 
quarter/2021; CN1- CN2 Quarter IV/2021
Utilities: 
This is the largest social housing project in Tien Giang 
province, adjacent to Tan Huong industrial park, near 
Long Giang industrial park and in the Southwest key 
economic region. With strategic location and 
increasingly improved transportation system, it only 
takes 20 minutes to the center of My Tho city and 
easy connection to Ho Chi Minh City - Trung Luong 
highway. The apartments are combined and 
distributed reasonably, alternating between green 
areas of up to 1.6ha with public facilities such as 
shopping centers, parks, tennis courts, dining areas, 
entertainment.
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SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

HQC TAN HUONG

  

SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

HQC BINH TRUNG DONG

260
APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTS 3,057
APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTS348
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 1,094

BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT



Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation
Loation: Nguyen Trung Truc, Quarter 7, Ward 3, 
My Tho City, Tien Giang Province
Land area: 4,078.25 m2   

Status quo:   
Block A: Construction to terrace floor, reaching 100% 
of reinforced concrete frame and 100% of wall 
brickwork, Block B: Construction to terrace floor, 
reaching 100% of reinforced concrete frame and 
100% of wall brickwork and plastering, Block C: 
Construction to the 10th floor, reaching 100% of 
reinforced concrete frame; to be completed in the 
fourth quarter of 2020
Utilities:
It is the first and special social housing project 
dedicated to cadres, workers, officials and 
low-income people in  My Tho city. The project owns 
convenient transportation location, directly connected 
with major roads such as Hung Vuong, Ap Bac, Nam 
Ky Khoi Nghia. Coming to Victoria Premium, 
customers will have the opportunity to own the house 
with the cheapest price but still ensure the best quality 
of construction, with a full system of internal facilities 
such as parks, supermarkets, swimming pools, sport 
room,...

Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation

Loation: Ward 2, Tay Ninh city, Tay Ninh province

Land area: 33,540.7 m2   

Status quo:   
Construction started, expected to be completed in 
2021

Utilities:
Possessing a perfect location in the heart of the city of 
Tay Ninh, the project is the golden focal point 
converging the best residential elements such as 
modern architecture, airy space, convenient 
transportation, easy to connect to complete public 
facilities such as Tay Ninh market, Tay Ninh bus 
station, PPC, hospital, 30/4 park,...
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SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

GOLDEN CITY

  

250
APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTS 2,498
APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTS

SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

VICTORIA PREMIUM

130
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 1,120

BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT



SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

HOF - HQC HO HOC LAM
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Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation

Loation: Nguyen Ai Quoc Street, Quang Vinh Ward, 
Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province

Land area: 5,929.9 m2   

Status quo:   
Agreements on technical infrastructure connection  at 
the project have been completed, site clearance has 
been completed, basic design has been appraised, 
construction technical design documents are being 
appraised, and under the process of issuing LURCs

Utilities:
Located on the front of Nguyen Ai Quoc street, right 
on the main road connecting  Bien Hoa city and 
HCMC. Coming to Bien Hoa Glory high-class social 
housing, residents will own comfortable apartments, 
with diverse service chains right at their place such as 
coffee shop chains, luxury restaurants, swimming 
pools, kindergartens... Around the building are 
shopping centers, state administrative agencies, bus 
stations... After exhausting working days, breathe the 
air and enjoy the green space at Bien Hoa Glory. 

Investor:
Ho Chi Minh City Housing Development Fund
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment - 
Construction - Business)

Loation: No. 35, Ho Hoc Lam, An Lac Ward, Binh Tan 
District, Ho Chi Minh City

Land area: 12,382.5 m2  

Status quo:   
Completed and handed over to use

Utilities:
Located in the existing residential area next to the 
administrative area of Binh Tan District. The project is 
sandwiched between two arterial roads going to the 
central area of the city, at the same time, connecting 
to western provinces through two major roads: Kinh 
Duong Vuong and Vo Van Kiet. It is a social housing 
project, but still ensures full of internal facilities such 
as shopping centers, green parks, kindergartens, 
gym, cafe... ensures a comfortable life for residents 
ensures a comfortable and convenient life for 
residents.

SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

BIEN HOA GLORY

435
APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTS 718
APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTS535
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 609

BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT
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Investor:
Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - 
Service Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)
Loation: My Loi hamlet, My Hoa commune, Binh 
Minh town, Vinh Long province (belonging to Binh 
Minh Residential Area and of Binh Minh Port - Indus-
trial Zone - Residential Area)
Products: 216 townhouses and 876 apartments

Status quo:   
Completed the foundation, expected to be completed 
in 2022

Utilities:
Phuc Long Quarter is located in a prime location right 
in front of National Highway 1A, the gateway to the 
urban. This is a golden position in the overall urban 
area, very convenient for business. It possesses its 
own unique advantages, meeting all the needs of a 
high-class, prosperous life and easily connecting with 
surrounding areas. Phuc Long is focusing on a variety 
of internal and external utilities and services for daily 
life and entertainment for urban residents. With a 
layout that takes full advantage of the wind direction 
and natural light, Phuc Long Street will surely bring 
you the healthiest and most perfect life, helping you 
always full of energy.

SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

PHUC LONG

39,144
M2

LAND
AREA

Investor:
Binh Thuan Construction and Trading House 
Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Loation: 135A, Nguyen Hoi, Phu Tai Ward, Phan 
Thiet City, Binh Thuan Province.

Land area: 3,773.5 m2  

Status quo:
Completed and handed over to use

Utilities:
Owning a very favorable position, inheriting all the 
existing facilities of a stable socio-economic 
infrastructure system in the region, about 2 km from 
the provincial administrative center and the provincial 
Party Committee, located right in the Bac Phan Thiet 
Commercial Center, located on Highway 28 to the 
tourist city of Da Lat - this is the connection point for 
tourism in Phan Thiet - Da Lat - Nha Trang. The 
project is adjacent to schools, markets, shopping 
centers, hospitals and other utility services.

SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

HQC PHU TAI

306
APARTMENTS 

PRODUCTS521.78
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 176

BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT



SOCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

NAM PHAN THIET NEW URBAN AREA 
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13.5
HA

LAND
AREA

Investor:
Hoang Quan Binh Thuan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Loation: Ham Thuan Nam district, Binh Thuan 
province

Products: 955 townhouses, 261 apartments, 325 
commercial kiosks

Status quo:  
132 apartments were built, 319 apartments were built 
foundation and ground beam

Utilities:
Located on the edge of the Industrial Park, therefore, 
it is easy to access to the industrial park and adjacent 
residential areas. This location is very suitable for the 
worker housing area because it is easy to access to 
the industrial park through the connecting roads and 
the common social infrastructure system of the area, 
as well as the wind direction. The urban area has a 
modern design including fully furnished townhouses 
and social infrastructure works (cultural houses; 
general hospitals; schools; trade centers -
supermarkets ...)

Social Housing Golden City Project
At Ward 2, Tay Ninh City, Tay Ninh Province

Social Housing HQC Tan Huong Project 
At Tan Huong Ward, Chau Thanh District, Tien Giang Province

710
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT



Investor:
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Loation: Dong Van Cong Street, Thanh My Loi Ward, 
District 2, Ho Chi Minh City

Land area: 4,990.7 m2  

Status quo:
Under construction completion

Utilities:
Own unique appearance with the system of 
apartments and interiors designed with the most 
modern and beautiful houses in the area. The project 
brings quite a lot of system breakthroughs, full utilities 
and a golden position in the transportation area of 
District 2, bringing convenience to customers.

75 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

76 www.hoangquan.com.vn

  

COMMERCIAL HOUSING

GOLDEN GRAND

Investor:
Bao Linh Housing Investment - Construction - 
Development Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Loation: Chau Pha commune, Tan Thanh district, Ba 
Ria - Vung Tau province

Products: 140 kios, 120 stalls indoors and 160 stalls 
outdoors.

Status quo:
Completed and handed over some apartments to 
residents, the rest is under construction.

Utilities
It is a green space located in Chau Pha - Toc Tien - 
one of the most beautiful places in Vung Tau and Nui 
Dinh tourist area. With a special design, showing the 
class of the owner, the entire villa area is designed 
according to 3-star resort standards, all surrounded 
by two floors of green trees and vividly separate 
flower beds with no outer space. In addition, the 
adjacent villa area with entertainment spots offers 
peaceful and relaxing moments for residents.

COMMERCIAL HOUSING

GOLDEN QUEEN

4.5
HA

LAND AREA:99
APARTMENTS

PRODUCTS158.4
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 415

BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT
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Investor:
Hoang Quan Can Tho Real Estate Investment 
Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Loation: Thuong Thanh ward, Cai Rang district, Can 
Tho City

Land area: 10,7 ha  

Status quo:
Ongoing construction

Utilities:
Designed with a system of shady green parks, 
arranged centrally along the main roads, bringing a 
fresh living environment, full of vitality to all residents 
living space harmonious and warm. In addition, the 
project is integrated with many utilities and technical 
infrastructure of the modern urban area, ensuring the 
satisfaction of residents.

COMMERCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

PHU QUY QUARTER
COMMERCIAL HOUSING PROJECT

PHUC LOC QUARTER

Investor:
Hoang Quan Can Tho Real Estate Investment 
Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Loation: Thuong Thanh ward, Cai Rang district, Can 
Tho City

Land area: 7 ha

Status quo:  
Completed and handed over to use

Utilities: 
Located at the front of National Highway 91C, easy to 
move to the center of Can Tho city and the surround-
ing provinces, owning convenience and green space. 
With a system of shady green parks, arranged 
concentrated along the main roads, bringing a fresh 
living environment, full of vitality for all residents. The 
residential area is like a miniature modern world with 
full facilities such as schools, parks, markets, super-
markets, soccer fields, ...

628
TERRACED HOUSES

PRODUCTS821.3
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 525

TERRACED HOUSES

PRODUCTS482
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT
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Investor:
Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Loation: My Loi hamlet, My Hoa commune, Binh 
Minh Town, Vinh Long province (located in Binh Minh 
industrial park)

Products: 345 lots, 203 townhouses, 26 riverside 
villas, 216 apartments, 286 stalls, 140 kios

Status quo:  
Ongoing construction

Utilities: 
It is a complex of commercial centers, houses, villas, 
ecological parks. The project is like a miniature city 
next to the Binh Minh Industrial Park - Port. Residents 
of the city can not only feel professional and dynamic 
working environment, but also be able to immerse 
themselves in a civilized and modern life with friendly 
and peaceful residents. 

COMMERCIAL HOUSING

BINH MINH RESIDENTIAL AREA

Investor:
Hoang Quan Can Tho Real Estate Investment 
Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)
Loation: Under the project of Thuong Thanh 
Residential Area, Thuong Thanh Ward, Cai Rang 
District,  Can Tho City
Land area: 6,680 m2

Status quo:  
15 units are in the construction stage; 28 units have 
been finished building; 8 units have been built on the 
2nd floor; 7 units have completed construction on the 
first floor. Expected to be completed in the fourth 
quarter of 2020.
Utilities: 
Agora Zone Commercial Street is located in a central 
location, belonging to the urban area - Mekong Delta 
University, between two fronts of national highway 
91C and Truong Vinh Nguyen street. Agora Zone has 
its own unique advantages, meeting all the needs of a 
high-class life. Agora Zone commercial area easily 
connects with surrounding areas, only takes 3 
minutes to Tay Do University, 4 minutes to Cai Rang 
General Hospital, 6 minutes to the center of Can Tho 
city. In addition, Agora Zone focuses on a wide range 
of internal and external utilities and services for daily 
life and entertainment for urban residents.

COMMERCIAL HOUSING

AGORA ZONE

58
TERRACED HOUSES

PRODUCTS100.3
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 29.94

HA

LAND AREA1,230
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT
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Investor: 
Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)
Location: My Loi hamlet, My Hoa commune, Binh 
Minh Town, Vinh Long province (located in Binh Minh 
industrial park)
Products: 140 kios, 120 stalls indoors and 160 stalls 
outdoors.
Hiện trạng:
+ Kios: Has completed construction of the foundation, 

has completed 50% of tie beam
+ In-house stall: 100% of the foundation has been 

completed
Utilities: 
Adjacent to industrial parks and busy ports with more 
than 20,000 workers. Binh Minh Trade Center has a 
golden terrain when it takes only 5 minutes to reach 
Can Tho city, 07 minutes to the center of Binh Minh 
town and near many other facilities. The center is 
smart and scientific design and 04 large doors, with a 
modern self-service commercial area, the outside has 
a large parking lot, making the most of natural energy 
saving energy, bringing prosperous breeze for traders 
to buy and sell at this Trade Center.

TRADE CENTER

BINH MINH
THE  VILLAS

PARADISE RESORT VILLA

Investor:
Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Location: My Loi hamlet, My Hoa commune, Binh 
Minh Town, Vinh Long province (located in Binh Minh 
industrial park)

Land area: 10,54 ha

Status quo:  
Ongoing construction

Utilities: 
Bring relaxation tranquility with conditions close to 
nature and still modern. Designed in a luxurious Asian 
style, with a unique architecture that is the level of 
perfect life. Paradise Resort Villas with ideal living 
environment, peaceful space, beautiful views, giving 
you life close to nature but still extremely modern.

40
 VILLAS

PRODUCTS320
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 11,336

M2

LAND AREA60.3
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT



Investor:
Tay Ninh Urban Construction and Development 
Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Location: Hoa Thanh town, Hoa Thanh district, Tay 
Ninh province.

Number of products: 1,244 stalls and 92 kiot

Status quo:  
Completion of C - D area, the remaining areas are 
under construction

Utilities: 
Located between the economic and cultural center of 
Tay Ninh province, Long Hoa commercial center is 
expected not only to be a pure trading place but also 
a tourist attraction to enjoy traditional specialties of 
local. The project was restored in the traditional 
market model of the ancient Long Hoa market with the 
"trigrams" image, close to the traditional culture, 
suitable to the needs of the small business. The 
market also plans a separate area for selling local 
specialties.

Investor:
Indochina Real Estate Development Investment 
Corporation
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Location: 15, Nguyen Luong Bang, Tan Phu Ward, 
District 7, Ho Chi Minh City

Number of products: 367 office apartments and 86 
service areas

Status quo:  
Completed and handed over to use.

Utilities: 
Owning a central location in Phu My Hung Urban 
Area, which is known as the most vibrant international 
trade and financial center in Ho Chi Minh City. It is 
located at 2 fronts and main view overlooking the 
park, inheriting convenient transportation system, 
spacious and outstanding infrastructure of the area. 
Golden King converges the highest quality utilities 
inside the building with the criteria to bring the most 
comfortable living and working space for residents. 
Luxury shopping center, body care spa, cinema, food 
court, entertainment area... are always ready to serve 
residents. 
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TRADE CENTER

LONG HOA
HIGH-STANDARD COMPLEX ZONES

GOLDEN KING

2,775
M2

LAND AREA1,500
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 22.1

M2

LAND AREA242.37
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT



SERVICE - TOURISM CENTER

HAM TIEN - MUI NE
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Investor:
Joint venture between Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation & Hai 
Phat Investment Joint Stock Company
Location: Ham Tien ward, Phan Thiet city, Binh 
Thuan province
Project scale: Combination of multi-function 
buildings, international convention centers, luxury 
apartments, hotels, office buildings, restaurants, 
high-end shopping malls, street food, night markets, 
sea squares combining activities of festivals, sea 
festivals, clubs, cultural houses, marinas, amusement 
parks, water parks, high-class resorts with various 
types of villas and apartments, functional areas for 
financial service activities, travel services.
Status quo: Being implemented
Utilities: 
The East is adjacent to the villa project of Nam An 
Real Estate Joint Stock Company, the West borders 
the Sao Mai Mud Center project, the South borders 
the East Sea, the North borders Vo Nguyen Giap 
Road (provincial road 706B ). According to the plan, 
the project will become a tourism service center, 
combining investment in high-class entertainment 
and commercial areas, organizing events and a 
national training center for sea sports competitions. 

Investor:
Hoang Quan Binh Thuan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)

Location: Ham Kiem and Ham My communes, Ham 
Thuan Nam district, Binh Thuan province.

Status quo:
+  Building and finishing 90% of infrastructure 
+ The occupancy rate is 60%

Utilities: 
Owning convenient transportation position both on 
road, waterway and railway, helping the transport and 
distribution of goods take place conveniently. With an 
area of 146.2 hectares, the technical infrastructure is 
built synchronously and completely according to 
international standards with a full range of convenient 
services such as customs, banks, post offices, health 
centers, trade centers, restaurants, schools, 
warehouses... Everything has stabilized and went into 
production for investors.

INDUSTRIAL ZONE

HAM KIEM I

198
HA

LAND AREA9,831
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT 146.2

HA

LAND AREA273.42
BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT



Investor:
Binh Minh Port Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)
Location: My Hoa commune, Binh Minh town, Vinh 
Long province
Status quo:  
'+ Phase 1. Construction and equipment investment 
to continue ensuring exploitation with cargo 
throughputs are: 1,200,000T/year (General cargo: 
720,000T/year: Container cargo: 480,000T/year 
equivalent to 45,174TEU/year).
+ Phase 2: Construction and equipment investment to 
continue ensuring exploitation with cargo throughputs 
are 3,500,000 tons/year (general cargo 1,400,000T/-
year; container cargo: 2,100,000 T/year ~ 200,000-
TEU/year).
Utilities:
Built on the left bank of Hau River in Binh Minh Indus-
trial Park. The Port owns favorable geographical 
position:
• The Northwest borders on Can Tho Bridge and the 
road leading to Can Tho Bridge. 
• The Southeast borders on the vacant land and 620 
Concrete Joint Stock Company - Binh Minh Branch.
• The Northeastern borders on Binh Minh Industrial 
Park.
• The Southwest borders on the Hau River.
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 PORT

BINH MINH

Investor:
Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Joint Stock Company
(Hoang Quan Company cooperates in Investment 
- Construction - Business)
Location: My Hoa commune, Binh Minh town, Vinh 
Long province

Status quo:  
+ Construction of complete 90% of infrastructure 
+ Occupancy rate reaches nearly 90%

Utilities:
Possessing a central location in the Mekong Delta 
region with a strategic advantage of economic 
development and international cooperation between 
the two rivers: Dong Thanh and Hau rivers belong Cai 
Von town. This is considered the gateway, the bridge 
connecting the two major economic center Ho Chi 
Minh City and  Can Tho City with Highway 1A going 
through. Infrastructure in IZ meets modern and 
complete standards: electricity, water, rainwater 
drainage system, wastewater, fire protection, 
customs, banks, post offices, health centers, 
restaurants, entertainment areas, schools, social 
housing, logistics warehouse,...

INDUSTRIAL ZONE

BINH MINH 

45
HA

LAND
AREA2,300

BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT

90
HA

LAND
AREA2,000

BILLION

VND TOTAL
INVESTMENT



PROJECTS FOR IMPLEMENTATION - BUSINESS INVESTMENT COOPERATION
(PERIOD 2020-2024)
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Location : Ben Luc town, Ben Luc district, Long An province
Project scale : 470 residential land lots, including 68 townhouses, 297 terraced houses and 105 apartments
Status quo : Carrying out the legal procedures for investment project
Total investment: VND 870 billion
Land area : 4.9 ha

BEN LUC RESIDENTIAL AND TRADING AREA

Location : Ward 6, Tra Vinh city, Tra Vinh province
Project scale : Entertainment area, Park, cultural park, Tourist area, Gymnasium, Land of green trees
Status quo : Carrying out the legal procedures for investment project
Status of the project: Traveling culture
Total investment: VND 855 billion
Land area : 18 ha

CULTURAL - TOURISM AREA OF AO BA OM TRA VINH

Location    : Ward 7, Tra Vinh city, Tra Vinh province
Status quo    : Carrying out the legal procedures for investment project
Mục tiêu dự án   : Headquarter: Provincial Party Committee, People's Committee, People's Council, National  
       Assembly Delegation
Total investment: VND 792,382 billion
Land area    : 3.4 ha

TRA VINH POLITICAL - ADMINISTRATIVE CENTER

Location : Tra Cu town, Tra Cu district, Tra Vinh province
Status quo : Carrying out the legal procedures for investment project
Status of the project:
· Transshipment, receipt, transshipment and transportation of goods from domestic to foreign countries and 
vice versa.
· Production, processing, recycling, assembly of exports, imports and on-site goods: manufacturing and assem-
bling mechanical, electrical and electronic products, manufacturing auto parts and means of transport, manu-
facturing and processing industries.
· Trade in goods and services, trade promotion activities ......

TRA VINH NON - TARIFF AREA

Location : Cu M'gar commune and Ea Kpam commune, Cu M'gar district, Dak Lak province
Project scale : The hi-tech agricultural zone, combining seedling exhibitions, agricultural products and sightsee-
ing tours
Status quo : The investment preparation stage is being implemented: Adjust land use planning, structure, and 
register land use plans.
Total investment: VND 157 billion
Land area : 13.13 ha

HI-TECH AGRICULTURAL AREA IN CU M'GAR, DAK LAK

Location : Truong Tho Ward, Thu Duc District, Ho Chi Minh City
Status quo : Carrying out the legal procedures for investment project
Total investment: VND 527 billion
Land area : 0.53 ha

THU DUC APARTMENT 

Location : Cu M'Gar commune and Ea D'Rong commune, Cu M'Gar district, Dak Lak province
Project scale : The tourist area is divided into several areas: reception area, Tay Nguyen tourist area, theme 
park, European villa village, Japanese villa village, Vietnamese villa village.
Status quo : 'The investment preparation stage is being implemented: Adjust land use planning, structure, and 
register land use plans.
Status of the project: Building and developing the central sub-region, in accordance with the policy of socio-eco-
nomic development orientation of the province; Exploiting the potential of real estate and cultural and eco-tourism 
value; Maximize and exploit the market's strengths and uniqueness; Developing real estate and tourism brands 
associated with promoting the provincial revolutionary historical system.
Total investment: VND 1,000 billion
Land area : 50.4 ha

CU M'GAR RESIDENTIAL HOUSING AND TOURISM AREA

Location : An Phu commune, Cu Chi district, Ho Chi Minh City
Project scale : 6,848 tombs (8,165 graves), with burial tombs, common graves, single graves, twin graves, vip  
graves, clan graves, main graves
Status quo : Currently carrying out investment registration procedures at the Department of Planning and 
Investment of Ho Chi Minh City.
Status of the project: Contribute to creating a project in accordance with the policy of encouraging investment 
in building cemeteries and cremation facilities to serve locals, using new, civilized and modern cremations in 
order to save and effectively maximize land, construction funding and ensure security, safety, environmental 
requirements and surrounding landscape.
Total investment: VND 304.5 billion
Land area : 8.26 ha

CU CHI PARK



CÁC DỰ ÁN DỰ KIỂN TRIỂN KHAI - HỢP TÁC ĐẦU TƯ 
KINH DOANH (GIAI ĐOẠN 2020-2024)      
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PROJECTS FOR IMPLEMENTATION - BUSINESS INVESTMENT COOPERATION
(PERIOD 2020-2024)

Central Housing Block Project
Politics - Tra Vinh Administration, Trà Vinh Province

Cu M'gar Residential Housing
And Tourism Area

Project of a part of Culture - Tourism Area
Ba Om Pond. Tra Vinh, Tra Vinh province

Project Thu Duc Apartment 



Current address: Phuong Hoang Street, Binh Minh 
Industrial Park, My Hoa Commune, Binh Minh Town, 
Vinh Long Province.

Total number of children: More than 100 children 
are currently attending Hoang Lam Kindergarten 
School 

Infrastructure: The school has an area of nearly 
1,000 m2, including 10 classrooms, 1 hall, 1 office and 
1 function room. Hoang Lam School is equipped with 
modern facilities such as system of water heaters, 
cool water, TVs, computers, air conditioners, airy net 
beds... to maximize the teaching and learning, ensur-
ing the best conditions for teachers and children to 
study, live and play. The items in direct contact with 
the children such as stainless steel eating utensils, 
toys... are carefully cleaned to ensure safety for them. 
In particular, online camera systems help parents can 
always accompany the school in teaching and taking 
care of children even on mobile phones.

In addition, the school also has an outdoor playground 
of 2,000 m2 wide so that they have space for playing, 
exercising and living. The playground is surrounded 
by safety fences and the yard has trees, flowers, toys 
so that children can develop best physically, always 
flexible, creative and intelligent. 

HOANG LAM KINDERGARTEN SCHOOL 
Overview Of
EDUCATIONAL INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
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are developing the system of kindergartens, 
preschools, which can meet the education needs of 
residents, has contributed to complete utilities and 
improve the value of life in the project. Typically, the 
Group has put a kindergarten in Binh Minh Urban - 
Port - Industry Zone (Vinh Long) into operation with 
the current number of over 100 children and is being 
expanded and upgraded to attract and increase the 
number of children enrolled in 2019-2020 as well as 
in the near future. At the same time, Hoang Quan 
Group is expected to continue to invest in the system 
of kindergartens and preschools in each residential 
project to meet the educational needs of residents 
and contribute to the comprehensive development of 
utilities at the project. 

In parallel with investment activities, cooperation, 
opening schools, "Hoang Quan Study Encourage-
ment Fund” was established by Hoang Quan Group 
in 2010 and has been operating very actively and 
strongly, contributing to accompanying pupils and 
students on the way to study and accumulate knowl-
edge, study encouragement and talent promotion. 
Since its foundation, the Fund has contributed more 
than VND 4 billion through sponsorship programs 
and scholarships to many units, organizations and 
individuals throughout the localities, especially in the 
localities where Hoang Quan Group invests in 
projects. Especially, at each project implemented by 
Hoang Quan Group, Hoang Quan Study Encourage-
ment Fund has set up a separate scholarship fund for 
children of residents with good academic results who 
are living at the project.

“For the sake of ten years, we must plant trees,
for the sake of 100 years, we should cultivate people”

(quote by President Ho Chi Minh on the National
Conference of Education Staff on September 13. 1958)

Teachers meet standards and above standards, have 
experience in teaching, are really passionate about 
the job, always love and cherish children. Hoang Lam 
Nursery School with the dedication to give children a 
school "Safe - Reliable - Effective".

Currently, Hoang Lam Nursery School is currently 
investing in additional facilities for classrooms on the 
second floor, to attract children in the school year 
2019-2020.

Hoang Quan Group is expected to continue opening 
more kindergarten schools at each project to meet the 
educational needs of the children of the residents and 
contribute to the comprehensive development of 
utilities at the project. 

Education is an indispensable and permanent func-
tion of society and also an investment field that 
requires silence but hard work and perseverance. 
With the concept of investing in Education is invest-
ing in the future of the country, investing in society in 
a sustainable manner, which is the driving force for 
the development of society in all aspects. Currently, 
investment activities in Education have been foster-
ing a solid foundation for Hoang Quan Group to 
become a professional investor in Education with the 
core values of promoting the comprehensive devel-
opment of the personality and intellect of the person. 
These are tremendous values and are one of the 
factors promoting Hoang Quan Group's real estate 
and financial investment activities.

With the core goal is “Contribute to the cause of 
developing the country's education, build a young 
knowledge base, nurture future generations, and at 
the same time meet the needs of education and 
training, complete utilities and maximize living value 
for residents in the projects implemented by Hoang 
Quan Group . Up to the present time, especially in 
the period from 2015-2019, projects invested or 
developed by Hoang Quan Group have been put into 
operation, providing thousands of young workers 
who are professionally and skillfully skilled, includ-
ing: Long An University of Economics and Industry, 
Mekong University (investment in facilities), Phan 
Thiet University, Institute for Development of Talents 
& Human Resources (ITH), Tay Nam A Economic 
and Technical Vocational Training School, Mui Ne 
Tourism Intermediate School... In addition, at real 
estate projects invested by Hoang Quan Group, they 



Investor: 
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate 
Corporation

Address: Thuong Thanh ward, Cai Rang district, Can Tho city

Scale:
Mekong University has an area of 5 hectares with a total 
investment of about VND 300 billion, including: Headquarter, 
Hall, Gymnasium (3 floors), Student dormitory (meeting the 
needs of 20% of the total students), Faculty of Economics - 
Administration - Accounting, Faculty of Science, Faculty of 
Construction, Faculty of Information Technology (5 floors).

At present, the School has finished building B1 (5 floors), total 
floor area is 6,449.8 m2 with 20 classrooms in Thuong Thanh 
ward, Cai Rang district, Can Tho city as the training facility for 
Ho Chi Minh City University of Architecture in Can Tho for 5 
years from 2020 to 2025.

Headquarters:
254 Le Trong Tan, Tay Thanh Ward, Tan Phu District, Ho Chi 
Minh City.

Infrastructure: Tay Nam A Economic and Technical Vocational 
Training School has a total area of 7,940 m2 including 47 
classrooms including 11 practice rooms, 04 computer rooms 
and modern equipment for training.

Training scale:
Tay Nam A Economic and Technical Vocational Training 
School has 11 faculties with 20 majors with the maximum 
training capacity of over 4,000 students. In addition, the school 
also trains short courses of 1-3 months to improve professional 
knowledge with high applicability for students.

Currently, the school is actively promoting the project of 
upgrading to a College, and preparing facilities, teaching staff... 
to meet the requirements when the school is upgraded to a 
College.
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MEKONG DELTA UNIVERSITY
TAY NAM A ECONOMIC AND TECHNICAL
VOCATIONAL TRAINING SCHOOL
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Besides the current core business of Real Estate, the 
policy of building a strong financial position is the 
strategic orientation of Hoang Quan Group in the 
process of construction and development for nearly 
20 years.
In each area of investment, Hoang Quan Group has 
made its own mark through development strategies 
and directions. The principle of Hoang Quan's 
financial investment activities is to use and effectively 
exploit the capital and capacity of the units and 
shareholders prudently in order to expand the 
opportunities for high and limit business risks. At the 
same time, the Group's financial investment activities 
must ensure the normal business and production 
activities of the Company and be effective.
In that principle, the Group has gradually formed and 
established a system of member companies, 
associating to form a closed chain from Legal, Design, 
Construction, Appraisal, Investment, Distribution, 
Brokers, Operation Management, .. help improve the 
efficiency of real estate investment, reduce costs, 
reduce costs but still ensure product quality.    
In addition, other capital mobilization channels are 
also enhanced to be implemented through 

accumulated sources from the enterprises and 
shareholders themselves such as profits, increasing 
charter capital, issuing shares... and accessing the 
domestic and international capital market through 
participation in HoSE stock exchange with stock code 
HQC. 
Over the past five years (2015-2019), Hoang Quan 
Group has paid special attention to M&A activities of 
potential companies and projects and promoted 
cooperation with talented partners and organizations. 
In addition, the domestic and foreign investment funds 
are aimed at taking advantage of these external 
factors in the overall development orientation of the 
Group and earning economic benefits for businesses, 
shareholders, investors and customers. 
In addition, with the policy of periodic adaptation, 
Hoang Quan will be flexible in financial investment by 
increasing/divesting investments in subsidiaries, 
member companies, associates and at the same time, 
following the actual situation to optimize the use of 
capital, financial investment policies of Hoang Quan 
Group to ensure always maintaining stability, 
managing capital flow risks well and bringing effective 
investment for shareholders.  

Investing and building a strong financial base is the
long-term strategic orientation of Hoang Quan Group

Hoang

Quan

Nha Trang

Co., Ltd.

46 Thoai Ngoc Hau,

Vinh Hoa ward,

Nha Trang city,

Khanh Hoa province

Real

estate

120,000,000,000 157,914,466,062 - -40.0% 0.0%

Hoang Quan
Mekong
Consulting
- Trading
- Service
Real Estate
Joint Stock
Company

Lot B5 Binh Minh
Riverside area,
My Loi village,
My Hoa commune,
Binh Minh district,
Vinh Long province

Real

estate
320,000,000,000 2,985,315,858,385 99,786,760,024 13,039,954,77312.0% 0.0%

Tay Nam A
Economic
and
Technical
Vocational
Training
School 

254 Le Trong Tan,

Tay Thanh ward,

Tan Phu district,

Ho Chi Minh city

Education

- Training
4,592,393,370 5,819,704,895 1,547,552,545 13,275,18320.0% 0.0%

Company
name

Address Core
Business

Charter
Capital
(billion
Dong)

HQC's ownership Total assets

Direct Indirect

Revenue Profit
after
tax
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Dear Shareholders, Partners, Customers and all 
employees of Hoang Quan, 

Over nearly 20 years of operation and development, 
Hoang Quan Company has built a complete 
development strategy to ensure a close, reasonable 
and harmonious combination of growth goals, social 
security and environmental protection issues. In 
order to have a strong and long-term development, 
Hoang Quan Company and its subsidiaries always 
focus on economic, social and environmental goals. 
Specifically, throughout the past years, Hoang Quan 
Company has been constantly trying to apply 
advanced technology to the construction of social 
housing projects combining energy saving solutions 
to create a comfortable, fresh living environment for 
residents. In addition, the Company always 
enhances the management and control of 
environmental activities, ensuring the efficient use 
and exploitation of resources. In projects, the 
Company always performs well the task of fire 
prevention and fighting, giving priority to creating 
many suitable green spaces, ensuring the health of 
residents living in it, and at the same time managing 
and operating projects according to optimal 
standards. In parallel with protecting the 
environment, ensuring the lives of residents, the 
Company always maintains and promotes 
sustainable, efficient and long-term economic 
growth, actively contributing to high quality products 
and services at a reasonable price, ensuring 
patterns of production and sustainable 
consumption, creating opportunities for workers to 
have stable jobs and support the development of 
high quality human resources.

In addition to efforts to take care of and ensure 
benefits for internal employees, the Company also 
actively accompanies the Government, agencies, 
organizations to implement social welfare policies to 
contribute to the community through activities of 
giving gifts, giving gratitude houses, sponsoring 
scholarship funds, funding for construction of public 
works,...

Formed and strived together with the general 
development of the real estate market, becoming 
one of the leading real estate companies in 
Vietnam, contributing to the socio-economic 
development of Vietnam, Hoang Quan determined 
that the success of an enterprise not only depends 
on its business results but also on its responsibility 
and contribution to the community and society. 
Therefore, in the short-term, medium-term and 
long-term business strategies, Hoang Quan always 
focuses on integrating the environmental and social 
sustainable development goals, ensuring the 
balance and harmony of interests of the related 
parties besides the revenue and profit goals of a 
business. Hoang Quan believes that with the 
consistent leadership and management together 
with the efforts of all stakeholders in the 
implementation of sustainable development 
activities, it will create a solid foundation for 
businesses to build and improve the prestige and 
competitiveness in the market, attract the attention 
of domestic and foreign investors, unite the staff and 
attract high quality human resources, 
simultaneously contribute to improving and 
promoting the country's economic development.

In 2019, although the Company's business results 
did not meet the set plan, did not meet the 
expectations of shareholders and related parties but 
with the current fluctuations of domestic and foreign 
economic markets, especially the real estate market 
with many instabilities, the Company still maintains 
its business results with a profit of VND 41.5 billion. 
This is still considered an encouraging result of the 
spirit of striving, efforts and solidarity of the 
Executive Board and the Company's employees.

Along with the 2019 Management Report, the 
content presented in this Sustainable Development 
Report will provide more information on the 

Company's activities, influence and contributions to 
related parties.

Dr. Truong Anh Tuan
Chairman of BOD

The year 2020 marks the 20-year timeline of the 
establishment and development of Hoang Quan 
Group. Entering the 20th year, Hoang Quan will 
continue to hold on to what has been achieved, 
striving to complete short-term, medium-term and 
long-term business plans associated with 
sustainable development goals. Board of Directors 
and Executive Board set the development vision of 
the Company and its subsidiaries in the next stage 
"Becoming a leading real estate investor in Vietnam 
and the ASEAN region, in which real estate - educa-
tion - finance is the key, creating the strength of 
sustainable development and international 
integration".  

In the period of 2020-2030, Hoang Quan Corporation attempt to 
become the leader of real-estate investors in Vietnam and 
ASEAN. Meanwhile, Real-estate - Education -  Finance play a 
vital role in order to generate a strong foundation to sustainably 
develop and internationally integrate.

The successes achieved to date are the result of the 
determination of the Executive Board, the 
continuous efforts of each company's staff, 
moreover it is also the process of supporting the 
trust of customers and partners for Hoang Quan 
during the past journey. Thank you for the support 
and companionship of all Shareholders, Customers, 
Partners and all employees of the Company during 
the past time.

Best regards,
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Sustainable development model 
Hoang Quan always understand that the success of 
a business not only depends on its performance but 
also on its responsibility and contribution to the 
community and society. Therefore, the Board of 
Directors has set sustainable development goals and 
strategies, with continuous efforts to create positive 
impacts for the Company and the society. The Board 
of Directors has gradually developed a sustainable 
development plan through questioning and directing 
the Board of Directors to implement, through specific 
activities.
Described in detail in the content "Strategic 
Orientation - Governance on Sustainable 
Development" in this Report.

Report contents
The Sustainable Development Report provides 
shareholders, investors and stakeholders with 
information on key areas that affect development 
strategies and business operations in the aspect of 
sustainable development. The Company's 
development strategy is always associated with the 
mission, vision on the basis of core values and 
sustainable development goals.
The Sustainable Development Report (SD) 2019 is 
developed according to the Global Reporting 
Initiative (GRI) of the Global Initiative. This is the 
latest and widely recognized reporting standard for 
the Sustainable Development Report to increase 
transparency and accountability. In addition, the 

Sustainable Development Report also refers to the 
evaluation criteria for corporate governance 
according to the Asean Corporate Governance 
Scorecard. 
The report is presented in accordance with 
Guidelines 4 with appropriate, core options, focusing 
on the areas of Economics, How to Treat Employees, 
Sustainable Employment, Environment and Society. 
This report helps clarify our strategic direction and 
sustainable development commitment to all 
stakeholders.
Report scope
The Sustainable Development Report 2019 is 
presented in conjunction with the Annual Report 
made within Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Real 

Estate Service Corporation. The report reflects the 
results of activities made in the period report starting 
from January 1, 2019 and ending on December 31, 
2019 within the territory of Vietnam. 
Contact information for the report
The content of the Report is posted on the 
Company's website: http://hoangquan.com.vn/vn/-
cong-bo-thong-tin.
For information and comments on the report, please 
contact:
- Mr. Nguyen Thanh Hoai - Head of Shareholder 

Relations Department
- Address: 286-288 Huynh Van Banh, Ward 11, 

Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh City
- Phone: (+84 28) 62928617 ext 2022
- Email: qhndt@hoangquan.com.vn



Sustainable growth

GOAL

A. ECONOMY

CONTENT DIRECTION

Sustainable growth in 
traditional businesses.

Exploit the strength, expand the land fund with 
a beautiful location, consistent with taste. 
Continuously improve the quality of marketing 
and sales activities.

Review and choose to 
invest in new effective 
businesses.

Prioritize the selection of effective investment 
projects, divestment of projects with low 
efficiency.

Risk management and 
compliance control.

Adhere to the model, risk management 
system for comprehensive management and 
effective prevention of risks, with appropriate 
response plans when risks occur.

Sustainable investment
efficiency

GOAL

A. ECONOMY

B. SOCIETY

C. ENVIRONMENT

CONTENT DIRECTION

Ensure dividends to 
remain stable.

Implement the business plan, ensure stable 
dividend for shareholders.

Human resource
development

Ensure effective working 
environment.

Improve the working environment, create 
conditions for employees to promote their 
capacity, commitment and dedication to the 
Company.

Invest, develop, share
with the community

Invest human resources 
for education.

Continue to maintain investment in the field of 
education - training (universities, training 
institutes, intermediate schools and nursery 
schools).

Growth is associated
with environmental
protection

Comply with regulations 
on environmental 
protection.

Strictly abide by the laws and localities on 
environmental protection.

Raise awareness of 
environmental protection 
and energy saving.

Use energy and resources effectively.

Construct a wastewater treatment system in 
accordance with biological standards.

Increase the use of products that are less 
harmful to the environment.

Join hands for a growing 
community.

Share love with the policy families and the 
difficult households through the program of 
building and giving charitable houses.

Construction of public works.

Support, share, encourage 
students - poor students 
overcome difficulties.

Maintain and develop the Scholarship Fund, 
call for the support of related partners.

Improve the lives of 
workers.

Ensure welfare policies as well as emulation 
and commendation policies for employees.

Strengthen care and health assurance for 
workers.

Prepare high quality 
human and intellectual 
resources.

Strengthen training activities, improve 
expertise, nominate personnel to participate in 
advanced professional courses, classes on 
occupational skills.

Increase transparency, fair 
treatment of shareholders.

Diversify the information disclosure channel 
with the motto of timely, clear, transparent, 
honest and fair.

Sustainable
DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION

105 ANNUAL REPORT 2019
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

106 www.hoangquan.com.vn

1. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT MODEL 

2. GOALS AND DIRECTIONS FOR SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

EC
ON

OMY SOCIETY

ENVIRONMENT

Sustainable development is development that 
ensures a close, reasonable and harmonious 
combination of sustainable economic development 
with sustainable social development and 
environmental protection. Hoang Quan Company 
understands that setting goals, sustainable 
strategies in every business is one of the positive 

contributions, ensures the balance of interests 
between the Company and its stakeholders, towards 
a long-term and sustainable development. 
Accordingly, Hoang Quan thinks that the Economic 
goal is the most important goal because this is a 
necessary condition to realize the social and 
environmental goals.



GOVERNANCE ON SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

1. Governance model on sustainable development
3. The value brought to stakeholders:
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Hoang Quan is a diversified business enterprise, 
which is a pioneer in developing social housing 
projects. In addition to maintaining economic 
benefits and ensuring profits for the Company, 
Hoang Quan always focuses on and ensures the 

interests of related parties. This is considered a 
guideline, showing the transparency of business, 
towards building solid partnerships and creating trust 
between the parties. 

Information and feedback from stakeholders is one 
of the important factors affecting the changes in 
thinking, the way the Company acts in the 
management and administration of the activities of 
the Company. Through communication channels 
(website, email, phone), face-to-face meetings 
(Conferences, Workshops, meetings, periodic 
activities of the Company or activities organized by 
the Government/ Associations) or through the 
Company's Customer Care department, Hoang 

Quan wants to identify the concerns and aspirations 
of the stakeholders from which Hoang Quan 
categorizes them into groups and develops a dialogue 
plan, responds to all requests and inquiries from 
stakeholders.

Hoang Quan Company always promotes 
responsibility in accountability to related parties in a 
timely, open and transparent manner.

2. Participation of stakeholders 

Stakeholders are defined as those 
who are influenced or influenced to a 
certain extent by the Company's 
business operations.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Strategic direction and approval of goals
and plans for sustainable development

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

  Develop and implement, ensure the
 implementation of the plan for sustainable
development

FUNCTIONAL DEPARTMENT
   Implement the plan of sustainable
  development in accordance with the
 orientation of the Board of Directors and
the direction of the Management Board. MEMBER COMPANIES

  Implement the sustainable development
plan at the unit

EMPLOYEES

Carry out specific tasks to achieve the plan
for sustainable development

SUPERVISORY BOARD

 Review and manage risk in planning and
implementation process

Shareholders
/Investors

Customers

Employees

Management
agencies and
associations

Local
community

Newspapers TRANSPARENT
CONSULTANCY

Diagram of stakeholders of the Company

Shareholders/Investors

Customer

Important
stakeholders Factors of interest Company Feedback

• Dividend • Maintain a stable dividend

• Strengthen corporate governance, increase 
investment efficiency.

• Stock price

• Provide complete, timely and transparent 
information

• Transparent information

• Improve the quality of products, and utility 
services

• Product quality

Employee • Ensure wages and welfare policies for 
employees

• Salary and welfare policy

Regulatory

authorities

and

associations

• Risk management• Comply with Laws

Local

community

• Maintain and develop the Hoang Quan Study 
Encouragement Fund

• Develop future generations

• Regularly participate in charitable, gratitude 
programs, activities

• Share with difficult
circumstances

• Actively contribute to market development• Contribute to market
development

• Comply with obligations to the State• Contribute to the
State budget

• Organize training to improve knowledge and 
skills for staff members

• Human resource
development policy

• Evaluate employees quarterly and on that 
basis, propose salary increases or promotions 
for qualified employees

• Promotion opportunities

• Request the Contractor to apply new 
techniques to accelerate the construction 
progress

• Handover on time
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Risk management is considered the second line of defense of the enterprise, playing an important role in 
monitoring the control of the first line of defense (operational management). This is a systematic and 
principled process applied to strategic planning and application throughout the enterprise. Building a risk 
management system brings many benefits to businesses:

• Strengthen corporate governance,

• Assist enterprise in achieving its goals, strategies,

• Consistent strategy and culture of risk,

• Optimize the resources businesses use for managing and handling key risks,

• Optimize the correlation of profits and risks,

• Detect, prevent, and minimize errors and frauds in every aspect of your business,

• Increase the success rate of projects and preserve values for enterprise,

• Ensure enterprise operate sustainably and continuously enhance values such as finance, market share, 
brand, ...

• Build trust and meet increasing expectations of investors and stakeholders.

A good risk management and consequence control system is a system that clearly defines the roles, 
responsibilities and coordination in the organization related to risk management. Currently, Hoang Quan 
applies the principle of "3 rounds of protection" to enhance the exchange between risk management and 
control by clarifying the roles and duties of the stakeholders.

In addition to building an effective risk management system, Hoang Quan Company as well as other member 
companies/units have been following the risk management process (continuous) including 06 steps: 

Risk management model

IDENTIFICATION OF THE MAIN RISKS AND CONTROL SOLUTIONS

The risk grouping from business activities plays an 
important role in supporting businesses to identify 
the mutual effects of similar risks, helping 
businesses identify possible impacts on strategies, 
plans or business activities. Here are the main risks 
that Hoang Quan is currently facing:
1. Financial risks: Bank credit and other sources of 
credit are always an important source of capital for a 
real estate business. Any move to tighten or loosen 
credit has greatly affected the company's 
operations. In addition, receivables and payables 
from customers and partners are also significant 
factors affecting the business situation of the 
Company. Besides, monetary and interest rate risks 
are also inevitable for businesses. 
Solution: To limit the aforementioned financial risks, 
The company is always proactive in all aspects, 
controlling the debt / total assets ratio as well as the 
debt ratio to customers at a safe margin. At the same 
time, take the initiative in finding cooperative 
investment sources from external partners to avoid 
being too dependent on loan capital. For due debts, 
the Company always takes the initiative in payment 
to minimize the increase in interest rates. In addition, 
to avoid bad debt customers, the Company always 
finds and selects customers before offering 
products. 

2. Legal risks: Business operations of the Company 
are subject to numerous legal documents, as well as 
policies and regulations of the National Assembly and 
the Government. However, the implementation of 
these regulations is still quite inadequate because the 
implementation guidelines are still incomplete, but 
there are a number of other documents with 
conflicting content, which have not been answered.  
Therefore, the application and enforcement of legal 
regulations on the real estate business as well as 
other areas of the Company are still inadequate. 
Solution: Focusing on building a competent and 
experienced legal team, with two outstanding legal 
units, Hoang Quan Law Firm and Legal Department. 
These two units will be responsible for consulting, 
reviewing and handling specific areas related to 
project and corporate legislation. Despite undertaking 
two different fields, these two units always interact, 
support and go hand in hand, ensuring the 
compliance of laws in all aspects. At the same time, a 
specialized section is in charge of updating the 
changes of the Vietnamese legal system, 
communicating to the Executive Board and related 
departments in order to timely adjust business-
oriented strategies in accordance with new 
regulations. In addition, the Company's employees as 
well as the Group are regularly updated with new 
legal provisions through meetings as well as internal 
communication channels. 

3. Economic risks: Supply and demand in the real 
estate market are always volatile due to constantly 
changing prices and interest rates. When supply is 
greater than demand, a large amount of inventory of 
the Company will not be released and this greatly 
affects the Company's business operations.
According to statistics of the Vietnam Real Estate 
Brokers Association, in the third quarter of 2019, the 
real estate market across the country had a big 
difference between regions. Hanoi continues to show 
a decline in both supply and number of transactions, 
the absorption rate of products (60.5%) is also the 
lowest in the past three years. Meanwhile, in Ho Chi 
Minh City, the supply of apartments in the third quarter 
increased approximately 3.5 times compared to the 
first quarter, transactions increased approximately 3.9 
times and the absorption rate reached (95%) - the 
highest in the last five years. 
Solution: Before implementing any project, the 
Company also built a market survey team to ensure 
that the output of the product is always guaranteed, 
minimizing the increase in inventories.
4. Brand risks: The company operates under the 
brand name "HQC" which is the leading brand in the 
field of social housing real estate in Vietnam and is 
gradually expanding into the international real estate 
market. The Company's reputation can be seriously 
affected by objective reasons from changes in the 
legal system as well as negative impacts of financial 
markets. Besides, the reputation of the Company may 
be affected by subjective reasons such as customer 
care, communication, etc.
Solution: Hoang Quan Company focuses on 
operating the systems in the right process and with 
strict management. In order to bring trust to 
customers, partners and maintain the brand name 
"HQC", the Company always builds and trains 
customer care in general and other parts in particular, 
always dedicated, thoughtful, enthusiastic support 
customers and partners. In addition, in order to build 
an increasingly strong and strong brand, the 
Company also focuses on the field of communication, 
widely publicizing information to everyone. However, 
the transmission of information to the public is under 
the careful guidance of the General Director with the 
advice of the Board of Directors.
5. Human resource risks: Attracting and retaining 
skilled, experienced and competent employees is 
always an important goal of the business because 
human resources are the core factor for the success 
of the business. However, with the current level of 
competition in the labor market, preserving talented 
people is always a challenge for enterprise. At the 
same time, the issue of managing human resources 
so effectively, preventing acts that are likely to cause 
damage to the Company from the staff itself is also an 
important issue.

1. Establishing context

4. Risk response

3. Risk assessment

2. Identification of Risk

5. Monitoring activities

6. Monitoring and reporting

Solution: In order to control human resource risks, 
the Company has been developing plans and policies:
- Human resource development plan,
- Recruitment policy,
- Training, fostering and improving professional skills,
- Compensation system for employees:

• Welfare programs,
• Subsidies and allowances for payment of salary,
• Sponsorship measures help employees improve 

their lives,
• The interest of leadership,
• Organizing group meetings to create close bonds.

- Clear and reasonable assignment,
- Accurate evaluation system,
- Implementing regulations on labor safety,
- Expanding business to stabilize human resources.
6. Environmental risks: Regardless of the industry 
that suffers from potential threats from the 
environment, the real estate industry is no exception. 
These risks come from sources of emissions, waste 
water, waste gas or may be resource depletion 
nature. With the fluctuation situation and difficult to 
control nowadays, if we do not implement the 
environmental protection activities seriously, it will 
seriously affect the construction activities and 
business situation of the Company.
Solution: In order to minimize environmental risks, 
the Company always offers practical solutions in 
project construction activities. Specifically, the 
Company has built a waste water treatment system 
according to the infrastructure of each locality, does 
not discharge into the external environment and reuse 
the water after treatment. For construction materials, 
the Company proposes measures to use economical 
and effective reuse if possible. At the same time, 
grasping the situation of the current shortage of 
resources, the price fluctuates continuously, so right 
from the start of the project, the Company has soon 
sought strategic partners to provide input materials at 
a stable price during the project construction and 
investment process. In addition, the Company also 
signed strategic contracts to buy raw materials to 
reduce input costs for the Company's products.

Risk management system

1st Round

Legal - Shareholder Relations Department
Sale - Marketing Department

Finance - Accounting Department
Project Investment - Management Department
Administration - HR Management Department

2nd Round

General Manager
Assisstant - Secretary

Department
and Information 

Technology
Department 
(Assistance)

Independent Audit A
gency

Policy m
akers

General meeting of shareholders

Board of directors

3rd Round

Supervisory Board
Internal Control

Department

Corporate Risk
MANAGEMENT TOWARDS SUSTAINABILITY



The risk grouping from business activities plays an 
important role in supporting businesses to identify 
the mutual effects of similar risks, helping 
businesses identify possible impacts on strategies, 
plans or business activities. Here are the main risks 
that Hoang Quan is currently facing:
1. Financial risks: Bank credit and other sources of 
credit are always an important source of capital for a 
real estate business. Any move to tighten or loosen 
credit has greatly affected the company's 
operations. In addition, receivables and payables 
from customers and partners are also significant 
factors affecting the business situation of the 
Company. Besides, monetary and interest rate risks 
are also inevitable for businesses. 
Solution: To limit the aforementioned financial risks, 
The company is always proactive in all aspects, 
controlling the debt / total assets ratio as well as the 
debt ratio to customers at a safe margin. At the same 
time, take the initiative in finding cooperative 
investment sources from external partners to avoid 
being too dependent on loan capital. For due debts, 
the Company always takes the initiative in payment 
to minimize the increase in interest rates. In addition, 
to avoid bad debt customers, the Company always 
finds and selects customers before offering 
products. 

2. Legal risks: Business operations of the Company 
are subject to numerous legal documents, as well as 
policies and regulations of the National Assembly and 
the Government. However, the implementation of 
these regulations is still quite inadequate because the 
implementation guidelines are still incomplete, but 
there are a number of other documents with 
conflicting content, which have not been answered.  
Therefore, the application and enforcement of legal 
regulations on the real estate business as well as 
other areas of the Company are still inadequate. 
Solution: Focusing on building a competent and 
experienced legal team, with two outstanding legal 
units, Hoang Quan Law Firm and Legal Department. 
These two units will be responsible for consulting, 
reviewing and handling specific areas related to 
project and corporate legislation. Despite undertaking 
two different fields, these two units always interact, 
support and go hand in hand, ensuring the 
compliance of laws in all aspects. At the same time, a 
specialized section is in charge of updating the 
changes of the Vietnamese legal system, 
communicating to the Executive Board and related 
departments in order to timely adjust business-
oriented strategies in accordance with new 
regulations. In addition, the Company's employees as 
well as the Group are regularly updated with new 
legal provisions through meetings as well as internal 
communication channels. 
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3. Economic risks: Supply and demand in the real 
estate market are always volatile due to constantly 
changing prices and interest rates. When supply is 
greater than demand, a large amount of inventory of 
the Company will not be released and this greatly 
affects the Company's business operations.
According to statistics of the Vietnam Real Estate 
Brokers Association, in the third quarter of 2019, the 
real estate market across the country had a big 
difference between regions. Hanoi continues to show 
a decline in both supply and number of transactions, 
the absorption rate of products (60.5%) is also the 
lowest in the past three years. Meanwhile, in Ho Chi 
Minh City, the supply of apartments in the third quarter 
increased approximately 3.5 times compared to the 
first quarter, transactions increased approximately 3.9 
times and the absorption rate reached (95%) - the 
highest in the last five years. 
Solution: Before implementing any project, the 
Company also built a market survey team to ensure 
that the output of the product is always guaranteed, 
minimizing the increase in inventories.
4. Brand risks: The company operates under the 
brand name "HQC" which is the leading brand in the 
field of social housing real estate in Vietnam and is 
gradually expanding into the international real estate 
market. The Company's reputation can be seriously 
affected by objective reasons from changes in the 
legal system as well as negative impacts of financial 
markets. Besides, the reputation of the Company may 
be affected by subjective reasons such as customer 
care, communication, etc.
Solution: Hoang Quan Company focuses on 
operating the systems in the right process and with 
strict management. In order to bring trust to 
customers, partners and maintain the brand name 
"HQC", the Company always builds and trains 
customer care in general and other parts in particular, 
always dedicated, thoughtful, enthusiastic support 
customers and partners. In addition, in order to build 
an increasingly strong and strong brand, the 
Company also focuses on the field of communication, 
widely publicizing information to everyone. However, 
the transmission of information to the public is under 
the careful guidance of the General Director with the 
advice of the Board of Directors.
5. Human resource risks: Attracting and retaining 
skilled, experienced and competent employees is 
always an important goal of the business because 
human resources are the core factor for the success 
of the business. However, with the current level of 
competition in the labor market, preserving talented 
people is always a challenge for enterprise. At the 
same time, the issue of managing human resources 
so effectively, preventing acts that are likely to cause 
damage to the Company from the staff itself is also an 
important issue.

Building an effective corporate risk management 
system is very necessary and urgent for Vietnamese 
enterprises in general and Hoang Quan Company in 
particular, to be able to sustainably develop in an 
increasingly volatile business environment. In 
particular, the decisive factor for the success and 
efficiency of the enterprise risk management system 
is the commitment of leaders, who support, own and 
guide the business risk management activities.

ORIENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES

Accordingly, Hoang Quan Company will further 
improve and perfect the construction of a risk 
management system in accordance with domestic 
and international standards. Hoang Quan will build a 
good risk management model based on consideration 
of specific factors, ensuring that all risks are promptly 
detected, monitored and effectively managed.

1. Predicting the possibilities of risks.

2. Determining the order of precedence of various risks.

5. Investing smart management supporting tools.

4. Publicizing risk management strategy.

3. Defining the role of each member in the managerial strategy.Principle

Principles of corporate risk management 

Solution: In order to control human resource risks, 
the Company has been developing plans and policies:
- Human resource development plan,
- Recruitment policy,
- Training, fostering and improving professional skills,
- Compensation system for employees:

• Welfare programs,
• Subsidies and allowances for payment of salary,
• Sponsorship measures help employees improve 

their lives,
• The interest of leadership,
• Organizing group meetings to create close bonds.

- Clear and reasonable assignment,
- Accurate evaluation system,
- Implementing regulations on labor safety,
- Expanding business to stabilize human resources.
6. Environmental risks: Regardless of the industry 
that suffers from potential threats from the 
environment, the real estate industry is no exception. 
These risks come from sources of emissions, waste 
water, waste gas or may be resource depletion 
nature. With the fluctuation situation and difficult to 
control nowadays, if we do not implement the 
environmental protection activities seriously, it will 
seriously affect the construction activities and 
business situation of the Company.
Solution: In order to minimize environmental risks, 
the Company always offers practical solutions in 
project construction activities. Specifically, the 
Company has built a waste water treatment system 
according to the infrastructure of each locality, does 
not discharge into the external environment and reuse 
the water after treatment. For construction materials, 
the Company proposes measures to use economical 
and effective reuse if possible. At the same time, 
grasping the situation of the current shortage of 
resources, the price fluctuates continuously, so right 
from the start of the project, the Company has soon 
sought strategic partners to provide input materials at 
a stable price during the project construction and 
investment process. In addition, the Company also 
signed strategic contracts to buy raw materials to 
reduce input costs for the Company's products.
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Current labor

+ In which Management level

Labor leave

New employees

63

3

68

50

65

15

61

16

47

15

20

7

19

6

8

2

c. Age Under  30 30 - Under  40 40 - Under  50 Over 50
Human Human Human Human

96

27

89

46

20

1

20

9

6

1

12

1

58

26

17

Current labor

In which Management level

Labor leave

New employees

4

4

0

0

10

7

9

2

d. Level Doctor Master University College Intermediate Unskilled
Human Human Human Human Human Human

350,868,337

52,834,836

21,787,429

5,618,230

Average total cost of social insurance/month

Average total cost of health insurance/month

Average total cost of unemployment insurance/month

Average total cost of labor accident and occupational disease insurance/month

Items Value (VND)

Current labor

+ In which Management level

Labor leave

New employees

114

28

62

31

80

12

95

45

e. Rate of local
   labor

Local labor
(has a permanent residence in the same

province as the workplace)

Human Human
Non-local labor

2. Assurance of employee benefits

3. Salary - bonus - welfare policy
a. Salary policy
- Material remuneration is the most important tool to 
create and enhance employee motivation. Salaries 
and allowances are not only the main income, but also 
the prestige, status and contribution value of each 
employee.
- The salary scale system or salary policy must be 
commensurate with the results of work, ensuring the 
lives of employees, consistent with the common 
ground of the labor market, fairness among 
employees and among departments in the company, 
as well as being reviewed and adjusted regularly to 
suit the progress of employees. On the other hand, 
the bonus policy should be transparent, reasonable 
and fair so that employees can understand the 
bonuses they receive.
- In order to fully implement the principle of attaching 
salary - bonus to labor productivity, work efficiency of 
each person and each department. The company has 
built a salary - bonus policy to encourage and 
motivate employees to strive to fulfill the task.
- Salaries are paid properly and fully, based on the 
contribution of employees and the quality of work in 
order to improve labor efficiency.
- In addition to the main salary, the company also has 
other support agreements for employees to offset 
daily activities such as: petrol, telephone, house, 
raising children, business trip,... to attract and 
maintain good staff

b. Reward policy
- Bonus policies include: Reward for work efficiency, 
13th month salary, bonus for exceeding sales, bonus 
for technical innovations and management.
- At the end of each year, based on the business 
results, the Company has a policy of rewarding units, 
collectives and individuals for outstanding 
achievements in the year with the goal:

• Reward according to the level of accomplishing 
personal goals, create motivation to work. 

• Create a healthy emulation environment for 
employees to fulfill their full potential, promote the 
company's strong development.

- In addition, the company awards in the holidays 
(New Year, Lunar New Year, holidays 30/4 & 01/5, 
2/9) ... the bonus is based on the production and 
business efficiency of the company.
c. Remuneration, benefit policies
- Company benefits include: Meal allowance between 
shifts; visiting regime; marriage benefits; maternity 
allowance; death regime; birthday regime; Resort 
regime, settlement regime.
- In addition to the above policies, the company has a 
per diem allowance, a severance allowance, a 
hardship allowance ... and also ensures social 
insurance, health insurance, unemployment 
insurance, periodic health examinations for 
employees. 

I.  ASSURANCE OF EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
1. Labor structure
- Total number of employees: 194 employees 
- By gender: Male 108 (accounting for 55%); Female 86 (accounting for 45%) 
- Classified by professional qualifications: Doctor: 04; Master: 10; University: 96; College: 20; Intermediate: 6; 
Unskilled labor: 58

Current labor

 + In which Management level

Labor leave

New employees

108

21

79

37

86

18

78

38

a. Sex Male Female
Human Human

Average salary / person

Average welfare / person

14,510,602

5,845,013

b. Salary Unit: VND / person

Human Resource
DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 2019

d. Handling labor complaints
- The process of handling labor complaints: 

01

02

03

04

05

06

Receive notice from District Labor,
War Invalids and Social Affairs
Division 

Prepare documents related
to employees 

Implement Power of Attorney
(according to the Mandador) 

Receive information from employees,
District DOLISA, District Social
Insurance, District Labor Federation 

Agree on the time for making
complaints for the employee 

Make a proposal to implement
the rights of the employee.
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II. DEVELOPING HUMAN RESOURCES TEAM
a. Recruitment policy:
- With the goal of recruiting "right people - right work", 
dedicated, enthusiastic and energetic  human 
resources team, the recruitment policy of the 
Company always aims to diversify sources of 
candidates with appropriate skills, experience, and 
high qualifications suitable to the job requirements, 
always create conditions for new employees to 
integrate and adapt to the environment and the 
fastest job. 

- Recruitment at Hoang Quan is built and implemented 
in a process with a clear, complete and detailed 
system of documents. Currently, recruitment is being 
centralized at the Administration - Human Resources 
Department.

- Administration - Human Resources Department is 
the focal point to review and submit for approval of 
labor norms of each unit based on the annual 
business/operational plan of the system as well as of 
each recruitment unit and organization according to 
the policy of the Board of Management and the needs 
of the units.

- Hoang Quan has strengths and competitive 
advantages in recruiting, focusing on general 
positions, but has not been really brave and invested 
in recruiting talents, especially experts and leaders at 
medium and high levels.  The current recruitment 
process is assessed as methodical, professional with 
popular subjects, but it is still quite rigid and less 
flexible for recruiting by position, senior personnel 
with the goal of recruiting "right people - right work” 
human resources team.

b. The Recruitment process is set up as follows:
- Step 1 - Prepare recruitment plan: departments/
divisions are responsible for forecasting recruitment 
plans. The Administration HR Department reviews, 
advises and re-evaluates recruitment needs.
- Step 2 - Review recruitment needs: The Director of 
Human Resources reviews the recruitment request 

Training process:

Departments

Human Resource
Management Department

Board of Directors

Oficers and employees

Votes require training

Training Plan

Approved

Conduct training activities
Commitment to working time

- Summary of training plans in 2019: 
• In 2019, the company organizes training and 
certification courses to improve the professional skills 
of employees to increase productivity and work 
efficiency such as: Course of Creation and Innovation 
in Group Leadership, Business Planning Course for 
CEOs, Skill Assessment Course - KPIs; Sales Skills 
Course (Professional training for business managers); 
Course Management skills and debt collection; 
Housing and Real Estate Market Management Course, 
Condominium Operation Management Course; 
Handover and acceptance test of works, ...
• Through training courses, the company always 
evaluates resources, assigns, appoints, rotates 
officers, ... in accordance with the actual capacity.
d. Other policies Human resource development / 
Remuneration and retention
Hoang Quan Company in particular and Hoang Quan 
Group in general are oriented to the motto "The 
company is a place worth working", so it is very 
concerned and utilizes manpower, this is reflected in 
many aspects, such ass: Good salary, bonus and 
welfare regime, quite competitive compared to other 
units in the same industry.
Hoang Quan always strives to create favorable 
conditions and constantly improves to become a 
comfortable working environment, the company as a 
second home for employees through "Great family 
culture”; The company always creates favorable 
conditions for cadres to study, challenge and develop, 
and have good promotion opportunities for those who 
are truly capable and motivated; The company also 
applies a policy of timely recognition and 
commendation, in accordance with other incentives.

In order to develop the current and future human 
resources, the Company always focuses on 
developing the staff and looking for promising 
candidates to focus on training into the successive 
leaders. 
In addition to the regimes, policies on salaries, 
bonuses, allowances and other preferential policies for 
official employees, the Executive Board always strives 
to create a friendly, professional working environment 
and is willing to listen, share experiences and staff. 
Thereby encouraging and promoting the initiative and 
creativity at work.
The company always creates conditions for employees 
to complain, contribute ideas, express their 
aspirations, directly to the Executive Board via email or 
meet directly with the General Director. In addition, the 
Company also organized meetings with the Executive 
Board to create favorable conditions for employees to 
present recommendations and propose ideas that 
contribute to improving the quality of work.
In addition, the Company always focuses on evaluating 
resources, allocating, appointing, rotating cadres,... in 
accordance with the actual capacity in each period that 
the Company has a specific personnel strategy to 
create. opportunities for employees to develop and 
advance at work.
Every month, the General Director directly receives 
the comments of all employees of the Group.
The company always improves the working 
environment to become one of the most worthy units to 
work in the real estate market. Besides, the company 
often has policies to train and develop employees' 
capacity, organize many domestic and foreign courses. 

form and comments and submits to the Board of 
Management for approval. In case recruitment is not 
required, specify the reason and return the recruitment 
request form to departments/divisions. Recruitment 
period is within 10 days from the date the recruitment 
request form is approved.
- Step 3 - Recruitment notice: The company always 
gives priority to, creates opportunities for development 
and advancement for its employees (to apply for other 
vacancies), as well as facilitates employees to 
introduce their relatives and friends to work at the 
company.
- Step 4: When there is a need for recruitment, the 
Administration HR Department issues recruitment 
notices on its internal Email, outside labor sources and 
on the mass media (newspapers, radio ...)  
c. Education policy:
- The training and development of human resources in 
Hoang Quan is shown through training activities (at 
units in the Hoang Quan system and at professional 
training schools) and human resource development 
activities. In Hoang Quan, these activities are fully 
and detailedly processed to apply uniformly 
throughout the system.

- The training policy is applied to each new Person / 
Staff / Middle Manager / Senior Manager in 
accordance with the development needs of the 
company and corresponding personnel capacity.

- The company regularly organizes training courses 
with the desire to build a team of skilled professionals 
to meet the increasing needs to increase cohesion 
among members. Improve professional skills, 
enhance life skills and work skills for employees to 
motivate and encourage competent employees to 
advance to higher positions:
• Training integration culture: Help new employees 

integrate into the working environment, understand 
the processes, rules, goals and orientations of the 

- The company regularly organizes exchanges and 
dialogues with employees to achieve the common 
goal, the content of dialogue includes:

• Improving the working environment, the best 
working mode for employees.

• Listening, sharing experiences, encouraging and 
promoting the initiative and creativity at work, 
answering questions and thoughts and aspirations 
of employees.

• Adequately addressing regimes and policies, 
ensuring fairness and reasonable payment of 
salaries and bonuses for employees.

III. STRENGTHENING COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN LEADERS AND EMPLOYEES

• Looking for promising employees to focus on 
training into legacy leaders.

-Regularly organizing mass activities, organizing 
football festivals and public art shows throughout the 
system in order to create solidarity, unite workers, 
create a warm and joyful atmosphere to create 
motivation for employees.

- Especially, the company focuses on organizing 
programs of humanitarian and social activities, 
supporting charity, etc., thereby aiming to build a 
sense of responsibility for the community of 
employees.

company
• Internal training: Invite senior experts or senior 

leaders of the company to directly train.
• Outside training: Send employees to attend 

training courses to supplement and expand 
professional knowledge to develop a workforce 
capable of bringing the company to conquer higher 
and further goals, thereby discovering and training 
internal staff for the company.

- The training process is set up as follows:

•The Head of Department/ Division prepares a 
"Request for Training" form and submits it to the 
Board of Management through the Administration 
HR Department.

• The Administration HR Department prepares 
training plan, costs and training budget to submit to 
the Board of Management for approval.

• When employees are trained, they will sign a 
commitment of time to work with the company. This 
is one of the annexes to the Labor Contract (if any).
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Sustainable
GROWTH

By the end of 2019, the policy of preferential interest rates for social housing beneficiaries has not yet been 
disbursed but due to the promotion of completion of social insurance projects, the Company has encountered 
many difficulties in investment capital. In addition, investors' valuation opinion for HQC shares is affected by 
other objective factors, leading to the fact that HQC shares are much lower than the value of the Company, so 
the capital mobilization from the stock market. Therefore, in 2019, revenue reached VND 788.5 billion (up 48% 
compared to 2018), profit after tax reached VND 41.5 billion, equivalent to 52% of the revenue plan and 29% 
compared to the plan. profit. Although the plan has not been completed, with a year of uncertainty in the real 
estate market, this achievement has also shown the efforts, overcoming difficulties and the solidarity of the 
Board of Management and the staff. 

In 2019, continuing the strategy in the period of 2015-2019, in order to maximize the efficiency of capital use and 
balance revenue, the Company continues to promote investment in commercial real estate products such as 
Apartments (high-end, medium, cheap), bottom land, real estate for accommodation and business (Shophouse 
and Officetel), Industrial parks, factories, warehouses,... and keep a certain proportion of social housing 
products. In addition, in 2019, the Board of Management also flexibly adjusted the strategic direction of 
investment in products, cooperation, M&A, etc. to suit the actual situation, increase profits, and towards 
sustainable benefits for Shareholders, and at the same time fulfill its responsibilities to related parties.

Regarding policies for employees, the Company has been perform human resource restructuring, accelerate the 
review and evaluation of salaries, bonuses, benefits,... for all employees in order to improve welfare, 
remuneration, engagement as well as improve policies on developing the quality of human resources for 
employees in the direction of building Hoang Quan to become one of the best workplaces and the second home 
for all employees.

Regarding operating costs, in 2019 all expenses are reduced compared to the same period last year. In which, 
administrative expenses decreased by more than 25%, selling expenses decreased by 23%, financial expenses 
decreased by nearly 9%, other expenses also decreased by nearly 5% compared to 2018.

As of December 31, 2019, the Company's total assets was VND 6,713.5 billion. Because in 2019 the company 
is stepping up investment and construction of many projects at the same time, the cash amount is low. 

OPERATION COSTS OVER THE YEARS

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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ANNUAL BUSINESS REPORT (FROM 2015 TO 2019)
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Assessing and being aware of the importance in providing business related information to shareholders, Hoang 
Quan Company is committed to always endeavor to create the most favorable conditions for shareholders and 
investors grasp the Company's operations and commit to provide full, timely, honest and transparent information 
to all Hoang Quan shareholders through Investor Relations. 
Maintain diverse channels of information interaction with investors accurately and timely through electronic 
portals such as Company Website, Company Facebook Page, Website of HOSE, SSC, email box, other mass 
media. In addition, through regular events such as the annual General Meeting of Shareholders, meetings, 
information sharing with domestic and foreign investors,... is also one of the channels providing timely and 
complete information for shareholders and investors. 

Increasing charter capital of Hoang Quan Company
In 2019, the Company did not implement activities to increase charter capital. 
The Company's charter capital as of December 31, 2019 is VND 4,766,000,000,000.

Some typical activities in 2019:
- Update accurate and timely information on Investor relations at the Company's website. Information related to 

the Company's activities published on the company's website includes business activities, corporate 
governance, news, new events as well as information on the financial situation, internal shareholder 
transactions, etc for shareholders.

- Comply with the regulations on information disclosure including translating Vietnamese - English information 
as required;

- Successfully organize the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders in 2019 in the spirit of openness and 
transparency;

- Preside over the development of the 2019 Annual Report content, ensuring that the content and format are 
consistent with the provisions of the law, advanced practices in the preparation and presentation of the Annual 
Report providing sufficient information to shareholders and investors.

- Organize meetings to share information with domestic and foreign investment funds, investment organizations 

and individuals, and securities companies 
in order to exchange and provide 
information on business operations for 
shareholders, investors.

Orientations and objectives of investor 
relations activities:
- Improve the quality of Investor Relations 

activities through the timely updating of 
published Vietnamese - English bilingual 
information;

- Make efforts to translate information in a 
timely manner to ensure fairness of 
information between domestic and foreign 
shareholders, thereby gradually improving 
and improving the quality of Investor 
Relations.

- Study to build absentee voting by 
electronic voting method (E-voting) to 
ensure that it is soon put into application at 
the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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Accompanying Residents
WITH DREAM "STABLE LIFE, STABLE JOB"

Throughout 20 years of establishment and development, Hoang Quan Group always pays special 
attention to customers with the motto "customer satisfaction is the key to success". Because customers 
are the most important "shareholders", their satisfaction plays a very important role, contributing a great 
part to the Company's revenue and the brand spread of the Group. Hoang Quan constantly strives to 
create different values that bring into each product, apartment as well as financial and educational 
investment services. Besides, Hoang Quan with a team of attentive, dedicated customer care staff, always 
pays special attention to each customer. 

Currently, there are many families and individuals still struggling in the story of buying a house, even 
finding a temporary place to live with a reasonable price still faces many difficulties. 

At the time of VND 30,000 billion credit package, the social housing market showed signs of slowing down 
because people would have to borrow houses at the bank's interest rates. However, hope is not really 
"extinguished", because Hoang Quan Group is still persistent in providing good quality social housing with 
reasonable prices and many incentive programs to facilitate and support customers to get closer to the 
dream of Stable life, Stable job.

Besides, Hoang Quan has been trying to find many solutions so that customers can continue to buy social 
housing products at preferential prices, including the access to the VND 1,000 billion package in 
combination with the Social Policy Bank. At the same time, the Group has also had many policies to 
support customers to buy houses of the Company such as trade discount, payment discount; speeding up 
the search, cooperation and cooperation with banks in order to create opportunities for customers to 
expand their funding opportunities through bank channels with preferential interest rates, narrowing the 
distance to his dream.

Constantly improving the quality of products and services

Hoang Quan Group is always dedicated to bring quality products - services, best meet the needs and 
increasing expectations of customers. 

In each project that Hoang Quan built, we always pay attention to the quality of each product, bringing 
perfect comfort to customers. For families who like collective activities, there are areas such as BBQ, 
sports area, picnic area for families with many small children without moving to suburbs far from the city.  
Integrated resort areas with a comfortable space for the elderly. Besides its convenient location, near 
schools, trade centers, arterial roads of the city, Hoang Quan also focuses on creating green spaces for 
the entire project, greenery area, traffic roads, the spacious playground makes customers enjoy the most 
harmonious green life. 

With synchronous and diverse internal and external utilities, in harmony with the environment to give 
residents the experience of a completely different life, while ensuring the residents of the project are living 
in the most convenient and comfortable conditions. 
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Sharing With 
THE COMMUNITY 

WORKS FOR THE COMMUNITY

Right from the first days of establishment, Hoang Quan 
Company has always upheld the value of the spirit of 
solidarity, always accompanied with the Government in 
implementing social security, community development, 
education and public health policies. Determining the 
fulfillment of obligations to the community is one of the 
important social responsibilities for Hoang Quan 
Company. Therefore, each product - service that Hoang 
Quan brings to customers not only guarantees the 
quality but also makes sense in promoting Vietnam's 
economic development and integration with the world 
economy.

In order to realize social welfare policies, Hoang Quan 
Company has given many gifts to policy beneficiary 
families, Vietnamese Heroic Mother, built many 
gratitude houses for households with especially difficult 
economic conditions in the Western provinces. In 
addition, Hoang Quan Company has set up a Study 
Encouragement Fund since 2010 with the aim of 
bringing the dreams to the young generation of Vietnam. 
In the past 2019, Hoang Quan spent more than VND 04 
billion on education activities, giving practical gifts such 
as bicycles and computers to poor studious students in 
difficult economic areas. At the same time, Hoang Quan 
also cooperates with other agencies, prestigious 
organizations to hand over the scholarships to pupils 
and students with the spirit of overcoming difficulties, 
helping them alleviate their financial worries to help 
them study and pursue their dreams.

In addition to contributing to the society, Hoang Quan 
Real Estate Company has also fulfilled its community 
development mission. Thereby, the Company has orga-
nized annual health checks for employees to ensure 
adequate working health. On the other hand, Hoang 
Quan also regularly organizes tours, picnics, team 
building, periodic exchanges to reward and encourage 
the working spirit of the staff after stressful working 
periods.

The practical contributions of Hoang Quan Company to 
social security, community development, education and 
public health have partly contributed to economic and 
educational development, fostering dreams for the 
young generation to reach out and improve the quality of 
life of their workforce and their families, as well as the 
local community and the society as a whole.

HOANG QUAN GROUP ACCOMPANIED WITH THE STANDING DEPUTY PRIME MINISTER
VISITTING AND GIVING PRESENTS ON THE OCCASION OF THE LUNAR NEW YEAR 2019
IN VINH LONG 
In the warm spring atmosphere, Hoang Quan Group 
accompanied with Deputy Prime Minister Truong Hoa Binh 
to visit and give gifts to Vietnamese heroic mothers, policy 
families, gratitude houses and bring a full spring for 
disadvantaged policy families. Besides, Hoang Quan also 
shares, encourages, gives gifts and scholarships to poor 
studious students, tries to rise up in life, encourages them to 
continue their efforts to strive and support them somewhat to 
have a full New Year.

Give gifts to 50 Vietnamese Heroic Mothers, 50 families under preferential treatment policy; Award 2 gratitude 
houses (each with value of VND 70,000,000) to disadvantaged policy families; Donate 100 bikes and 20 sets 
of computers for poor studious students; The total value of gifts near VND 800,000,000.

"LIGHTENING DREAMING OF TAY NGUYEN" AT TAY NGUYEN UNIVERSITY

On May 16, 2019, at Tay Nguyen University - Dak Lak 
Province, Hoang Quan Group as well as Simon Investment 
Joint Stock Company presented 100 scholarships with a 
total value of VND 200,000,000 to outstanding poor 
students, hope to contribute a part in education and training 
in the province of Dak Lak, carry out the humanitarian 
mission “For the sake of 100 years, we should cultivate 
people", create favorable conditions for students who are 
having difficulties. 

THE 100TH ANNIVERSARY OF THE BIRTH OF THE HERO OF LABOR, PEOPLE’S PHYSICIAN
PROF. DR. NGUYEN THIEN THANH AND 10 YEARS OF ESTABLISHING MR. AND
MRS. PROF NGUYEN THIEN THANH SCHOLARSHIP FUND AT TRA VINH

SCHOLARSHIPS, GIFTS FOR CHILDREN AND TEACHERS AS RESIDENTS AT HQC PLAZA

Mr. and Mrs. Prof Nguyen Thien Thanh Scholarship fund 
has brought practical effects to the education and training 
career in Tra Vinh province in general, for pupils and 
students in particular, has encouraged and actively 
supported pupils and students in difficult circumstances to 
study well to continue their learning path to success and 
contribute more and more to the cause of building the 
country of Vietnam, the homeland of Tra Vinh strong, 
civilized and modern. Hoang Quan Real Estate Company 
has accompanied with the program and sponsored VND 
200,000,000 for the scholarship fund.

Awarded scholarship fund with value of VND 200,000,000 
for all children of residents living at HQC Plaza.  

On the occasion of Vietnamese Teachers' Day November 
20, the investor also gave gift of VND 100,000,000 for 
teachers who are residents of HQC Plaza.
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In addition to the objective of economic benefits, Hoang Quan Company in particular and the whole Group 
in general are aware of environmental protection that is vital for businesses, so they have thoroughly 
grasped each of the officials and employees in the whole system about the importance of the environment, 
always committed to seriously implement environmental activities, strictly comply with national 
environmental standards and regulations. At the same time, continuously promote the awareness of 
environmental protection and environmental action, particularly the efficient use of energy and friendly 
materials; minimize the negative impacts on the environment; re-create and use waste water sources from 
the concentrated water treatment stations of industrial parks to water plants and sugar; actively plant trees 
to create green space, fresh air for residents in apartment projects. 
In addition, in the future, Hoang Quan will apply the most advanced technology and investment and 
construction solutions from developed countries to accelerate the construction progress and improve the 
ability to control the quality of works, more environmentally friendly.
Hoang Quan Group always upholds the spirit of saving resources and protecting environment, this issue 
is often mentioned in the meetings. The member units and staff are always proactive in saving electricity 
and water, limiting the use of plastic bags at offices/units as well as at home, actively classifying and 
collecting waste at the source in the business activities. Hoang Quan understands that just by being 
aware, right thinking will have the right action, environmental protection is to protect human life.

Environmental management, energy saving
To ensure effective environmental management, the Company has applied ISO 14000 standard to define 
environmental management policies, implement planning, test, appraise and regularly promote 
environmental activities. Besides, the Company also raised the awareness of energy saving in the 
company's office as well as in the projects. 

- Company offices, branches are designed according to green - clean trend. Take full advantage of 
natural light, have ventilation windows, restrict the use of air conditioning and lighting systems. Call 
all officials and employees to be conscious of saving, avoiding wasting electricity, water, paper, 
stationery...

- At projects, officials and employees always comply with the latest regulations and standards on 
environmental protection and increase the introduction of energy-saving, eco-friendly modern 
equipment such as LED devices, recyclable materials, unburnt construction materials, etc. Project 
Management Unit strictly checks the process of treating wastewater, waste, emissions, limiting 
impacts and harm to the community and the environment. 

In order to carry out the mission for the community, Hoang Quan always strictly abides by the laws, 
regional regulations on environmental issues and the requirements of the parties related to the 
environment. 

Using green materials, controlling waste
In line with the global trend of environmental protection, Hoang Quan always strives to design green buildings 
to create a green and comfortable space for residents in apartment complexes; at the same time, apply 
technologies and techniques combined with strict management measures, standardize the project 
implementation process from the beginning to minimize solid waste, waste water and emissions into the 
surrounding environment. 

+ Sand

+ Stone

+ Cement

+ Fired bricks

+ Adobe bricks

+ Block Bricks

+ Iron

337,010

90,137

59,060

84,186,556

1,234,434

1,401,730

2,269

m3

m3

ton

brick

brick

m3

ton

Main material Volume used Unit

Report on usage of Main Materials

+ Buy water from Water Supply companies

+ Ground water (water from drilled wells)

+ Natural, river, lake water

+ Reused water

1,233,401

6,076

450

22,050

m3

m3

m3

m3

Water Volume used Unit

Report on the situation of water use

+ Electricity

+ Oil

+ Gas

9,567,181

4,941

34,140

KWh

liter

kg

Energy Volume used Unit

Report on the use of Energy

+ Solid waste

+ Liquid waste

+ Noise

+ Dust and smoke

246

22,880

60-76.3

179

ton

m3 

dBA

mg/m3 gas

Energy Emission control Unit

Table of measurement criteria on waste control in construction activities
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Gas emissions are measured and controlled to meet the prescribed standards. For solid waste, the Company 
hires facilities with collection and recycling functions. For liquid waste, the Company always ensures the waste 
water treatment system according to provincial infrastructure. Particularly for projects without treatment 
systems, Hoang Quan employs units equipped with appropriate and modern waste treatment systems such as: 
The treatment system is installed by Chan Hung Environment Company with the capacity Q = 750 m³/day (HQC 
PLAZA), the treatment system is implemented by Anh Thuy Environment Company, the capacity Q = 416 
m³/day (HM) and capacity Q = 360 m³/day (HHL), The treatment system implemented by Thu Thiem Company 
has a capacity Q = 190 m³/day (BTD).

In addition to strictly complying with the Law on Environmental Protection No. 55/2014/QH13, Construction Law 
No. 50/2014/QH13 and guiding documents, the Company also requires contractors to comply with technical 
standards and regulations as follows:

Environmental standards and technical regulations are fully complied with by the Company and its subsidiaries 
and there are no cases of administrative sanctions for violations of environmental regulations.
Every project or project invested and implemented by the Company is allowed to: 
- Accurate estimation of the volume of construction materials, rational use, reducing the outstanding backlog. 
- Gather materials in an appropriate location (at the end of the wind, on high ground) to avoid loss and damage 
when not in use. 
- Regularly inspect and maintain the construction items. 
- Use water saving. 
- Take measures against dust and noise; Waste water and waste shall be treated according to environmental 
technical regulations
- Preserve ecology and soil environment. 
Most importantly, all of the Company's projects use environmentally friendly materials, meet and adhere to the 
latest regulations and standards, including Circular No. 09/2013/TT- MOC of the Ministry of Construction 
regulates the use of unburnt construction materials in construction works; Directive No. 04/2013/CT-UBND of 
Ho Chi Minh City People's Committee on increasing the use of unburnt construction materials in constructions 
in Ho Chi Minh City; TCVN 6477:2011 - Concrete bricks; TCVN 7959:2011 - Lightweight concrete - autoclaved 
aerated concrete bricks (AAC); TCVN 9029:2011 - Standards of lightweight concrete - non-autoclaved aerated, 
foam concrete bricks - technical requirements; TCVN 9028:2011 - Mortar for lightweight concrete...
The measurement and quality control are carried out by specialized measuring devices at the construction site 
and analyzed in the laboratory according to QCVN 46:2012/BTNMT, TCVN 5067:1995, TCVN 7878-2:2010, 
TCVN 5971:1995, TCVN 6137:2009.

1

2

3

4

5

QCVN14:2008/BTNMT

QCVN 01-1:2018/BYT

QCVN 08:2015/BTNMT

QCVN 09:2015/BTNMT

TCXDVN 33:2006/BXD

National technical regulation on domestic wastewater

National technical regulation on drinking water quality

National technical regulation on surface water quality

National technical regulation on ground water quality

Water supply - Pipe networks and constructions - Design standards

No.

Water quality

1

2

3

4

5

QCVN 05:2013/BTNMT

QCVN 06:2009/BTNMT

QCVN 19:2009/BTNMT

QCVN 05:2009/BTNMT

TCVN 6438:2001 

Air quality - National technical regulation on ambient air quality

Air quality - Maximum allowable concentration of hazardous
substances in ambient air

Industrial emission of inorganic substances and dusts

National technical regulation on ambient air quality.

Road vehicles - Maximum permitted emission limits of exhaust gas

Air quality

1

2

3

QCVN 15:2008/BTNMT

QCVN 03:2015/BTNMT

QCVN 43:2017/BTNMT

National technical regulation on the pesticide residues in the soils

National technical regulation on the allowable limits of heavy metals
in the soils

National technical regulation on sediment quality

Quality of soil and sediment

Name of technical regulation Contents 

Table of measurement criteria on waste control in construction activities
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QCVN 26:2010/BTNMT
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National technical regulation on noise
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Acoustics - Noise emitted by accelerating road vehicles - Permitted
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Acoustics - Noise emitted by stationary road vehicles - Maximum
permitted noise levels

No.

Noise and vibration

1

2

3

QCVN 50:2013/BTNMT

QCVN 07:2009/BTNMT

QCVN 07-9:2016/BXD

National technical regulation on hazardous thresholds for sludges
from water treatment process

National technical regulation on hazardous waste threshold

National technical regulation on technical infrastructure works - Solid
waste treatment and public toilet

Hazardous waste
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2

3

QCVN 40:2011/BTNMT

QCVN 14:2008/BTNMT

QCVN 02:2009/BYT

National technical regulation on industrial wastewater

National technical regulation on domestic wastewater

National technical regulation on domestic wastewater quality

Wastewater
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5

QCVN 01:2008/BXD

QCVN 07:2010/BXD

QCVN 03:2012/BXD

QCVN 09:2013/BXD
TCVN 4319:2012

National technical regulation on construction planning

National technical regulation on urban technical infrastructure works

National technical regulation on rules of classifications and grading
of civil and industrial buildings and urban infrastructures.

National technical regulation on energy efficient buildings
Houses and public works - Basic principles for design

Construction

Name of technical regulation Contents 
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Table Of Compliance With The Sustainable
DEVELOPMENT CRITERIA UNDER THE GRI

OPTION - CORE METHOD

Items

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ACCORDING TO GENERAL STANDARD  

Strategy and analysis

Organization Profile

Description Reference/ Direct reply Page

G4-1

G4-2

G4-3

G4-4

G4-5

G4-6 9-10

103-104

Company name

Main products and services

Head office address

Annual report - Overview Hoang Quan

Annual report - Overview Hoang Quan

Annual report - Overview Hoang Quan

9-10

9-10

9-10

101-102

109-112
51-58

Statement of the top management of the 
organization on the relevance of sustain-
able development to businesses and the 
strategy for sustainable development

The number of countries in which the
business operates, the names of the 
countries in which it operates significantly 
or in relation to sustainable development 
topics

Annual report - Overview Hoang Quan
Sustainable Development Report - 
Overview of Sustainable Development 
Report

G4-7 9-10Type of ownership, legal model Annual report - Overview Hoang Quan

G4-9 9-10Business scale Annual report - Overview Hoang Quan

G4-11
114Percentage of employees entitled to 

collective bargaining agreement
Sustainable Development Report - 
Assurance of employee benefits

G4-12 9-10Description of the supply chain of the business Annual report - Overview Hoang Quan

G4-13 25-32
Changes in the reporting process relate to 
size, structure, ownership and supply 
chain

Annual report - Operation report of the 
BOD

G4-10 113Statistics on employees Sustainable Development Report - 
Labor structure

G4-8 Service market (including division on 
geography, service areas and customer 
type)

The main geographic market is 
Southern Vietnam, from Khanh Hoa to 
Can Tho with a wide range of custom-
ers based on a wide range of products 
from social houses, commercial 
houses to office buildings, industrial 
parks, ports, warehouses, factories.

The 
content 

is 
present-

ed 
through-
out the 
annual 
report 

Description of the main impacts, risks and 
opportunities

Sustainable Development Report - 
Message from the Chairman of the 
BOD about Sustainable Development

Sustainable Development Report - 
Corporate risk management towards 
sustainability 
Annual report - Operation report of the 
Board of Management

Strategy and analysis

Identification of key areas and boundaries

Consultations of stakeholders

G4-14

G4-15

G4-17
103-104

105-108

125-128

111

112
105-108
117-118

Methods of prevention and advance warn-
ing of issues affecting the environment

List of units included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements + Report on whether 
any units in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements are not mentioned in this report

Sustainable Development Report - 
Overview of Sustainable Development 
Report

G4-18

Explain the process of defining report 
content and reporting boundaries + Explain 
how enterprise implements the Reporting 
Principles for defining report content

Sustainable Development Report - 
Orientation of sustainable development

105-108
G4-19

List all material areas identified in the 
report content definition process

Sustainable Development Report - 
Orientation of sustainable development

105-108

103-104

G4-20
For each material area, Report the 
boundaries within the organization

Sustainable Development Report - 
Orientation of sustainable development

G4-22

Report the impact of any restatement 
provided in the previous report and the 
causes of restatement

There are no cases where a 
restatement must be made

G4-23
Report significant changes in Scale and 
Boundaries of area compared to previous 
reporting periods

Sustainable Development Report - 
Overview of Sustainable Development 
Report

107-108G4-24 List of parties related to the enterprise Sustainable Development Report - 
Participation of stakeholders

107-108G4-25 Report basis for selection and identification 
of stakeholders

Sustainable Development Report - 
Participation of stakeholders

107-108G4-26 Approach to stakeholder engagement Sustainable Development Report - 
Participation of stakeholders

108G4-27 Report on key topics and concerns of 
stakeholders and business responses to 
these topics.

Sustainable Development Report - 
Value brought to stakeholders

List terms, principles of economy, environ-
ment and society that the enterprise has 
built

Sustainable Development Report - 
Commitment and management of envi-
ronmental impacts

Sustainable Development Report - 
Orientation of risk management activi-
ties. Sustainable Development Report - 
Orientation of sustainable development
Sustainable Development Report - 
Sustainable growth

G4-16 7-16List the Associations in which the enterprise 
participates Annual report - Overview
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Profile report

G4-28 103-104
117-118

Report period Sustainable Development Report - 
Overview of Sustainable Development 
Report

G4-29 103-104The most recent reporting period Sustainable Development Report - 
Overview of Sustainable Development 
Report

G4-30 103-104Report cycle Sustainable Development Report - 
Overview of Sustainable Development 
Report

G4-31 103-104Contact points for questions related to the 
report or content related to the report

Sustainable Development Report - 
Overview of Sustainable Development 
Report

GRI Catalog Glossary

G4-32 103-104Option of the enterprise Sustainable Development Report - 
Overview of Sustainable Development 
Report

G4-33 Policy in using external guarantees for the 
report

HQC has not used external guarantees 
for Sustainable Development Report

Administration

G4-34 19-20The governance structure of the 
enterprise, including the top management

Annual report - Organizational chart

G4-38 17-42
Report the composition of the highest 
governance body and subcommittees by 
executive/non-executive level, 
independence, term, number of key 
positions and commitments, gender, 
members of disadvantaged social groups, 
capacity related to economic, 
environmental and social impacts 
represent the stakeholders

Annual report - Company management

G4-39 17-42Report Chairman of the highest authority 
who is the CEO ? Functions of the 
Chairman in administrative activities, 
reasons for arrangement

Annual report - Company management

Ethics and integrity

G4-56 11-12Values, principles and standards of 
conduct of enterprise such as the Code of 
Conduct and the Code of Ethics

Annual report - Mission - Vision - Core 
values

G4-EC1 17-42Economic values to be created and allocated Annual report - Company management

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ACCORDING TO SPECIFIC STANDARDS

ECONOMIC LIST

ECONOMIC LIST

ENVIRONMENT LIST

Material

G4-EC3 7 - 8

101-102

105-108

56-57

Scope of business responsibility for 
welfare plan

Annual report - Message from the 
Chairman of the BOD 
Annual report - Message from the 
Chairman of the BOD about Sustain-
able Development
Sustainable Development Report - 
Orientation of sustainable development

G4-EN2 125-128Percentage of materials used as recyclable 
materials

Sustainable Development Report - 
Commitment and management of 
environmental impacts

G4-LA1 113
114

Total and percentage of new employees 
hired and rotated by age, sex, region

Sustainable Development Report - 
Labor structure
Sustainable Development Report - 
Assurance of employee benefits

G4-LA2
114Benefits provided to full-time employees 

that are not intended for temporary or 
part-time employees

Sustainable Development Report - 
Assurance of employee benefits

G4-LA6 Type of injury and rate of injury, 
occupational disease, day off, absenteeism 
and total work-related deaths by region and 
by gender

Not occur

G4-EN6 125-128Reduce energy consumption Sustainable Development Report - 
Commitment and management of 
environmental impacts

G4-EC4 Financial support from the Government Annual report - Opportunities and 
challenges for business activities in 
2020

Energy

SOCIAL LIST

How to treat workers and create decent jobs

Occupational Safety and Health

Customer Safety and Health

G4-PR2 Total number of incidents of 
non-compliance with voluntary laws and 
regulations on health and safety impacts of 
products and services over the life of 
products and services

Not occur

Society

Job
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HOANG QUAN
CONSULTING - TRADING - SERVICE REAL

ESTATE CORPORATION

Audited financial statements
for the for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2019

The Board of Managements of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation has the 
pleasure in presenting this report and the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2019.
1. The Company
Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation (“the Company”) has been operating 
under the Business Registration Certificate No. 0302087938, which was granted for the first time on 23 
March 2007 and the 34th amended on 30 June 2017 by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho 
Chi Minh City.

The Company's stock code is HQC listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange in accordance with 
Decision No number/QĐ-SGDHCM dated 12 October 2010 of the General Director of the Stock Exchange 
Ho Chi Minh City.
 
Head office:
- Address : No. 286-288 Huynh Van Banh Street, Ward 11, Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh City
- Telephone: 028. 39 913 808
- Fax: 028. 39 919 064

Principal business activities of the Company as in the Business Registration Certificate:
- Trading houses (excluding receiving the land use right to invest in construction of infrastructure according 
to housing construction planning for the purpose of transferring land use right). Investing in construction and 
trading industrial park infrastructures. Trading in real estate;
- Providing land brokerage services and real estate exchange services, advertising real estates, and 
managing real estates. Providing real estate brokerage services. Providing real estate auction services and 
real estate valuation services;
- Constructing civil works;
- Providing services of ground leveling;
- Providing commercial brokerage;
- Trading porcelains, handicrafts and fine arts. Trading interior decoration products;
- Trading agricultural - seafood products, industrial foodstuff. Trading aquatic products. Trading 
fruits and vegetables (not operating at the head office);
- Designing and prototyping on the computer; 
- Trading chemicals (excluding strong poisonous chemicals) and packages; 
- Trading construction materials. Trading all kinds of timber, materials serving construction industry;
- Acting as an agent to trade and deposit goods;
- Surveying land. Preparing investment project. Managing project. Designing civil-industrial 
construction. Designing construction plan;
- Providing vocational training (not operating at the head office);
- Consulting domestic investment, consulting foreign investment;
- Providing commercial advertising services; 
- Constructing bridge and road;
- Trading machinery and equipment of construction industry and printing industry;
- Trading paddy, corn and cereals; Trading agricultural - forestry materials (except for wood, bamboo and 
neohouzeaua) (not operating at the head office).
- Providing preschool, primary, secondary and upper secondary education;
- Providing training of colleges, universities and graduated;
- Providing restaurant and take-away catering services;
- Retailing cereal, foods, beverages, tobaccos and rustic tobaccos that take the most ratio in general 
specialized stores
- Retailing in supermarkets, commercial centers;
- Processing and preserving vegetables; processing and preserving seafood and other aquaculture proucts;
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- Processing and preserving meat and products made of meat;
- Producing processed dishes and foods;
- Retailing beverages in specialized stores.
In the year 2019, the Company's main business is to trade real estate

2. The Board of Directors, Board of Supervison and the Board of Management
The members of the Board of Director, the Board of Management and the Board of Supervison during the 
year and at the date of this report:

Legal representative
Legal representative of company during the year and at the date of this report are:
Full name
Mr. Truong Anh Tuan 

3. Financial position and operating results
The Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2019 and its operating result for the year then ended are 
reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

4. Contingencies and other subsequent events 
There have been no significant events occurring after the interim balance sheet date which would require 
adjustments or disclosures to be made in the interim financial statements. 

5. Auditors
AFC Vietnam Auditing Company Ltd. has been appointed to perform the audit for the year ended 31 December 
2019.

6. Statement by the Board of Management’s responsibility in respect of the financial statements
The Board of Managements is responsible for the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 
which give a true and fair view of the state of affair of the Company and of its results and cash flows for the year 
then ended. In preparing those financial statements, the Board of Directors is required to:

• Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
• Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

Company will continue in business; and 
• Design, implement and maintain the Company’s internal control for prevention and detection of fraud and 

error. 
The Board of Managements is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which 
disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the interim financial position of the Company and to ensure that 
the interim financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Accounting 
System. The Board of Managements is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frauds and other irregularities. 

The Board of Managements confirm that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing 
these interim financial statements.

7. Approval of Financial Statements
The Board of Management hereby approve the accompanying financial statements which give a true fair view 
of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2019 and the results of its operations and cash 
flows of the Company for the year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, 
Vietnamese Accounting System and comply with relevant statutory requirements. 

Mr. TRUONG ANH TUAN
CHAIRMAN OF BOD

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Ho Chi Minh City, 28 March 2020
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No. 180/2020/BCKT-HCM.00321

To: The Shareholders
The Board of Management and The Board of Directors 
HOANG QUAN CONSULTING - TRADING - SERVICE REAL ESTATE CORPORATION

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Corporation (“the Company”), prepared on 28 March 2020 as set out from page 6 to page 48, which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, and the income statement, cash flow statement and 
notes to the financial statements for the year then ended.
Board of Management’s responsibility
The Board of Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair preparation of these 
interim financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting 
System and financial reporting related legal regulations in Vietnam, and  such internal control as management 
determined as necessary to ensure that the preparation and presentation of these interim financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have 
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basic for our 
audit opinion.
Auditor’s opinion
In our opinion, in all material respects, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation. as at 31 December 
2019, and of its results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the 
Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Accounting system and comply with relevant statutory 
requirements relevant to financial reporting
Emphasis of Matters
We would like to draw the attention to Note 5.18 of Notes to the financial statements as follows: In the year, the 
Company issued invoices, declared and paid tax for each issuance of invoices to the Ho Chi Minh City Tax 
Department while settling amount of outstanding tax.

TRANG DAC NHA - Deputy General Director
Audit Practice Registration Certificate No. 2111-2018-009-1
AFC VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED
Ho Chi Minh City, 28 March 2020

NGUYEN THI THANH MINH - Auditor
Audit Practice Registration Certificate No.

0068-2018-009-1 

BALANCE SHEET For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2019

Code Note  31/12/2019
VND 

 01/01/2019
VND 

100 4,511,390,247,294         4,177,526,879,310        

110 5.1 34,106,891,580          36,604,556,147            

Cash 111 34,106,891,580          36,604,556,147            

Cash equivalents 112 - -                              

120 -                              -                              

Held for trading securities 121 -                              -                              

Provision for diminution in value of held for trading 
securities

122 -                              -                              

Held to muturity investments 123 -                              -                              

130 3,760,083,637,447     3,354,659,268,501        

Short-term trade receivables 131 5.2 1,274,073,379,007     1,124,222,713,053        

Short-term advances to suppliers 132 5.3 1,689,222,501,062     1,615,622,099,654        

Short-term internal receivables 133 -                              -                              

Construction contract receivables based on agreed 
progress billings 134 -                              -                              

Short-term loan receivables 135 208,876,792,201        232,858,992,415          

Other short-term receivables 136 5.5 646,233,552,380        448,055,781,618          

Provision for doubtful debts 137 5.7 (59,030,707,196)         (66,808,438,232)           

Shortage of assets waiting for resolution 139 5.6 708,119,993               708,119,993                 

140 5.8 700,743,694,852        770,878,092,479          

Inventories 141 700,743,694,852        770,878,092,479          

Provision for obsolete inventories 149 -                              -                              

150 16,456,023,415          15,384,962,183            

Short-term prepaid expenses 151 5.9 810,734,777               705,931,000                 

Value added tax deductibles 152 13,920,643,282          12,965,414,661            

Tax and other receivables from the State 153 5.13 1,724,645,356            1,713,616,522              

Government bonds trading 154 -                              -                              

Other current assets 155 -                              -                              

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments 

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other current assets
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BALANCE SHEET
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2019

BALANCE SHEET
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2019
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Code Note
 31/12/2019

VND 

 01/01/2019

VND 

200 2,202,041,690,233         2,416,848,259,861        

210 2,066,100,270,071     2,274,495,385,071        

Long-term trade receivables 211 5.2

5.5

677,711,120,071        902,479,640,071          

Long-term advances to suppliers 212 -                              -                              

Paid-in capital in wholly-owned subsidiaries 213 -                              -                              

Long-term internal receivables 214 -                              -                              

Long-term loan receivables 215 -                              -                              

Other long-term receivables 216 1,388,389,150,000     1,372,015,745,000        

Provision for doubtful long-term receivables 219 -                              -                              

220 7,195,034,752            8,938,596,895              

Tangible fixed assets 221 5.10 6,256,870,493            7,870,636,640              

222 23,018,521,482          21,799,433,695            

223 (16,761,650,989)         (13,928,797,055)           

Finance leases 224 -                              -                              

225 -                              -                              

226 -                              -                              

Intangible fixed assets 227 5.11 938,164,259               1,067,960,255              

228 1,468,463,000            1,468,463,000              

229 (530,298,741)              (400,502,745)               

230 -                              -                              

Cost 231 -                              -                              

Accumulated depreciation 232 -                              -                              

240 14,343,877,140          14,343,877,140            

Long-term work in progress 241 14,183,617,073          14,183,617,073            

Construction in progress 242 160,260,067               160,260,067                 

250 5.14

5.9

5.15

112,740,347,980        117,345,315,578          

Investment in subsidiary company 251 -                              -                              

Investment in Joint-venture and associates 252 49,200,000,000          50,800,000,000            

Other long-term investments 253 65,649,227,980          66,649,227,980            
Provision for diminution in value of long-term 
investments 

254 (2,108,880,000) (103,912,402)               

Held to muturity investment 255 - -                              

260 1,662,160,290            1,725,085,177              

Long-term prepaid expenses 261 55,388,711                 118,313,598                 

Deferred tax assets 262 1,606,771,579            1,606,771,579              

Long-term tools, supplies and spare parts 263 -                              -                              

Other long-term assets 268 -                              -                              

270 6,713,431,937,527 6,594,375,139,171        

Investment Property

Long-term assets in progress

Long-term financial investments

Other long-term assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Long-term receivables

Fixed assets

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Code Note  31/12/2019
VND 

 01/01/2019
VND 

300 2,386,437,724,720     2,308,752,226,144        

310 2,161,764,359,403     2,063,103,774,049        

311 5.16 81,295,521,943          71,382,560,524            

312 5.17 849,685,832,468        946,565,542,757          

313 5.18 147,041,523,759        99,045,688,911            

314 12,860,547,353          12,768,981,130            

315 5.19 258,470,829,187        212,363,099,882          

316 -                              -                              

317 -                              -                              

318 -                              -                              

319 5.20 660,966,963,475        549,010,311,394          

320 5.21 148,860,136,669        169,512,085,527          

321 -                              -                              

322 5.22 2,583,004,549            2,455,503,924              

323 -                              -                              

324 -                              -                              

330 224,673,365,317        245,648,452,095          

331 -                              -                              

332 -                              -                              

333 -                              -                              

334 -                              -                              

335 -                              -                              

336 -                              -                              

337 5.20 38,688,365,317          59,399,752,095            

338 5.21 185,985,000,000        186,248,700,000          

339 -                              -                              

340 -                              -                              

341 -                              -                              

342 - -                              

343 -                              -                              Scientific and technological development fund

Long-term loans and finance lease obligations

Convertible bond

Preferred stock

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other long-term provisions 

Long-term accrued expenses payable

Long-term internal payables of capital

Long-term internal payables   

Long-term unearned revenues

Other long-term liabilities 

Price stabilisation fund

Government bonds trading

Long-term liabilities

Long-term trade payables 

Long-term advance from customers

Short-term unearned revenues

Other short-term payables 

Short-term loan and finance lease obligations

Short-term provision

Bonus and welfare funds

Tax and payable to the State

Payable to employees

Short-term accrued expenses payable

Short-term internal payables

Construction contract payables
based on agreed progress billings

RESOURCES
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Short-term trade payables

Short-term advance from customers

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
FINANCIAL STATEMENT



INCOME STATEMENT
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2019

143

144 www.hoangquan.com.vn

TRUONG ANH TUAN
Chairman/ General Director
Ho Chi Minh City, 28 March 2020

NGUYEN HONG PHUONG
Accountant Chief

LE THI THU DAN
Prepared by

BALANCE SHEET For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2019

Code Note  31/12/2019
VND 

 01/01/2019
VND 

OWNER'S EQUITY 400 4,326,994,212,807         4,285,622,913,027        

Capital 410 5.23 4,326,994,212,807         4,285,622,913,027        

Owners' invested equity

Shares with voting rights

Preferred shares

411 4,766,000,000,000         4,766,000,000,000        

411a 4,766,000,000,000         4,766,000,000,000        

411b -                               -                              

Share premium 412 (531,492,706,004)           (576,461,073,797)          

Convertible bond options 413 -                               -                              

Other owners’ capital 414 -                               -                              

Treasury stocks 415 (7,260,000)                     (7,260,000)                    

Asset revaluation reserve 416 -                               -                              

Foreign exchange differences reserve 417 -                               -                              

Investment and development fund 418 6,027,010,613               5,729,509,154              

Enterprise re-organisation support fund 419 -                               -                              

Other funds belonging to owners' equity

Retained earing in previous year

Retained earing in current year

420 -                               -                              

Retained earnings 421 86,467,168,198              90,361,737,670             

421a 44,968,367,793              47,861,529,208             

421b 41,498,800,405              42,500,208,462             

Funds for construction investment 422 -                               -                              

Other capital, funds 430 -                               -                              

Subsidized funds 431 -                               -                              

Funds invested in fixed assets 432 -                               -                              

TOTAL RESOURCES 440 6,713,431,937,527         6,594,375,139,171        

Code Note
Year 2019

VND

 Year 2018

VND 

Gross sales of merchandise and services 1 788,527,489,075 532,918,786,137             

Less deduction 2 132,254,785,112                64,427,142,764               

Net sales 10 6.1 656,272,703,963                468,491,643,373             

Cost of sales 11 6.2 427,514,494,616                285,784,337,807             

Gross profit 20 228,758,209,347                182,707,305,566             

Financial income 21 6.3 5,584,437,885                   91,661,585,590               

Financial expenses 22 49,427,642,517                 54,283,294,520               

In which: Interest expenses 23 44,562,403,233                 63,258,468,922               

Selling expenses 25 6.5 21,905,095,521                 28,486,627,875               

General and administration expenses 26 6.6 87,889,559,468                 117,881,341,789             

Operating profit 30 75,120,349,726                 73,717,626,972               

Other income 31 7,772,984,937                   5,511,880,539                

Other expenses 32 6.8 23,005,911,958                 24,106,873,765               

Other profit/(loss) 40 (15,232,927,021)                (18,594,993,226)              

Profit before tax 50 59,887,422,705                 55,122,633,746               

Current corporate income tax expense 51 5.18 18,388,622,300                 12,622,425,284               

Deferred corporate income tax expense 52 -                                   -                                

Net profit after tax 60 41,498,800,405                 42,500,208,462 

Earning per share 86 89

TRUONG ANH TUAN
Chairman/ General Director
Ho Chi Minh City, 28 March 2020

NGUYEN HONG PHUONG
Accountant Chief

LE THI THU DAN
Prepared by
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(By indirect method)

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2019

Code
Year 2019

VND

 Year 2018

VND 

1 59,887,422,705 55,122,633,746          

2 3,001,538,820             2,732,847,666            

3 (5,772,763,438)            8,831,583,589            

4 -                                 -                               

5 (46,042,766)                 (60,449,356,087)         

6 44,562,403,233            51,541,518,398          

7 -                                 -                               

8 101,632,558,554          57,779,227,312 

9 (193,217,248,567)         (505,039,891,812)       

10 70,134,397,627            106,760,084,564        

11 59,933,427,305            563,673,544,912        

12 (14,101,113)                 (536,167,851)             

13 -                                 -                               

14 (24,399,777,195)           (23,446,820,804)         

15 (11,028,834)                 (27,136,282,846)         

16 -                                 -                               

17 -                                 -                               

20 14,058,227,777            172,053,693,475        

21 (1,285,754,454)            (525,741,213)             

22 -                                 400,000,000              

23 (121,153,388,094)         (196,905,972,262)       

24 125,152,856,296          259,665,784,899        

25 -                                 -                               

26 1,600,000,000             256,051,000              

27 46,042,766                  75,769,896,620          

Investment in other entities

Proceeds from investment in other entities

Interest and dividends received

Purchase of fixed assets and other long term assets 

Payment for loan, purchase of debt instrument 

Proceeds from loans, sale of debt instrument 

Other cash outflow from operating activitives

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid

Corporate income tax paid

Other cash inflow from operating activitives

Increase/(decrease) in payables

(Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses

(Increase)/decrease in held-for-trading securities 

Operating income before changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in receivables

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Profits from investing activities

Interest expense

Other adjustments

Proceed from disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets 

Foreign exchange (gains)/losses arising from revaluation
of monetary accounts

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Provisions

Code
Year 2019

VND
 Year 2018

VND 

30 4,359,756,514             138,660,019,044        

31 -                                 -                               

32 -                                 -                               

33 -                                 187,513,896,714        

34 (20,915,648,858)           (506,437,839,427)       

35 -                                 -                               

36 -                                 -                               

40 (20,915,648,858)           (318,923,942,713)       

50 (2,497,664,567)            (8,210,230,194)           

60 36,604,556,147            44,814,786,341 

61 -                                 -                               

70 34,106,891,580            36,604,556,147          CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF YEAR

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

Impact of exchange rate fluctuation

Payment of finance lease liabilities

Dividends paid

Net cash flow from financing activities

Payment of capital to sharehoders, repurchases

Proceeds from  borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Net cash flow from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of share capital

TRUONG ANH TUAN
Chairman/ General Director
Ho Chi Minh City, 28 March 2020

NGUYEN HONG PHUONG
Accountant Chief

LE THI THU DAN
Prepared by
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Affiliates Address

No. 50, Chu Văn An Street, Long Binh Hamlet, Ward 4,
Tra Vinh City, Tra Vinh Province, Vietnam

No. 46, Thoai Ngoc Hau Street, Vinh Hoa Ward,
Nha Trang City, Khanh Hoa Province, Viet Nam

No. 219A Ngo Quyen, Ward Tân An, Buôn Ma Thuột City,
Dak Lak Province, Viet Nam

T6 Vo Dinh Building, TA 14, Thoi An Ward, District 12,
Ho Chi Minh City

No. 90, Nguyen Thai Hoc Street, Ward 3, Tay Ninh City, 
Tay Ninh Province, Viet Nam

Ground floor of HQC Tan Huong social housing, Tan Phu 
Hamlet, Tan Huong Commune, Chau Thanh District, Tien 
Giang Province, Vietnam

No. 286, Huynh Van Banh Street, Ward 11, Phu Nhuan 
District, Ho Chi Minh City

No. 55C, Cay Keo Street, Tam Phu Ward,
Thu Duc District, Ho Chi Minh City

C 15-16 Nam Hiep Thanh Residential Area, Truong Chinh 
Street, Phu My Town, Tan Thanh District, Ba Ria - Vung 
Tau Province

15E My Hoa 4 Hamlet, Xuan Thoi Thuong Commune,
Hoc Mon District, Ho Chi Minh City

No. 339, Huynh Van Banh Street, Ward 11, Phu Nhuan 
District, Ho Chi Minh City

No. 353, Huynh Van Banh Street, Ward 11, Phu Nhuan 
District, Ho Chi Minh City

No. 272, Huynh Van Banh Street, Ward 11, Phu Nhuan 
District, Ho Chi Minh City

47C/2 Hamlet 3, An Phu Tay Commune, Binh Chanh 
District, Ho Chi Minh City

No. 270, Huynh Van Banh Street, Ward 11, Phu Nhuan 
District, Ho Chi Minh City 

No. 99 Inter-provincial Road 25B, Thanh My Loi Ward, 
District 2, Ho Chi Minh City

No. 159A, Phan Dang Luu Street, Long Huong Ward,
Ba Ria - Vung Tau City, Ba Ria - Vung Tau Province

Lot A2 19-20 Binh Minh service - residential area for
experts and employees, My Loi Hamlet, My Hoa
Commune, Binh Minh District, Vinh Long Province 
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Affiliates which are not legal entities and are reporting accounting books

1. GENERAL INFORMATION  

1.1 Ownership
  Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation (“the Company”) has been operating 

under the Business Registration Certificate No. 0302087938, which was granted for the first time on 23 
March 2007 and the 34th amended on 30 June 2017 by the Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi 
Minh City.
The Company's stock code is HQC listed on the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange in accordance with 
Decision No number/QĐ-SGDHCM dated 12 October 2010 of the General Director of the Stock Exchange 
Ho Chi Minh City.

1.2 Scope of operating activities
The Corporation operates in various business fields.

1.3 Nature of business operations
Principal business activity of the Corporation is trading in real estate of business. 

1.4 Business cycle
Normal operating cycle of the Corporation is from 02 to 03 years.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the financial year ended 31 December 2019
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

1.5 Structure of the Corporation
Subsidiaries

Joint-venture and affiliated companies

(*) The Company has not yet contributed capital to this subsidiary in 2019

Company name Address
Principal business 

activities

Capital 

contribution rate
Benefit rate Voting rate

Hoang Quan Farm 

One Member 

Company Limited

219A Ngo Quyen, 
Tan An Ward,
Buon Ma Thuot City, 
Dak Lak Province,
Vietnam. 

Trading in real 
estates

100% 100% 100%

Company name Address
Principal business 

activities

Capital 

contribution rate
Benefit rate Voting rate

  Hoang Quan 
Nha Trang Co., 
Ltd.

   No. 26, Yersin 
Street, Van Thang 
Ward, Nha Trang 
City, Khanh Hoa 
Province

Trading in real 
estates

40% 40% 40%

   Tay Nam A 
Economic and 
Technical 
Vocational 
Training School

   No. 254, Le 
Trong Tan Street, 
Tay Thanh Ward, 
Tan Phu District, 
Ho Chi Minh City

   Education 20% 20% 20%

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Hoc Mon Branch, Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation - 
Hoang Quan Real Estate Exchange Center

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Branch of Hoang Quan Consulting - Trading - 
Service Real Estate Corporation 

Tay Ninh Branch, Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation

Tien Giang Branch, Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation

Tra Vinh Branch, Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation

Nha Trang Branch, Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation

Dak Lak Branch, Hoang Quan Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate Corporation
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1.6 Statement on information comparability on the Financial Statements
The figures presented in the financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 are 
comparable to the corresponding figures of the previous year.
1.7 Employees 
At 31 December 2019, there have been 157 employees working for the Company (at 31 December 2018: 230 
employees).
2.  ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY
2.1  Financial year
The financial year of the Company is from January 01 to December 31 annually.
2.2  Accounting currency
The Company maintains its accounting records in VND due to the revenues and expenditures are made 
primarily by Vietnam dong(“VND”).
3. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND APPLICATION
3.1  Accounting Standards and application
The Company’s financial statements are complied with Vietnamese Accounting System. The Company has 
applied the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Accounting System according to Circular No. 
200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 and other circular guiding implementation of Vietnamese 
Accounting Standards issued by the Ministry of Finance in relating to the preparation and presentation of finan-
cial statements.
3.2  Comply with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Accounting System
The Board of management ensure that complied with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese 
Accounting System and the current legal regulations relating to the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 
December 2014 and as well as the guiding implementation of Vietnamese Accounting Standards issued by the 
Ministry of Finance in relating to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4.1  Basis of preparation the financial statements
The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis (except for information relating to cash flows).
4.2  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, cash in banks (demand deposits). Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of less than three months that are readily convertible into known amounts 
of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
4.3  Financial investments
Held to maturity investments
Investments are classified as held to maturity when the Company has the intent and to be ability to hold to 
maturity. Held to maturity investments include term deposits to earn profits periodically and other held to 
maturity investments.
Held to maturity investments are initially recognized at cost including purchase price and the expenses related 
to the purchase of the investments. After initial recognition, these investments are recorded at their 
recoverable value. Interest income from held to maturity investments after the acquisition date is recognized in 
income statement on an estimate’s basis. Income before Company owns is deducted into the cost at 
acquisition.
When there is evidence surely about a part or all of the investment may be not recoverable and having damage 
can be measured reliably, the loss is recognized in financial expenses in the year and reduced direct 
investment values
Loan receivables
Loan receivables are determined at cost less provision for doubtful debts. Provisions for doubtful debts of 
loans are stated based on the occurred estimated losses.

Investments in associates
Joint - venture
The joint venture is an enterprise established based on a contractual agreement which the Company and the 
parties involved in the implementation of economic on the basis of jointly controlled. At the control is meant to 
be making strategic decisions regarding policy and the financial of the joint venture must have the consent of 
the parties to the joint venture.
Associates
An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor 
an interest in joint venture.  Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy 
decisions of the investee enterprise but not control or joint control over those policies.
Investments in subsidiaries, joint-ventures and associates are initially recognized at initial cost, including 
purchase price or capital contributions plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. In case of investment 
in non-monetary assets, the cost of the investment is recognized at the fair value of non-monetary assets at 
arise.
Dividends and profits from previous periods of the investments before purchase are accounted for the 
decrease in value of the investments. Dividends and profits of the following period are after purchase is 
recognized in revenue. Dividends received by shares are only followed up by the number of shares increases 
without recognizing the value of shares.
Provision for diminution in value of long-term investments in subsidiaries, joint-ventures and associates are 
made when a subsidiary, joint venture, association get loss at the level of appropriation equivalent to the 
difference between on subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates ' actual investment capital at economic 
organization and actual equity capital of economic organization multiplying  the capital contribution rate of the 
Company in comparison with in subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates ' actual investment capital at economic 
organization. If the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are the object up to present the consolidated 
financial statements, the basis for determining loss is the consolidated financial statements.
Increase or decrease in provision for diminution in value of long-term investments of subsidiaries, joint 
ventures, associates have recorded at the closing day, and is recognized in the financial cost.
Investments in equity of other companies
Investments in equity of other companies include investments which the Company have no control, co-control 
or significant influence on the investee.
Investments in equity of other companies are initially recorded at cost, including purchase price or capital 
contributions plus the costs directly related to investment. Dividends and profits from previous periods of the 
investments before being purchased are accounted for the decrease in value of the investments. Dividends 
and profits of the following period are after being purchased is recognized in revenue. Dividends which 
received by shares are only followed up by the number of shares increases without recognizing the value of 
shares.
Provision for diminution in value of long-term investments in equity of other companies is appropriated as 
follows:

•  For investments in listed shares or the fair value of the investments is determined reliably, the provision is 
based on the market value of shares.

•  For investments have not determined the fair value at the time of reporting, the provision are made based on 
the loss of the investment at the rate equal to the difference between actual capital companies in other 
company and the equity ratio multiplied with the Company's capital contribution to the total actual capital 
contributions of all parties in other investee enterprise.
Increase or decrease in provision for diminution in value of long-term investments have recorded at the closing 
date, and is recognized in the financial expenses.
4.4  Receivables 
Receivables are recognized at the carrying amounts less allowances for doubtful debts.
The classification of receivables as trade receivables and other receivables is made according the following 
principles:
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•  Trade receivables reflect receivables concerning the commercial nature arising from purchase and sale 
transactions between the Corporation and customers who are independent to the Corporation.

•  Other receivables reflect receivables not concerning the commercial nature and irrelevant to purchase and 
sale transactions.
Allowance is made for each doubtful debt on the basis of estimated loss, according with decision No. 
228/2009/TT-BTC dated 07 December 2009.
Increases/ (decreases) in the obligatory allowance for doubtful debts as of the balance sheet date are recorded 
into “General and administration expenses”.
4.5  Inventories
Inventories are presented at the lower of cost and net realizable value. 
The cost of inventories is determined as follows:

•  Materials and goods: comprising all costs of purchase and related expenses directly incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition.

•  Finished goods: including the cost of materials, direct labour and general manufacturing costs related to 
allocate on normal levels/ cost of land use rights, the direct costs and the general costs incurred during the 
construction of real estate.

•  Work-in-progress: just include the cost of raw materials (or other cost factors as appropriate).
 Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price of inventory during the normal production and busi-
ness minus the estimated costs to completion and the estimated costs necessary to consume them.
 Cost is determined on a weighted average method/ first in first out/specific identification method and the 
perpetual /periodic method is used to record inventories.
 Provision for impairment of inventories is made for each inventory with the cost greater than the net value 
realizable. For service in progress, the provision for impairment is calculated for each type of service has a 
separate price. Increase or decrease in the balance of provision for impairment of inventories should be set 
aside at the fiscal year end and is recognized in cost of goods sold.
4.6  Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses is used to record expenses actually incurred but they are related to operation output of many 
accounting period and the transfer of these expenses to operating expenses of subsequent accounting 
periods. Prepaid expenses include:
Tools and equipment
The tools and equipment have been put into use and are amortized to expense under the straight-line method-
to time allocation from 12 to 36 months.
Repair costs of fixed assets
Repair costs of fixed assets incurred once to have a large value are amortized to expense under the 
straight-line method in 3 years.
4.7  Operating leased assets
Leases are classified as operating leases if the risks and benefits associated with ownership of assets belong-
ing to the lessor. Lease operating expenses are reflected as expenses under the straight-line method over the 
lease time, regardless of the method of rental payment.
4.8  Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of a tangible fixed asset 
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition 
and location for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are capitalised on 
fixed assets accounts, expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the income statement.
When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the balance sheet 
and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement.

Building and structures

Transportation

Office equipment

20

06 - 10
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Assets Years

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 
these assets, which are as follows:

4.9  Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
The initial cost of an intangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of 
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Costs relating to intangible assets 
incurred after initial recognition are recognized to the income statement, except for costs which are related to 
the specific intangible assets and increase benefits economic from these assets.
When assets are sold or retired, their cost and accumulated amortisation are removed from the balance sheet 
and any gain or loss from their disposal is recorded in other income or other expense in the year.
The company’s intangible fixed assets include:
Software
The buying expenses of computer software which are not an integral part of related hardware are capitalized. 
Initial cost of computer software includes all the expenses paid until the date the software is put into use. Com-
puter software is amortized in line with the straight-line method in 05 years.
4.10  Construction in progress
Construction in progress presents the directly expenses related to the Company’s assets which are in status 
of building, machinery in status of assembling for the purpose of manufacturing, leasing and managing as well 
as expenses related repairing fixed assets (including interest expenses suitable for relevant accounting 
policies of the Company). Those assets are stated at cost and are not allowed to depreciate.
4.11  Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future, which related to 
the goods and services received. Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimation for payable 
amount.
The classification of liabilities is payable to suppliers, accrued expenses and other payables, which complied 
with the following principles:

•  Trade payable reflects the nature of the payables arising from commercial transactions with purchase of 
goods, services, property between the Company and independent sellers.

•  Accrued expenses reflect the payables for goods and services received from the seller or provided with the 
purchaser but not to pay without having invoices or having insufficient billing records, accounting records and 
payable to employees including salary, production costs, sales must accruals. When those expense occur, if 
there has a difference with the isolated one, accountants carry out increasing or decreasing the expense with 
respective to that difference. 

•  Other payables reflect the nature of the payables of non-commercial, not related to the purchasing, selling 
and providing services.
4.12  Business Cooperation Contract
Jointly controlled business
The Company recognized in the financial statements of the business cooperation contract in the form of 
business activities under the joint control as follows:

• Revenue from selling goods or supplying service of joint venture.

• Incurred expenses.
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4.13  Ordinary bonds
The carrying value of bonds is usually reflected on a net basis equal to the par value of bonds at par value 
minus bond discount plus bond premium.
The Company tracks discounts and additional for each type of bond often issued and the situation of each 
discount and additional allocation when determining borrowing costs calculated into expenses or capitalization 
in each period, specifically:

• The bond discount is gradually allocated to account for each borrowing period during the bond term.

• Additional bond is allocated gradually to reduce the cost of borrowing each period during the bond term.
The allocation of the bond discount or additional bond may use the actual interest rate method or straight-line 
method:

• According to the real interest rate method: The bond discount or additional bond are allocated to each period 
is calculated by the difference between the interest expense payable for each interest payment period (calcu-
lated by the first book value of the bond multiplied by the actual interest rate in the market) and the amount paid 
each period.

• By straight-line method: The bond discount or additional bond is equally distributed throughout the term of the 
bond.
4.14  Capital
Owner’s equity
Owner’s equity is recorded at actual investment amount by the Shareholders.
Share premium
Share premium is recorded at the difference between the issuance price and the face value upon the initial 
issuance, additional issuance or the difference between re-issuance price and the net book value of treasury 
shares. Direct expenses related to additional issuance and re-issuance of treasury shares are recorded as a 
decrease in share premium
Treasury stocks
When acquiring shares issued by the Company, payables including expenses related to the transaction are 
recorded as treasury shares and are reflected as a deduction in equity. When reissued, the difference between 
the price of re-release and the book value of treasury shares are recorded in the item "equity premium".
4.15  Distribution of net profits
Profit after tax is distributed to shareholders after an appropriation of funds under the Charter of the Company 
as same as the law and is approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
The distribution of profits to shareholders is considered to non-cash items in undistributed profit may affect 
cash flow and ability to pay dividends as profit from revaluation of assets contributed as capital, interest due to 
the revaluation of monetary items, the financial instruments and other non-cash items.
Dividends are recognized as liabilities when approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
4.16  Revenue
Revenue from sales of service rendered
Revenue of a transaction involving the rendering of services is recognised when the outcome of such transac-
tions can be measured reliably. In case that a transaction involves the rendering of services is attributable to 
several periods, revenue is recognised in each period by reference to the percentage of completion of the 
transaction at the balance sheet date of that period. The outcome of a transaction can be measured reliably 
when all four (4) following conditions are satisfied:

•   The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

•   It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company;

•  The percentage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably; and

•  The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of real estate
Sales of real estate by the Company's investors are recognized when they simultaneously satisfy all of the 
following conditions:

•  Real estate has completed and handed over to the buyers, company has transferred the risks and rewards 
associated with ownership of the property to the buyer.

•  The company no longer holds the management rights of real estate as the owner of real estate or real estate 
control.

•  Revenue can be measured reliably.

•  The Company has obtained or will obtain economic benefits from the sale of real estate transactions.

•  Determine the costs related to real estate transactions.
Revenue from sales of land plots
Revenue from sales of land plots of the irrevocable contracts are recognized when they simultaneously satisfy 
all of the following conditions:

•  Following the transfer of risks and rewards associated with the land use rights to the buyer.

•  Revenue can be measured reliably.

•  Determine the costs related to the sale ground.

• The Company has obtained or will certainly gain the economic benefits associated with the transaction 
platform.
Revenue from sales from construction contract
When the results of the construction contract were estimated reliably as follows:

•  For construction contract that the contractors are paid according to the progress of the plan, revenues and 
expenses related to these contracts are recognized in proportion to the work completed by the Company 
determined in fiscal year end.

•  For construction contract that the contractors are paid according to the value of the mass execution, revenue 
and expenses related to these contracts are recognized in proportion to the work completed by customers 
confirm and is reflected on the invoices made.
The increases, decreases of volume of construction, compensation and other income are recorded only when 
revenue has been agreed with the customer.
When the results of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliable, present as follow:

•  Revenue is recognized only equivalent to the cost of the contract incurred that reimbursement is relatively 
certain.

•  The cost of the contract is recognized only for the costs has incurred.
The difference between the total accumulated revenue of construction contracts recorded and accumulated 
amounts invoiced in accordance with progress in payment are recorded as accounts receivable or payable 
under the progress of the construction contract.
Interest
Interest is recognized on an accrual basis, are determined on the balance of cash in bank and the actual 
interest rate for each period.
Dividends and profits received
Dividends and profit shared are recognized when the Company receive the notice of dividends or profit from 
the capital contribution. Dividends which received by shares, only follow up the number of shares increases, 
no recognition of the value of shares.
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4.17  Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include interest and other costs incurred directly related to the borrowings.
Borrowings costs are recognized as expenses when incurred. Where the borrowing costs directly attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or production of uncompleted assets requires a substantial period (over 12 
months) to get ready for use or sales, borrowing costs can be capitalized. For specific loan serves the 
construction of fixed assets and real estate, interest is capitalized, regardless the period of construction is less 
than 12 months. The income arising from the temporary investment of the borrowings is deducted from the 
related asset.
For general loans including use for purposes of the construction or production of uncompleted assets, the capi-
talization of borrowing costs is determined in proportion to the cost capitalization weighted average arising for 
basic construction or production of that asset. The capitalization rate is calculated in proportion to the weighted 
average rate of borrowings outstanding during the year, except for specific borrowings serving the purpose of 
a specific property.
4.18  Corporate income tax
Corporate income tax (“CIT”) for the year comprises current income tax and deferred income tax.
Current income tax
Current income tax is the tax amount is calculated on taxable income. Taxable income is different from 
accounting profit due to the adjustments of temporary differences between accounting and tax, non-deductible 
expenses as well as adjusted income are not taxed and losses be transferred.
Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is the corporate income tax will pay or will be refunded by the temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the purpose of preparing the financial statements and 
the basis to calculate income tax. Deferred income tax is recognized for all temporary differences tax. Deferred 
tax assets are only recognized when the certainty of future get the taxable profits to use those temporary 
deductible differences.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reconsidered at closing of the financial year and will be 
reversed to make sure that there is enough taxable profit to allow the benefit assets to be used fully or partly. 
The deferred tax assets were not previously recognized is reconsidered at closing of the financial year and is 
recognized when it is sure to enough taxable profit to be able to use this deferred tax assets.
Deferred tax assets and deferred income tax payable is calculated at the estimated tax rates that is applied in 
the asset is realized or the liability is settled in accordance with the tax rates in effect at closing fiscal year. 
Deferred income tax is recognized in the income statement and record directly to equity when the tax relates 
to items directly to equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred income tax payables are off set as follows:

•  The company has a legal right to offset between current income tax assets and current income taxes 
payable;

•  Deferred tax assets and deferred income tax payables are related to corporate income tax is administered 
by the same tax authority;

•  For the same taxable company;

•  The Company intends to pay current income taxes and deferred tax assets on the basis of net assets or 
recovered asset at the same with the payment of liabilities for each of periods in future when the materiality of 
deferred income tax or deferred tax assets to be paid or recovered.
Tax settlement of the Company and its subsidiaries will be assessed by the Tax Department. Due to the appli-
cation of laws and regulations on taxes for different incurred transactions which can be explained in many 
different ways, tax payable presented in the financial statements can be immediately changed according to the 
decision of the tax authorities.
4.19  Earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to shareholders holding ordinary 
shares of the Company by the weighted average of the number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

4.20  Segment reporting
A business segment is a distinguishable component of the Corporation that is engaged in manufacturing or 
providing products or services and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other busi-
ness segments.
A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of the Corporation that is engaged in manufacturing 
or providing products or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and 
returns that are different from those of components operating in other economic environments.
4.21  Instrument
Financial assets
The classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is deter-
mined at the time of initial recognition. Financial assets of the Company include cash and cash equivalents, 
investments, customer receivables, other receivables and other assets.
At the time of initial recognition, financial assets are determined at cost plus any costs directly acquisition, issu-
ance of such financial assets.
Financial Liabilities
The classification of financial liabilities depends on the nature and purpose of the financial liabilities and is 
determined at the time of initial recognition. Financial liabilities of the Company include payable to suppliers, 
loans and borrowings, accrued expenses and other payables.
At the time of initial recognition, financial liabilities are determined at cost plus costs directly issuance of such 
financial liabilities. 
Amortization is determined by the initial recognition of financial liabilities less the principal reimbursement, plus 
or minus cumulative distributions calculated using the effective interest method of the difference between the 
initial recognition value and the amount due, minus any deductions (directly or through the use of a reserve 
account) due to impairment or irrecoverable loss.
Actual interest rate method is the method of calculating the distribution of one or a group of financial liabilities 
and the distribution of interest income or interest expense in the relevant year. The effective interest rate is the 
discount rate of estimated cash flows that will be paid or received in the future throughout the expected life of 
the financial instrument or, if necessary, back to the present carrying amount. Net of financial liabilities.
Revaluation after initial recognition
There is currently no requirement to identify the value of financial instruments after initial recognition.
Offsetting of financial instruments
The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented on the balance sheet, 
and if only, the Company has the legal right to offset the values were recognized and to offset on a basis, or to 
realize the asset and pay the liability simultaneously.
4.22  Related parties
Parties are considered as related parties of the Company in case that party is able to control the Company or 
to cause material effects on the financial decisions as well as operations of the Company.

The following parties are known as the Company’s related parties:

Hoang Quan Appraisal Co., Ltd. Associate 

Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting – Trading – Service Real 
Estate Joint Stock Company Associate 

Hoang Quan Nha Trang Co., Ltd. Associate 

Tay Nam A Economic and Technical Vocational Training School Associate 

Viet Architecture Corporation Related company 

Hoang Quan Binh Thuan Consulting – Trading – Service Real
Estate Joint Stock Company

Related company 
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The following parties are known as the Company’s related parties:

5. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO ITEMS IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(*) As at 31 December 2019, Cash in bank in foreign currency is USD 224.73 equivalent to VND 4,665,114.

5.2 Short-term, long-term trade receivables
5.2.1 Short-term trade receivables

5.2.2 Long-term trade receivables 

5.3 Advances to suppliers

  Parties Relationship

Hoang Quan Can Tho Investment Real Estate Joint Stock Company Related company 

Nam Quan Investment Joint Stock Company Related company 

Binh Minh Port Joint Stock Company Related company 

Tay Ninh Urban Development & Construction Joint Stock Company Related company 

Bao Linh Housing Development & Construction Investment Joint Stock Company Related company 

Hoang Quan Education Investment Company Limited Related company 

Binh Thuan Housing Construction and Trading Joint Stock Company Related company 

Hoang Quan Law Co., Ltd. Related company 

Hoang Quan Building Management and Service Co., Ltd. Related company 

Hoang Quan Group Company Limited Related company 

Mui Ne Tourism Vocational College Related company 

Indochina Investment Development Real Estate Corporation Related company 

Tu Cuong Production and Commercial Company Limited Related company 

Thien Phat Construction Investment Company Limited Related company 

Binh Minh Entertainment Service - Trading Company Limited Related company 

Member of Board of Director, Board of Supervision
and the Board of Management  -  Key management members Key management

Cash and cash equivalents 31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

Cash on hand - VND 16,014,327,127 21,095,114,482

Cash in bank 

- VND 18,087,899,339 15,504,523,145

- USD (*) 4,665,114 4,918,520

34,106,891,580 36,604,556,147

Related Party 31/12/2019
VND

1/1/2019
VND

Hoang Quan Can Tho Investment Real Estate Joint 
Stock Company 255,269,161,549 201,189,890,630

Viet Architecture Corporation - -

Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - Service 
Real Estate Joint Stock Company - 8,309,198,758

Related Party 31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

Hoang Quan Education Investment Limited Company 112,985,980,000 95,811,480,000

Hoang Quan Building Management and Service Co., Ltd. 83,997,336,091 83,997,336,091

Bao Linh Housing Development & Construction Investment 
Joint Stock Company 43,785,517,926 43,785,517,926

IC Real Corp 2,056,076,147 51,953,992,124

Binh Thuan Housing Construction and Trading Joint Stock 
Company 5,386,877,963 5,386,877,963

Tu Cuong Production Commercial Company Limited  - 
Receivables for share transfer - 23,974,280,000

Thien Phat Construction Investment Company Limited - 
Receivables for share transfer 28,324,000,000 28,324,000,000

Related individuals 12,982,154,537 7,699,754,537

Other customers 

Customers purchasing real estates 729,286,274,794 573,774,385,024

Other customers - 16,000,000

1,274,073,379,007 1,124,222,713,053

Related Party
31/12/2019

VND
01/01/2019

VND

Bao Linh Housing Development & Construction Investment 
Joint Stock Company

422,795,120,071 422,795,120,071

Tu Cuong Production Commercial Company Limited - 224,768,520,000

Thien Phat Construction Investment Company Limited 254,916,000,000 254,916,000,000

677,711,120,071 902,479,640,071

Related Party  31/12/2019
VND 

01/01/2019
VND 

Binh Minh Port Joint Stock Company  -  - 

Viet Architecture Corporation 6,082,929,658                          3,823,998,864 

Hoang Quan Building Management and Service Co., Ltd.  - 1,046,624,920 

Hoang Quan Group Company Limited 19,238,653,652 19,238,653,652 

Nam Quan Investment Joint Stock Company 615,869,830 712,914,453 

Tay Ninh Urban Development & Construction Joint Stock 
Company  -  - 

Bao Linh Housing Development & Construction Investment 
Joint Stock Company 935,333,514,112 793,716,111,013 
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5.3 Advances to suppliers

5.4 Short-term loan receivables

5.5 Other short-term, long-term receivables
5.5.1 Other short-term receivable

5.5.2 Other long-term receivables

 31/12/2019
VND 

 01/01/2019
VND 

Binh Thuan Housing Construction and Trading Joint Stock 
Company                      289,404,385,437                      363,624,592,383 

Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Estate Joint Stock                              97,000,000                              97,000,000 

Other suppliers

Gia Bao Construction Design Investment Limited Company                     229,307,360,348                      240,595,829,402 

Other suppliers                      209,142,788,025                      192,766,374,967 

                   1,689,222,501,062                    1,615,622,099,654 

 31/12/2019
VND 

01/01/2019
VND 

Hoang Quan Binh Thuan Consulting - Trading - Service Real 
Loans receivables - related parties

Estate Joint Stock Company  -                        30,689,400,000 

Hoang Quan Can Tho Investment Real Estate Joint Stock 
Company  -                          6,060,010,967 

Binh Minh Port Joint Stock Company                          8,305,900,000                          1,905,900,000 

Viet Architecture Corporation                        17,796,598,091                        13,300,236,389 

Hoang Quan Law Co., Ltd.                             928,990,000                             946,450,000 

Hoang Quan Nha Trang Co., Ltd.                        13,666,700,216                        12,364,987,317 

Tay Nam A Economic and Technical Vocational Training 
School  -                             271,536,312 

Bao Linh Housing Development & Construction Investment 
Joint Stock Company                          6,875,330,167                          3,803,640,978 

Binh Thuan Housing Construction and Trading Joint Stock 
Company  -                             864,719,174 

Nam Quan Investment Joint Stock Company                        23,814,603,915                        17,014,794,860 

Tay Ninh Urban Development & Construction Joint Stock 
Company                          3,347,447,920                          3,418,447,920 

Hoang Quan Education Investment Limited Company                              96,902,135                        14,630,962,750 

Hoang Quan Building Management and Service Co., Ltd.  -                        23,099,320,174 

Hoang Quan Group Company Limited                        25,335,564,112                          7,759,176,627 

Binh Minh Entertainment Service - Trading Company Limited                             14,175,000                              14,175,000 

Mr Phan Chi Tam  -                          8,550,112,283 

Other organizations 

Gia Bao Construction Design Investment Company Limited                       31,438,648,627                        32,944,406,794 

Other organizations or individuals                        77,255,932,018                        55,220,714,870 

                     208,876,792,201                      232,858,992,415 

 Amount

VND 

 Provision

VND 

 Amount

VND 

 Provision

VND 

Hoang Quan Can Tho Investment Real Estate
Joint Stock Company 
- Capital contribution as in the Business
Co-operation Contract (1)

179,500,000,000                       -           179,500,000,000                      -   

Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - Service
Real Estate Joint Stock Company 
- Capital contribution as in the Business 
Co-operation Contract (2)

650,000,000,000                       -           650,000,000,000                      -   

Binh Minh Port Joint Stock Company
- Capital contribution as in the Business
Co-operation Contract (3)

322,019,300,000                       -           322,019,300,000                      -   

Related party
 31/12/2019 01/01/2019

Hoang Quan Can Tho Investment  Real Estate Joint Stock 
 Related party

Company

- Amount receivable for transfer of  investment projects                       -   

Binh Thuan Housing Construction and Trading Joint Stock 
Company -

  Interest on loans

Dong Duong Investment Development Real
Estate Corporation    212,773,738,525                       -   212,773,738,525                      -   

Hoang Quan Nha Trang Co., Ltd - Interest      93,000,000,000                       -        93,000,000,000                      -   

Board of Management - Advances          337,646,769                       -            289,378,668                      -   

Executive Officers - Advances        1,314,492,868                       -          2,583,610,339                      -   

Other organizations and individuals 

Mortgages, deposits        7,817,106,000                       -          8,072,106,000                      -   

Viet Phuong Nam Investment Co., Ltd - Amount
received from capital transfer

     52,287,650,000                       -        52,287,650,000                      -   

Other short-term receivables    265,375,942,751     (8,558,469,137)      53,227,118,086  (7,528,096,949) 

   646,233,552,380     (8,558,469,137)    448,055,781,618  (7,528,096,949) 

     13,326,975,467 

                        -                         -   

     25,700,000,000 

         122,180,000 

                     -   

                     -   

 Amount
VND 

 Provision
VND 

 Amount
VND 

 Provision
VND 

 31/12/2019 01/01/2019
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5.5.2 Other long-term receivables

5.6 Deficit assets for treatment

5.7 Bad debts

 5.8 Inventories

5.9 Prepaid expenses
5.9.1 Short-term prepaid expenses

Movements of provision for doubtful debt is as follows:

(1) The Company contributes capital under the cooperation contract with Hoang Quan Real Estate Investment 
Corporation of Can Tho to carry out the following projects: Truong Thanh residential area project (7 ha) and 
social housing area (10,74 ha) in Can Tho; University of the Mekong Delta Project; 44 houses in Block 11A in 
the new urban area south of Can Tho River, Cai Rang District, Can Tho City.
(2)  The Company contributed capital under the contract signed with Hoang Quan Mekong Real Estate 
Consulting - Trading - Service JSC to implement the project of building social housing Binh Minh Industrial Park 
in My Hoa commune, Binh Minh town, Vinh Long province. 
(3) The Company contributes capital in accordance with the cooperation contract with Binh Minh Port Joint 
Stock Company to carry out projects of investment exploitation and construction of Binh Minh - Vinh Long Port; 
Investment projects on construction and operation of Binh Minh port (including berths, infrastructure, 
warehouses and yards) at Binh Minh industrial park, My Hoa commune, Binh Minh town, Vinh Long province.
(4) The company contributed capital in accordance with the cooperation contract with Indochina Real Estate 
Development and Investment JSC to implement the project of Royal Tower in Tan Phu Ward, District 7, Ho Chi 
Minh City.
(5) Housing Development Fund - Contributing capital under the contract of investment and construction of 
social housing project No. 35 Ho Ngoc Lam, An Lac Ward, Binh Tan District

 Amount
VND 

 Provision
VND 

 Amount
VND 

 Provision
VND 

Indochina Investment Development Real Estate 
Corporation 200,000,000,000                    -           200,000,000,000                    -   

Other organizations and individuals 

Ho Chi Minh City Housing Development Fund - 
Capital contribution as in the Business
Co-operation Contract (5)

36,781,365,000                    -             20,431,445,000                    -   

Mortgages, deposits 88,485,000                    -                    65,000,000                    -   

1,388,389,150,000                    -           1,372,015,745,000                    -   

 31/12/2019 01/01/2019

 Amount
VND 

 Provision
VND 

 Amount
VND 

 Provision
VND 

Nguyen Thien Vu - the proceeds from the
HQC Plaza project 621,983,192  (621,983,192) 621,983,192      (621,983,192)

Unclaimed money 86,136,801    (86,136,801) 86,136,801        (86,136,801)

708,119,993     (708,119,993) 708,119,993        (708,119,993)

 31/12/2019 01/01/2019

 Cost
VND 

 Recoverable 
amount

 Cost
VND 

 Recoverable 
amount

Advances  2,947,747,211 3,307,952,734
Lending 2,874,390,087 12,215,731,133
Other receivables - -
Prepayments to suppliers 811,175,350 2,141,690,079
Deficit assets for treatment - -

10,686,905,037
24,578,564,629

819,311,310
28,871,118,874

708,119,993
65,664,019,843 6,633,312,648

10,016,738,373
44,813,456,656

819,311,310
28,116,185,846

708,119,993
84,473,812,178 17,665,373,946

 31/12/2019 01/01/2019

YEAR 2019
VND

YEAR 2018
VND

Beginning balance              (66,808,438,232)                       (57,976,854,643)

Provision in year  -                         (8,831,583,589)

Reversal of provision                 7,777,731,036   -  

Ending balance                 (59,030,707,196)                          (66,808,438,232)

 Cost
VND 

 Provision
VND 

 Cost
VND 

 Provision
VND 

Work in progress 555,099,740,509 - 613,455,816,281 -

Merchandises 145,643,954,343 - 157,422,276,198 -

700,743,694,852 - 770,878,092,479 -

 31/12/2019 01/01/2019

 31/12/2019 
VND 

01/01/2019
VND 

Construction expenses 630,179,672 705,931,000

Tools 180,555,105 -

810,734,777 705,931,000
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5.9.2 Long - term prepaid expenses

Tools 55,388,711

55,388,711

118,313,598

118,313,598

31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

Long-term work-in-process at projects 14,183,617,073

14,183,617,073

14,183,617,073

14,183,617,073

31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

5.10 Increase/ (Decrease) of tangible fixed assets

5.11 Intangible fixed assetsh

Historical cost

As at 01/01/2019

Purchased in year

As at 31/12/2019

1,468,463,000

-

1,468,463,000

Software accounting
VND

5.11 Intangible fixed assets

5.12 Long-term work-in-process

Expenses for completion of

the office in Can Tho Branch 160,260,067 

160,260,067 

160,260,067 

160,260,067 
-

-

-

-

01/01/2019
VND

Increase

VND

Transferred to fixed
assets

VND
31/12/2019

VND

5.13 Construction in progress

5.14 Long-term financial investments

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01/01/2019

Amortization during the year

As at 31/12/2019

Net book value

As at 01/01/2019

As at 31/12/2019

400,502,745

129,795,996

530,298,741

1,067,960,255

938,164,259

Software accounting
VND

In which:
- Ending balance of tangible fixed assets–fully depreciated but still in use as at 31 December 2019 is VND 
3,422,205,511 (as at 01 January 2019 is VND 7,092,476,487).
- Up to 31 December 2019, net book value of collateral, mortgaged assets guaranteed for loans is VND 
1,519,973,180 (as at 01 January 2019 is VND 2,812,104,980) - See more at Note 5.21

The company's financial investments include investments in associated companies and other investments. 
Information on the financial investments of the Company are as follows:

 Buildings, 
Structures 

Transportation  Office 
equipment Total

 VND  VND  VND  VND 
 Historical cost 

As at 01/01/2019               3,370,551,063             16,981,334,113          1,447,548,519            21,799,433,695 

Purchased in year  -               1,285,754,454  -              1,285,754,454 

Disposals  -  -              (66,666,667)                 (66,666,667)

As at 31/12/2019               3,370,551,063             18,267,088,567          1,380,881,852            23,018,521,482 

 Accumulated depreciation 

As at 01/01/2019                  884,769,606             11,939,274,929          1,104,752,520            13,928,797,055 

Depreciation in year                  168,527,544               2,576,802,252             126,413,028              2,871,742,824 

Decrease from disposal  -  -              (38,888,890)                 (38,888,890)

As at 31/12/2019               1,053,297,150             14,516,077,181          1,192,276,658            16,761,650,989 

 Net book value 

As at 01/01/2019               2,485,781,457               5,042,059,184             342,795,999              7,870,636,640 

As at 31/12/2019               2,317,253,913               3,751,011,386             188,605,194              6,256,870,493 

Cost Provision Fair value Cost Provision Fair value
VND VND VND VND VND VND

Investment in Joint-venture and 
associates    49,200,000,000            50,800,000,000                     -   

Hoang Quan Appraisal Co., Ltd. 
(1)                       -                       -    (*)      1,600,000,000                     -    (*) 

Hoang Quan Nha Trang Co., Ltd 
(3)    48,000,000,000                     -    (*)    48,000,000,000                     -    (*) 

Tay Nam A Economic and 
Technical Vocational Training 
School (4)

     1,200,000,000                     -    (*)      1,200,000,000                     -    (*) 

31/12/2019 01/01/2019
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(*) As at the date report, The Company has no the information of the fair value.

Investments in Joint-venture and associates:
(1) The company has transferred 32% of contributed capital of Hoang Quan Appraisal Co., Ltd to Nguyen Thi 

Dieu Phuong at the price of VND 1,600,000,000.
(2) The Company has invested VND 48,000,000,000 equivalent to 40% of charter capital in Hoang Quan Nha 

Trang Co., Ltd.
(3) The Company has invested VND 1,200,000,000 equivalent to 20% of charter capital in Tay Nam A 

Economic and Technical Vocational Training School.
Investments in other companies
(4) The company reimburses Ninh Thuan Tourist Joint Stock Company under Decision Director of the number 

492018KDTM.
(5) The company invests in KIS Vietnam Securities Corporation with a value of VND 1,080,000,000.
(6) The company invests in VIET NAM YOUNG ENTREPRENEURS INVESTMENT CORPORATION which 

has ceased operating in the company period, making 100% of the investment.
(7) The company invested in Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Joint Stock 

Company with the value of VND 62,460,347,980, accounting for 12% of the charter capital.

Transactions with subsidiaries and associates

The performance of affiliated companies
Associated companies are operating normally, no big changes compared to the previous year.
Provision for investments in other entities
Movements in provision for investments in other entities are as follow:

As at 01 January 2019

Provision in year

As at 31 December 2019

(103,912,402)

(2,004,967,598)

(2,108,880,000)

(103,912,402)

-

(103,912,402)

Year 2019
VND

Year 2018
VND

Main transactions with associates, joint - ventures are as follow:

Hoang Quan Nha Trang Co., Ltd

 - Lending

Tay Nam A Economic and Technical Vocational Training School

 - Collection

 - Borrowing

1,454,181,885

271,536,312

400,000,000

2,456,532,564

372,672,440

-

Year 2019
VND

Year 2018
VND

5.15 Deferred tax assets

Beginning balance 

Recognised in income statement in year

Ending balance 

1,606,771,579

-

1,606,771,579

1,606,771,579

-

1,606,771,579

Year 2019
VND

Year 2018
VND

5.16 Short-term trade payables
5.16.1 Short-term accounts payable to suppliers

5.16.2 Overdue debts
The Company has no unpaid overdue debt.
5.17 Short-term advance from customers

Related parties

Hoang Quan Law Co., Ltd.

Other suppliers

Construction Building Joint Stock Company 586

CDH Joint Stock Company

Other suppliers

-

2,206,563,670

1,000,000,000

78,088,958,273

81,295,521,943

1,172,326,144

2,206,563,670

1,000,000,000

67,003,670,710

71,382,560,524

31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

Related parties

Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting – Trading – 

  Service Real Estate Joint Stock Company

Other customers

Other customers

272,326,335,918

577,359,496,550

849,685,832,468

272,326,335,918

674,239,206,839

946,565,542,757

31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

 

Cost Provision
Fair
value Cost Provision

Fair
value

VND VND VND VND VND VND

Other long - term investments

Ninh Thuan Tourist Joint Stock 
Company (5)

KIS Vietnam Securities 
Corporation (6)

Investment Joint Stock Company 
Vietnamese youth (7)

Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting - 
Trading - Service Real Estate
Joint Stock Company (2)

 (*) 

 (*) 

 (*) 

 (*) 

 (*) 

 (*) 

 (*) 

 (*) 

   66,649,227,980 

                      -   

     1,080,000,000 

     2,108,880,000 

   62,460,347,980 

 114,849,227,980 

 (2,108,880,000)

                    -   

                    -   

 (2,108,880,000)

                    -   

 (2,108,880,000)

   66,649,227,980 

     1,000,000,000 

     1,080,000,000 

     2,108,880,000 

   62,460,347,980 

 117,449,227,980 

    (103,912,402)

    (103,912,402)

                    -   

                    -   

                    -   

    (103,912,402)

31/12/2019 01/01/2019
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5.18  Taxes and amounts payables to the State Budget Corporate income tax payable for the year is estimated as follows:

Accounting profit before tax 
Adjusted increases/(decreases) in accounting profit to
determine taxable profit:
- Increases
Income subject to tax
Income exempted from tax
Taxable income
In which:
- Income subject to the tax rate of 10%
- Income subject to the tax rate of 20%
CIT in year
Adjustment of previous year
Corporate income tax payable

59,887,422,705

11,467,624,999
71,355,047,704

-
71,355,047,704

-
71,355,047,704
14,271,009,541
4,117,612,759

18,388,622,300

55,122,633,746

7,989,492,676
63,112,126,422

-
63,112,126,422

-
63,112,126,422
12,622,425,284

-
12,622,425,284

Year 2019
VND

Year 2018
VND

5.19  Short-term accrued expenses payable

5.20 Other short-term, long-term payables
5.20.1 Other short-term payables

Other payables - other organisations and individuals
Project expenses 
Loan interest expenses 
Brokerage fees

134,527,497,986
119,955,505,288
3,987,825,913

258,470,829,187

156,907,712,623
51,467,561,346
3,987,825,913

212,363,099,882

31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

Related parties
Hoang Quan Appraisal Co., Ltd
Hoang Quan Group Company Limited – Borrowing money
Hoang Quan Mekong Consulting – Trading – Service
Real Estate Joint Stock Company

300,000,000
23,000,000,000

91,659,999,937

300,000,000
-

123,706,673,091

31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

At the beginning of 2019, the Company owed the tax payable to the State approximately 99 billion VND. 
However, the Company has sent documents to the State agencies such as Government Office, Ministry of 
Finance, Ministry of Construction, People's Committee of Ho Chi Minh City, Department of Finance of Ho Chi 
Minh City regarding the proposal to accept the Company to be offset against the interests of the Company to 
be reimbursed from the State budget to fulfil its tax obligation and create favourable conditions for the 
Company to focus its capital on implementing the projects. Social housing projects in the context of the source 
of capital support credit of the State for social housing has not yet been arranged. 
Specifically, the Company proposed to offset the refund of land use fees paid to the social housing project HQC 
Plaza in Binh Chanh district, Ho Chi Minh City with the amount of VND 22,894,269,326 and requesting the 
refund of resettlement land for the Ben Luc Resettlement Area Zone 17 - New Urban Area, relating to the 
Company's allocated 13,749.81 m2 of land in the project to resettlement District People's Committee. At the 
same time, the Company has also submitted to General Department of Taxation, Tax Department of Ho Chi 
Minh City to apply for the above land use fee and resettlement fee, the value added tax is also deducted from 
the tax debt with the refunded amount estimated at 100 billion VND.
The proposal of the Company received the consent of the competent State authorities. However, up to the time 
of this report, competent state agencies are considering legal provisions for social housing enterprises to 
disburse money, Let the Company settle its obligations to the State budget.
Meanwhile, according to the application of the Law on Tax Administration, the Tax Department of Ho Chi Minh 
City has applied the measure to allow the company to issue invoices and declare and pay tax at each time of 
issuing invoices in the time of settlement of outstanding tax amounts.
Value added tax (VAT)
The Company paid value added tax payable under deduction method. Value added tax rate are as follows:
- Social housing: 5%
- Other activities: 10%

Corporate income tax (CIT)
- The Company is obliged to pay corporate income tax for taxable income at the rate of 20%
- Income from the sales, lease, lease and then purchase of social housing is subject to corporate income tax 
rate of 10%.

Corporate income tax provisionally paid for the amount received in advance from the transfer of real estates
Company has to pay in advance the corporate income tax at the rate of 1% on the amounts received in 
advance from the transfer of real estate under the provisions of Circular No. 78/2014/TT-BTC dated 18 June 
2014 of the Ministry Finance. The Company will settle the corporate income tax payable for those activities 
when real estate is handed over.
Other taxes
The Company declared and paid according to regulations.

 

 Taxes
Payable 

 Taxes
Receivable 

Payable Paid  Taxes
Payable 

 Taxes
Receivable 

VND VND VND VND VND VND

Value added tax on domestic goods   15,727,867,421  -     25,519,422,616           (4,451,682)     41,242,838,355  - 

Corporate income tax   42,463,306,527  -     18,388,622,300  -     60,851,928,827  - 

Corporate income tax advance 
payment for amounts received in 
advance from the transfer of real 
estate

 -  (1,713,616,522)  -         (11,028,834)  -  (1,724,645,356)

Personal income tax   12,379,966,577  -       2,234,975,188     (6,000,000,000)       8,614,941,765  - 

Other taxes     1,670,093,867  -         931,274,642         (90,600,540)       2,510,767,969  - 

Fees, charges and other payables   26,804,454,519  -       7,016,592,324  -     33,821,046,843  - 

  99,045,688,911  (1,713,616,522)     54,090,887,070     (6,106,081,056)    147,041,523,759  (1,724,645,356)

01/01/2019 31/12/2019Movement in the perriod
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5.20.1 Other short-term payables

5.20.2 Other long-term payables

5.20.3 Overdue debt
   The Company has no unpaid overdue debt

Related parties – Borrowing
Mr. Truong Anh Tuan
Ms. Nguyen Thi Dieu Phuong

-
38,688,365,317
38,688,365,317

20,000,000,000
39,399,752,095
59,399,752,095

31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

5.21  Short-term loan and finance lease obligations
5.21.1 Short-term loan

5.21.1 Short-term loan

Details of movement of short-term loans:

5.21.2 Long-term loans and finance lease obligations

Related parties
Other
organizations

12,381,380,000

157,130,705,527

169,512,085,527

-

263,700,000

263,700,000

-

(20,915,648,858)

(20,915,648,858)

12,381,380,000

136,478,756,669

148,860,136,669

-

-
-

Increased
in year

VND

Transferred 
from long-
term loans

VND
Paid in year

VND
31/12/2019

VND
01/01/2019

VND

31/12/2019 01/01/2019
VND VND

Binh Thuan Housing Construction and Trading Joint Stock Company – 
Borrowing money 914,870,826 1,650,000

Nam Quan Investment Joint Stock Company – Borrowing money 53,777,391,146 53,627,391,146

Nam Quan Investment Joint Stock Company – Repayment due to the contract 
liquidation 

- 6,980,596,597

Hoang Quan Can Tho Investment Real Estate Joint Stock Company 22,776,992,192 -

Hoang Quan Education Investment Company Limited 2,138,399,000 -

Tay Ninh Urban Development & Construction Joint Stock Company 4,732,813,051 -

Binh Minh Port Joint Stock Company 32,014,719,437 32,014,719,437

Bao Linh Housing Development & Construction Investment Joint Stock 
Company 131,442,023,000 88,065,000,000

Indochina Investment Development Real Estate Corporation 3,299,806,832 9,379,951,606

Other payables - other organisations and individuals 

Apartment maintenance fee payable 42,570,477,659 12,247,816,634

Trade Union’s expenditure 691,543,800 476,474,900

Social insurance premiums, health insurance premiums, unemployment 
insurance premiums - Deposit 10,081,196,492 6,228,225,525

Other payables 241,566,730,103 215,981,812,458

 660,966,963,475 549,010,311,394

 Amount
VND 

 Amount within
repayment capacity

VND 

 Amount
VND 

 Amount within
repayment capacity

VND 

Short-term loans-Related
 Parties

Mr. Vu Trong Dac             12,381,380,000             12,381,380,000        12,381,380,000            12,381,380,000 

 31/12/2019 01/01/2019

 Amount

VND 

 Amount within
repayment capacity

VND 

 Amount

VND 

 Amount within
repayment capacity

VND 

Short-term loans - other 
organizations
BIDV Bank-Northern
Saigon Branch (1)

          136,128,705,527           136,128,705,527      155,977,705,527          155,977,705,527 

National Citizen Bank-Saigon
Branch (2)                  204,050,000                  204,050,000             820,200,000                 820,200,000 

LienVietPostBank - Ho Chi Minh
City Branch (3)

                 146,001,142                  146,001,142             332,800,000                 332,800,000 

             148,860,136,669              148,860,136,669         169,512,085,527             169,512,085,527 

 31/12/2019 01/01/2019

 Amount

VND 

 Amount within
repayment capacity

VND 

 Amount

VND 

 Amount within
repayment capacity

VND 

Long-term loans from other 
organizations
National Citizen Bank - Saigon
Branch (2) 

 -    -               135,700,000                 135,700,000 

LienVietPostBank - Ho Chi  Minh
City Branch (3)

 -  -             128,000,000                 128,000,000 

Bonds (4)           185,985,000,000           185,985,000,000      185,985,000,000          185,985,000,000 

             185,985,000,000              185,985,000,000         186,248,700,000             186,248,700,000 

 31/12/2019 01/01/2019
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Details of movement of the Long-term loans:

Long-term borrowings
Bonds

263,700,000
185,985,000,000
186,248,700,000

-
-
-

263,700,000
-

263,700,000

-
185,985,000.000
185,985,000,000

01/01/2019
VND

The loan amount
generated
in the year

VND

Converted
to short-term

loans and debts
VND

31/12/2019
VND

5.23 Owners’ equity
5.23.1 Details of movement of Owner’s equity 

Detail information about long-term loans:
(1)  Long-term borrowings from BIDV Bank - North Saigon Branch under credit agreement No. 01/2013/HDTD 

dated 17 December 2013 is detailed as follows:
     Purpose                         : Invest in Social Housing Project CC1 - Area 2 in An Phu Tay Commune, 

 Binh Chanh District, Ho Chi Minh City 
Period                               : 42 months 
Interest                             : 5.0%/year 
Guarantee assets             : Land use right (Certificate of land use rights No. BQ601217)

(2) Long-term loan from National Citizen Bank - Transaction Centre under credit contract No. 100/15/HDT-
D/101-2L dated 13 February 2015 is detailed as follows: 
Purpose                            : Buy a truck 
Period                               : 36 months 
Interest                             : 9.0% in the first 12 months, the following months: 12 month-term deposit  
interest rate plus margin. 
Guarantee assets             : By assets formed from the loan

(3) Long-term loan from Lien Viet Post Commercial Joint Stock Bank - Phu Nhuan Transaction Office under 
loan contract No. 147/PN-HDTD dated 28 May 2015 is detailed as follows: 
Purpose                            : Buy a car 
Period                               : 60 months 
Interest                             : 13-month term interest rate to pay interest at the end plus the minimum margin 
of 4.5% per year (about 12.5% per year) 
Guarantee assets             : By assets formed from the loan

(4) The Company issued non-convertible bonds to some investors for financial support of the project in 2018. 
Social housing area in resettlement, residential and commercial services area - Ward 4, Tra Vinh City, Tra 
Vinh Province under the Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 11/2018/NQ-HĐQT dated 7 September 
2018, detailed as follows:
Types of bonds                 : Non-convertible bonds and secured assets
Bonds method                  : Booked and enrolled
The date of issuing           : From September 2018 to 12/2018 and specified in the contract, Bond Certificate
Historical term                  : 03 years
Number of bonds issued  : 300,000 bonds
Denominations                 : 1,000,000 VND/ bond
Bond selling price             : 1,000,000 VND/ bond
Total value issued at par value : 300,000,000,000 VND
Interest rate                      :  First year               : 8.5%
                                            Second year          :   9%
                                            Third year              :   10%

Interest period                          : Once a quarter
The mobilized amount up to 31 December 2018   : 75,985,000,000 VND

And project Paradise Plaza - Bac Vinh Hai Residential Area, Vinh Hoa Ward, Nha Trang City under the Res-
olution of the Board of Directors No, 09/2018/NQ-HĐQT dated 14 August 2018, detailed as follows:
Types of bonds                         : Non-convertible bonds and secured assets
Bonds method                          : Booked and enrolled
The date of issuing                   : From 08/2018 to 12/2018 
Historical term                          : 03 years
Number of bonds issued           : 120,000 bonds
Denominations                          : 1,000,000 VND/ bond
Bond selling price                      : 1,000,000 VND/ bond
Total value issued at par value  : 120,000,000,000 VND
Interest rate                               : First year       : 8.5%
                                                    Second year :   9%
                                                    Third year     :   10%
Interest period                            : Once a quarter
The mobilized amount up to 31 December 2018: 110,000,000,000 VND

As at 31 December 2019, the Company sold 185,985 bonds equivalent to VND 185,985,000,000.

5.21.3  Overdue loans
As at 31 December 2019, the Company had a loan from BIDV Bank - North Saigon Branch with original 
balance of VND 136,128,705,527 which was overdue but not yet paid.

5.22 Bonus and welfare funds

As at 01/01/2019
Increase by deduction from profits
As at 31/12/2019

2,455,503,924
127,500,625

2,583,004,549

2,259,371,932
196,131,992

2,455,503,924

Year 2019
VND

Year 2018
VND

VND VND VND        VND VND VND VND

As at 01/01/2018 4,766,000,000,000 (624,322,603,005) - (7,260,000)       5,271,867,840       96,376,831,722    4,243,318,836,557 

Increased capital from 
convertible bonds

- - - - - 42,500,208,462    42,500,208,462      

Profit in year - - - - 457,641,314         (653,773,306)        (196,131,992)         

Deducting surplus 
equity from 
undistributed profits

47,861,529,208   - - - (47,861,529,208)   -

As at 31/12/2018 4,766,000,000,000 (576,461,073,797) - (7,260,000)       5,729,509,154       90,361,737,670    4,285,622,913,027 

Total
Convertible 

bond options

Owners’ invested 

equity
Share premium

Treasury 

stocks

Investment and 

development fund

Retained 

earnings
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5.23.1 Details of movement of Owner’s equity

5.23.2 Details of Owner’s equity
According to the amended 34th Register Business Certification on 30 June 2017, the Company’s charter capital 
is VND 4,766,000,000,000. As at 31 December 2018, the Shareholders contributed capital completely.

5.23.4  Profit distribution
During the year, the Company has distributed profits in 2018 under the Resolution of the Annual shareholders 
Meeting No. 01/2019/NQ-DHDCD dated 23 April 2019 as follows:

Mr. Trương Anh Tuan 
Hoang Quan Group
Company Limited

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Dieu Phuong

Other shareholders

40,350,240

38,244,658

12,469,316
385,535,786
476,600,000

20,350,240

38,244,658
18,189,840

399,815,262
476,600,000

403,502,400,000

382,446,580,000
124,693,160,000

3,855,357,860,000
4,766,000,000,000

203,502,400,000

382,446,580,000
181,898,400,000

3,998,152,620,000
4,766,000,000,000

8,47%

8,02%
2,62%

80,89%
100%

4,27%

8,02%
3,82%

83,89%
100%

Share VND Rate Share VND Rate

31/12/2019 01/01/2019

5.23.3 Shares

Registered number of issued shares
Number of shares sold to the public
• Ordinary shares
• Preferred shares
Number of shares repurchased
• Ordinary shares
• Preferred shares
Number of shares in circulation
• Ordinary shares
• Preferred shares

476,600,000
476,600,000
476,600,000

-
(726)
(726)

-
476,599,274
476,599,274

-

476,600,000
476,600,000
476,600,000

-
(726)
(726)

-
476,599,274
476,599,274

-

31/12/2019 01/01/2019

Par value of shares in circulation is VND 10,000.

• Development and Investment funds
• Bonus and welfare fund
• Deducting surplus equity from undistributed profits

297,501,459
127,500,625

44,968,367,793
45,393,369,877

VND

US Dollars (USD) 237.93

01/01/2019
VND

224.73

31/12/2019
VNDForeign currencies

Gross sales of merchandise and services
Revenue from sale of real estate 
Revenue from sales of construction activities
Revenue from service providers

Less deduction
Returned goods

Net sales

500,093,209,773
19,599,721,179
13,225,855,185

532,918,786,137

(64,427,142,764)
(64,427,142,764)
468,491,643,373

Year 2018
VND

746,801,523,086
12,300,198,822
29,425,767,167

788,527,489,075

(132,254,785,112)
656,272,703,963
656,272,703,963

Year 2019
VND

Indochina Investment Development Real Estate Corporation
+ Brokerage revenue

+ Business cooperation revenue

Hoang Quan Can Tho Investment Real Estate Joint Stock Company

+ Brokerage revenue

+ Revenue from sale of real estate

7,291,936,790
60,000,000,000

2,946,893,333
-

Year 2018
VND

66,942,149

-
193,226,000,000

Year 2019
VND

5.24   Off - balance sheet items

6.1  Revenue from sales of service rendered

In which, revenue of related parties:

6. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE  INCOME STATEMENT

VND VND VND        VND VND VND VND

As at 01/01/2019 4,766,000,000,000 (576,461,073,797) - (7,260,000)       5,729,509,154       90,361,737,670    4,285,622,913,027 

Profit in year - - - - - 41,498,800,405    41,498,800,405      

Distributed fund - - - - 297,501,459         (425,002,084)        (127,500,625)         

Deducting surplus 
equity from 
undistributed profits

44,968,367,793   - - - (44,968,367,793)   -

As at 31/12/2019 4,766,000,000,000 (531,492,706,004) - (7,260,000)       6,027,010,613       86,467,168,198    4,326,994,212,807 

Total
Convertible 

bond options

Owners’ invested 

equity
Share premium

Treasury 

stocks

Investment and 

development fund

Retained 

earnings
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Nam Quan Investment Joint Stock Company

Tay Ninh Urban Development & Construction Joint Stock Company

Hoang Quan Mekong Corporation

Year 2018
VND

12,999,763.636
-

42,369,465,000
206,292,705,785

16,363,636
2,929,062,101

-
70,510,943,149

Year 2019
VND

Cost of real estate 
Cost of construction activities
Cost of provided services

Year 2018
VND

415,065,483,255
7,201,781,815
5,247,229,546

427,514,494,616

265,730,565,678
16,803,119,999
3,250,652,130

285,784,337,807

Year 2019
VND

In which, revenue of related parties (cont)

6.2   Cost of goods sold

Interest income from banks
Profit divided from the contract of cooperation business
Income from transferring capital investment in associates
and Joint ventures
Interest on securities sale
Interest on deferred payment

Year 2018
VND

46,062,766 
     - 

-
-

5,538,375,119
      5,584,437,885

                      49,356,087 
     60,000,000,000 

     23,899,420,034 
       1,273,440,686 
       6,439,368,783 
     91,661,585,590 

Year 2019
VND

6.3  Financial income

Interest expense
Bond interest expenses
Other expenses

Year 2018
VND

28,224,745,177
16,337,658,056

       4,865,239,284
     49,427,642,517

46,286,047,495
5,255,470,903

       2,741,776,122 
     54,283,294,520

Year 2019
VND

6.4 Financial expenses

Staff expenses
Tools and supplies expenses
Depreciation expenses
Brokerage expenses

Year 2018
VND

12,026,083,500
23,598,502
28,008,336

2,434,384,400

              4,002,283,274
           56,592,326 

21,006,252
-

Year 2019
VND

6.5 Selling expenses

Support costs to purchase project
Entertainment expenses
Other selling expenses

Year 2018
VND
VND

            1,194,300,758
      5,852,914,132

          345,805,893
     21,905,095,521

          12,519,154,433 
9,902,760,249

         1,984,831,341
     28,486,627,875

Year 2019
VND

6.5 Selling expenses

Loss from fines for breach of contract
Tax penalty
Other expenses

Year 2018
VND

3,609,992,192
7,990,527,272

       11,405,392,494
     23,005,911,958

1,215,952,860
4,646,403,639

      18,244,517,266
     24,106,873,765

Year 2019
VND

6.8 Other expenses

Staff expenses
Tools and supplies expenses
Depreciation expenses
Tax and fees
Provision / (reversal of provision) for doubtful debt
Entertainment expenses
Other general and administration expenses

Year 2018
VND

            40,014,896,652
          326,786,154
        2,973,530,484

24,880,000
         (431,947,251)
      26,347,091,242
      18,634,322,187

    87,889,559,468

          54,739,826,606 
         406,550,339 
       2,711,841,414 
         541,278,289 
        8,831,583,589
     33,190,109,901 
     17,460,151,651 
   117,881,341,789

Year 2019
VND

6.6 General and administration expenses

Income from fines for breach of contract
Interest on disposal or sale of fixed assets
Brokerage fees
Rental of constructions
Handling deposits
Other income

Year 2018
VND

5,274,356,831
-
-

          654,545,454  
425,000,000

1,419,082,652
       7,772,984,937

297,877,381
400,000,000

         987,500,000 
          654,545,454  

1,136,000,000
        2,035,957,704
       5,511,880,539

Year 2019
VND

6.7 Other income
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6.9 Earnings per share

6.10  Production expenses classified by the factors

Payment for loan, purchase of debt instrument

Year 2018
VND

(121,153.388,094)
(121,153,388,094)

(196,905,972,262)
(196,905,972,262)

Year 2019
VND

7.1  Payment for loan

Proceeds from borrowings under normal contract

Year 2018
VND

-
-

187,513,896,714
187,513,896,714

Year 2019
VND

7.2 Proceeds from loans

Cash repayment of loans from borrowings under normal contract

Year 2018
VND

(20,915,648,858)
(20,915,648,858)

(506,437,839,427)
(506,437,839,427)

Year 2019
VND

7.3 Cash repayments of loans

Ordinary shares circulating at the beginning 
  of the year
Effect of ordinary shares repurchase
Ordinary shares circulating on average during the year

Year 2018

476,599,274
-

476,599,274

476,599,274
-

476,599,274

Year 2019

Ordinary shares circulating on average during the year is calculated as follows:
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7.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO ITEMS IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Company may have financial assets such as loans, trade receivables and other receivables, cash and 
short-term deposits that arise directly from the operations of the company, in addition, the Company has also 
issued convertible bonds in order to gather the financial resources to serve the investing activities. Financial 
liabilities of the Company mainly consist of bonds, loans, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose 
of these financial liabilities is to gather the financial resources to serve the activities of the Company. 
The Company incurs from market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Operational risk management is indispensable operations for the entire business operations of the Company. 
The company has developed control system to ensure balance at a reasonable level between the costs when 
incurred risk and risk management costs. The Board of Directors continually monitors the risk management 
process to ensure the right balance between risk and risk control.
Board of Directors considered and uniformly applied policies to manage each of these risks are summarized 
below:
i. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk has four types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk, goods price risk 
and another price risk, such as share price risk.
ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party of a financial instrument or contract not performing its obligations, resulting 
in financial losses. The Company has credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables 
account), and from its financial activities, including bank deposits, foreign exchange transactions and the other 
financial instruments.
Trade receivables
The company regularly keeps track of the receivables, which is not yet collected. For big customers, the 
Company considered the decline in the credit quality of each customer at the reporting date. The company 
seeks the way to remained the tight control of the receivables and arranging credit control staff to minimize 
credit risk. On this basis and the trade receivables of the Company related to various customers, credit risk is 
not significantly concentrated in a certain customer. 
Cash in bank
The company mainly maintained deposit balances at well-known banks in Vietnam. Credit risk of the deposit 
balances at banks is managed by the treasury department of the Company the company’s policies. The 
maximum credit risk of the Company for the items on the balance sheet at the end of the financial year is the 
value book presented in Note 4.1. The company found that the level of concentration of credit risk on bank 
deposits is low.
iii. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in implementing their financial obligations 
due to lack of funds. Liquidity risk of the company mainly arises from maturity mismatches of financial assets 
and financial liabilities.
Company minimizes the liquidity risk by maintaining an amount of cash and cash equivalents and bank loans at 
a level that the board of directors believes it is sufficient to meet the company's operations and minimize the 
risks due to the volatility of cash flows.

8.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

 Year 2019  Year 2018 

Income after tax VND                                 41,498,800,405                    42,500,208,462 

The adjusted increase of accounting profit to 
determine profit attributable to shareholders 
holding ordinary shares:

                                    (425,002,084)  - 

- Setting up bonus and welfare fund VND  -  - 

Profit used to calculate basic earnings per share VND                                 41,073,798,321                    42,500,208,462 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
circulating during the year CP                                      476,599,274                         476,599,274 

Earnings per share VND/CP                                                       86                                         89 

Materials
Staff expense 
Depreciation expense
External service expense
Other expenses

Year 2018
VND

350,384,656
52,040,980,152
3,001,538,820

    237,240,193,325
22,201,745,987

314,834,842,940

                  463,142,665 
     57,579,120,136 
        2,732,847,666
   330,040,197,701 

19,444,982,992
   410,260,291,160 

Year 2019
VND
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The table below summarizes the maturity of the financial liabilities of the Company based on expected 
payments on undiscounted basic contracts:

The company said that the level of concentration risk for the repayment is low. The company is sufficient to 
approach to the necessary capital.

Collaterals
As at 31 December 2019
- The company is mortgaging the fixed assets to secure the loan - see note 5.10; and
- The company does not hold collateral of another party.

iv. Fair value
The table below presents the carrying amount and fair value of financial instruments as disclosed in the Compa-
ny's financial statements:

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is based on the value that a financial instrument can be 
exchanged in an existing transaction between the parties, except when required to sell or liquidated.
The Company does not reassess its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value as stated in Circular 
210/2009/TT-BTC dated 6 November 2009 of the Ministry of Finance as well as the current regulations. Have 
specific guidance on reasonable valuation. On 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, the fair value of 
financial assets and financial liabilities corresponds to the carrying amounts of these items. Management 
believes that the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities do not materially differ from their 
carrying amounts at the balance sheet date.

9.1  Transactions and balances with related parties
The related parties with the Company include key management members, the individuals involved with key 
management members and other related parties..

9.1.1 Transactions and balances with key management members, the individuals involved with key man-
agement members
The key management members include members of the Managing Board and members of the Executive Board 
(Board of General Director and Chief Accountant). Individuals associated with key management members are 
close members in the family of key management members.

Transactions with key management members, the individuals involved with key management members
The Company does not generate sales and services transactions with its key management personnel and 
related individuals with key management personnel. Other transactions with key management personnel and 
related individuals with key management members are as follows:

As at 31 December 2019
Loans and debts
Trade payables
Accounts payable, other payable and 
  accrued expenses
Other payables

As at 01 Jan 2019
Loans and debts
Trade payables
Accounts payable, other payable and 
accrued expenses
Other payables

Total
VND

185,985,000,000
-

-
38,688,365,317

224,673,365,317

186,248,700,000
                        -   

                         
-   

59,399,752,095
245,648,452,095

334,845,136,669
81,295,521,943

258,470,829,187
691,769,236,210

1,363,494,076,299

355,760,785,527
71,382,560,524

212,363,099,882
601,705,363,064

1,241,211,808,997

From 1 to 5 years
VND

148,860,136,669
81,295,521,943

258,470,829,187
653,080,870,893

1,138,820,710,982

169,512,085,527
71,382,560,524

212,363,099,882
542,305,610,969
995,563,356,902

Less than 1 year
VND

Financial assets
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Short-term loan
Long-term Investment
Cash and cash
equivalents

1,951,786,783,847
1,967,073,059,677

208,876,792,201
63,540,347,980
34,106,891,580

4,225,383,875,285

2,026,702,353,124
1,768,263,923,930

232,858,992,415
66,545,315,578
36,604,556,147

4,130,975,141,194

1,951,786,783,847
1,967,073,059,677

208,876,792,201
63,540,347,980
34,106,891,580

4,225,383,875,285

2,026,702,353,124
1,768,263,923,930

232,858,992,415
66,545,315,578
36,604,556,147

4,130,975,141,194

31/12/2019
VND

31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

Carrying amount Fair value

Financial liabilties
Borrowing
Trade payables
Expense payables
Other payables

334,845,136,669
81,295,521,943

258,470,829,187
691,769,236,210

1,366,380,724,009

355,760,785,527
71,382,560,524

212,363,099,882
601,705,363,064

1,241,211,808,997

334,845,136,669
81,295,521,943

258,470,829,187
91,769,236,210

1,366,380,724,009

355,760,785,527
71,382,560,524

212,363,099,882
601,705,363,064

1,241,211,808,997

31/12/2019
VND

31/12/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

01/01/2019
VND

Carrying amount Fair value

9.   OTHER INFORMATION

Mr. Truong Anh Tuan
Borrowings
Borrowings payment 
Buy the right to use land in Dak Lak

Year 2018
VND

388,303,833,290
334,614,233,290
136,294,386,734

162,194,757,285
480,674,434,836

-

Year 2019
VND
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Debt with key management members and related individuals with key management members.
Liabilities to key management personnel and related individuals with key management personnel are set out in 
Note 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 5.5, 5.16. 5.17, 5.20 and 5.21.

Income of key management members

Mrs. Nguyen Thi Dieu Phuong
Borrowings
Borrowings payment
Transfer the shares to  "Hoang Quan Appraisal Co.Ltd "
Office Rental fee
Mr. Vu Trong Dac
Interest expenses

Year 2018
VND

1,600,000,000
5,200,000,000

1,506,401,233

29,777,000,000
32,225,613,942

-
-

Year 2019
VND

 Hoang Quan Can Tho Investment Real Estate Joint Stock Company
 Sale from brokerage
 Lending
 Borrowing
 Payment
 Transferring of shares
 Collecting from lending
 Dividend received

Binh Minh Port Joint Stock Company
Lending
Cost of construction
Advance construction costs
Borrowings
Collecting from lending
Other fees

Year 2018
VND

-
22,607,837,741
62,368,992,192
39,592,000,000

-
15,808,028,686

-

18,811,967,771
-

-
-
-

            2,946,893,333
       5,000,000,000 

-
-

128,000,000,000
52,982,989,000
1,099,131,900

10,649,303,200
21,647,202,320

-
      54,621,408,633
      64,578,591,367

2,244,660

Year 2019
VND

Hoang Quan Building Management and Service Co., Ltd.
Lending
Behalf of receiving 

Nam Quan Investment Joint Stock Company
Lending 
Brokerage revenue
Collecting from lending
Purchasing materials
Borrowings
Car rental

Indochina Investment Development Real Estate Corporation
Lending 
Borrowings payment 
Borrowings
Brokerage revenue
Collaboration revenue
Other fees
Collecting from lending

Bao Linh Housing Development & Construction Investment Joint Stock Company
Cost of construction
Lending
Borrowings
Borrowings payment
Collecting from lending
Transferring of subsidiary capital
Other fees

Binh Thuan Housing Construction and Trading Joint Stock Company
Cost of construction
Lending
Brokerage revenue
Collecting from lending
Borrowing

Year 2018
VND

-
-

22,607,837,741
-

15,808,028,686
680,000,000
830,000,000

-

5,201,500,000
201,500,000

37,674,000,000
-
-
-

43,754,144,774

119,173,636
13,847,911,601
43,377,023,000

-
10,776,222,412

-
-

115,033,854,910
3,345,280,826

-
4,210,000,000
1,332,100,826

1,398,944,500
868,072,655

            35,567,351,775
16,363,636

21,977,124,625
                        -   

      53,587,595,766
448,681,817

          32,928,449,133 
219,378,764,616
228,758,716,222

7,291,936,790
60,000,000,000

3,934,402
-

90,363,389,312
53,544,519,002
93,065,000,000
5,000,000,000

80,504,593,742
-

2,580,871

44,675,023,791
300,000,000
255,749,390
968,774,109

-

Year 2019
VND

Salary and other income

Year 2018
VND

6,174,605,400 3,786,461,091

Year 2019
VND

9.1.2 Transactions and balances with other related parties
Other related parties of the Company include: 
Transactions arising between the Company and other related parties other than subsidiaries and associates are 
as follows:
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Liabilities with other related parties:

Liabilities to other related parties are set out in Note 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 5.5, 5.16. 5.17, 5.20 and 5.21

Hoang Quan Law Co., Ltd.
Cost of legal services
Lending
Collecting from lending

Hoang Quan Group Company Limited
Lending
Collecting from lending

Hoang Quan Education Investment Limited Company
Lending
Collecting from lending

Viet Architecture Corporation
Cost of design consultancy
Lending
Loan interest expenses
Collecting from lending
Car rental expenses
Loan payment

Tay Ninh Urban Development & Construction Joint Stock Company
Lending 
Construction cost
Borrowings payment
Borrowings
Brokerage revenue
Collecting from lending

Hoang Quan Me Kong Consulting - Trading - Service Real Estate Joint Stock Company
Borrowings payment
Borrowings

Hoang Quan Binh Thuan Consulting – Trading – Service Real Estate Joint Stock Company
Borrowings
Collect the lending

Year 2018
VND

400,000,000
-

17,460,000

17,580,201,485
3,814,000

465,939,385
15,000,000,000

115,632,070
4,496,361,702

-
-
-
-

-
4,695,945,457
1,516,556,499
5,918,369,550

-
71,000,000

190,495,560,091
158,448,886,937

21,410,600,000
30,689,400,000

-
371,250,000

-

7,765,566,627
-

648,030,500
200,000,000

5,706,272,726
20,554,735,283
3,258,930,872

15,000,000,000
136,363,636

40,745,000,000

2,128,810,000
12,551,296,942
2,013,711,805
2,344,711,805
2,929,062,101

-

3,235,710,580
120,024,579,574

-
-

Year 2019
VND

9.2  Segment reporting
Segment information has been presented for reporting financial information by line of business and by 
geographical area.
The general expenses are allocated to each segment based on the percentage of revenue of each division.
9.3  Subsequent events
There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date, which is at 31 December 2019, 
which would require adjustments or disclosures to be made in the financial statements.

TRUONG ANH TUAN
Chairman/ General Director
Ho Chi Minh City, 28 March 2020

NGUYEN HONG PHUONG
Chief Accountant

LE THI THU DAN
Preparer by
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